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FEDERAL EXPRESS o | S U
Securities and Exchange Commission P P L

Office of International Corporate Finance

100 F Street N.E.
Washington, DC 20549

. Re: Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. — File Number 82-34668 RS
Dear Sirs'; #

; On behalf of Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (the “Company™), I enclose the ‘
Company $ letter submitting materials pursuant to I2g3 2(b)(1)(iii) under the Securities '
Exchangc Act of 1934, together with the attachments thereto.

_ I would be grateful if you could stamp one copy of the enclosed letter in order to
acknowledge receipt thereof and return it to me in the enclosed envelope.

| Please direct any communications regarding this filing to me at the above address.
I can also'be reached at 212-837-6465 (telephone), 212-422-4726 (fax) or
fneden@hugheshubbard com.

PROCESSE D Very truly yours,
%7 DECO1 g Zllon Frasderbory—

THOMSQ,
;’» F ’NANCIAT
ESF:bam '
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November 14, 2006

Securmes and Exchange Commission

Office of International Corporate Finance

Division of Corporation Finance

100 F Street, N.E. :

Washington, D.C. 20549

Jl Re: Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

; Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption: File Number 82-34668

Ladies and Gentlemen:

I_Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Act”), Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company incorporated under the laws
of Japaﬁ (the “Company”), is submitting the enclosed documents as identified on Exhibit A
hereto. * With respect to Japanese language documents listed in Exhibit A for which no English
language version has been prepared, brief descriptions are set forth in Exhibit B hereto.

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iv) under the Act, the Company is submitting as Exh:blt C
hereto an update of the information called for by Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(ii), mainly as a result of
recent amendments to stock exchange rules.

In the event of any questions or requests for additional information, please do not hesitate
to contact our United States counsel in connection with this submission, Ellen Friedenberg of
Hughes Hubbard & Reed LLP, One Battery Park Plaza, New York, New York 10004, telephone
(212) 837-6465, fax number (212) 422-4726.
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Sincerely,

Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

By: 547\ r‘&-f@?—— T@ém//us/@/

Name: Hiroshi Takahashi
Titie: General Manager of
General Affairs Department

;
Enclosure
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Additional Rule 12¢3-2(b) Documen;tsF p(,)ﬁ« f"” PF?N ;;ff‘ e

English Language Documents.

P
None.
|

J apan'ese Language Documents.

Sem1 annual securities report, dated September 8, 2006, for the six-month period
ended June 30, 2006 (brief description of which is set forth in Exhibit B)

Bnef announcement of interim consolidated financial statements (non-audited) for the
ﬁrst half of fiscal year 2006.12 ended June 30, 2006, dated July 31, 2006, (English
translation as Attachment 1)

)
N

Brief announcement of interim non-consolidated financial statements (non-audited) for
the first half of fiscal year 2006.12 ended June 30, 2006, dated July 31, 2006, (English
translatlon as Attachment 2)

I\ . .
Fiscal year 2006.12 supplementary materials for consolidated interim financial results
for the period ended June 30, 2006 (English translation as Attachment 3)

|
FY 2006 interim consolidated financial overview (materials for explanation), dated
Ju1y 3 l/August 1, 2006 (English translation as Attachment 4)

FY 2006 interim consolidated financial overview (materials for presentation), dated
July 31/August 1, 2006 (English translation as Attachment 5)

Overvxew of R&D activities, dated July 31/August 1, 2006 (English translation as

Attachment 6)

Overwew of consolidated company performance (non-audited) for the third quarter of
ﬁscal year 2006, dated October 24, 2006 (English translation as Attachment 7)

FY 2006 3Q consolidated financial overview, dated October 24 2006 (Enghsh :

: tra.nslatlon as Attachment 8)

Documents concemning material information concerning the Company which may
have a material influence on an investor’s decision (which have been filed by the
Company with the stock exchanges on which the common stock of the Company is
liéted and which are made public by such stock exchanges)

a, Document concerning a Company Split (Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (split
I company) and Chugai Pharma Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (successor company)),
dated May 1/June 19, 2006 (brief description of which is set forth in Exhibit B}
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12.
- 13,
14,

e

1
b.

f

Document titled “Flash Report of the Interim Financial Results for the Fiscal
Term ended June 30, 2006 dated July 18, 2006 (English translatlon as
Attachment 9)

‘Document titled “Revision of Interim Financial Outlook for Fiscal Year 2006
(January 1-December 31, 2006)” dated July 18, 2006 (English translation as
Attachment 10)

Document titled “F. Hoffmann-La Roche Announces 2006 Half Year Results”
dated July 20, 2006 (English translation as Attachment 11)

Document titled “Co-Development and Co-Marketing Agreement Secured for

. the Antiresorptive Bisphosphonate R484” dated September 12 2006 (English

translatlon as Attachment 12)

Document titled “F. Hoffmann-La Roche Announces Third Quarter Sales -
2006 dated October 17, 2006 (English translation as Attachment 13)

Sérm annual business report for the six-month period ended June 30, 2006 (brief
descnptlon of which 1s set forth in Exhibit B)

Artlcles of Incorporation (Enghsh translation as Attachment 14)

Commermal Register (brief description of which is set forth in Exhibit B)
Conﬁrmatlon of the adequacy of semi-annual securities report (for the six-month
perlod ended June 30, 2006), dated September 8, 2006 (brief description of which is
se;: forth in Exhibit B)

[End]




P - : Exhibit B

. Brief Description of Japanese Language Documents
P _ Designated in Exhibit A

semi-mnum Securities Report. dated September 8, 2006. for the six-month period
" ended June 30. 2006 :

Under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the “Securities Law™), the
Company is required to file with the Kanto Local Financial Bureau a Semi-annual
Secuntles Report within three months following the end of the first six months of
each fiscal year, i.e., June 30. A Semi-annual Securities Report filed by the Company
is made public at the Kanto Local Financial Bureau, the Tokyo Stock Exchange on
which the Company’s common stock is listed, and at the head office and major branch
ofﬁces of the Company pursuant to the Securities Law.

The information contained in the above-referenced Semi-annual Securities Report
1ncludes inter alia, an outline of the Company, its business conditions, major
shareholders, development of its stock price and management, for the six months
ended June 30, 2006. The interim financial statements for the six months ended June
30, 2006 are also included in the report (an English translation of such interim
financial statements is included in the brief announcements of interim consolidated
aﬂ@ non-consolidated financial statements for the first half of fiscal year 2006.12
ended June 30, 2006, which are submitted herewith as Attachments 1 and 2, and the
supplementary materials for consolidated interim financial results for the period ended
June 30, 2006, which is submitted herewith as Attachment 3).

Document coﬁcerning a Company Split (Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (split

cofn any) and Chugai Pharma Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (successor compan dated
Méiy 1/June 19, 2006

I,
UnLdeI the Commercial Code of Japan, the Company is required to keep the document
concerning a Company Split for 6 months from 2 Company Split Date at its head
office. Under the Regulation on Timely Disclosure of Corporate Information of
Issuers of Securities Listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (the “Timely Disclosure
Regulation”), it is filed by the Company with the Tokyo Stock Exchange, on which
the, Compa.ny s common stock is listed, and made public by the Tokyo Stock
Excha.nge

\l

The information contained in the above-referenced document includes, inter alia, the
process of the Company Split and the amount of assets/debts which were transferred.
The major information about the Company Split is included in the document titled
“Notice Concerning the Segregation of the Production Business Through A Company
Split” dated February 9, 2006, which was submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 13, 2006. '
Sem'i-a.nnual Business Report for the six-month period ended June 30, 2006

1 .




A Semi-annual Business Report is not required to be prepared, made public or
distributed to shareholders under Japanese law. The Company voluntarily prepares
and distributes the same to its shareholders, analysts and investors. :

The information contained in the above-referenced Semi-annual Business Report
includes, inter alia, a brief summary of the Company’s business conditions, its
financial statements, a brief summary of its stock and a brief summary of the’
Company. The major information about its business conditions and its financial
statements is included in the brief announcements of interim consolidated and non-
consolidated financial statements for the first half of fiscal year 2006.12 ended June
30, 2006, which are submitted herewith as Attachments 1 and 2.

Commercial Register

Commercial Register is administered by Legal Affairs Bureau and containing
information such as trade name, business purposes, number of authorized shares,
. location of head office, number of issued shares, amount of capital and names of
representative directors, directors and statutory auditors.

Confirmation of the Adequacy of Semi-annual Securities Report (for the six-month
period ended June 30, 2006). dated September 8, 2006

Under the Timely Disclosure Regulation, the Company is required to file with the
Tokyo Stock Exchange a Confirmation of the Adequacy of a Semi-annual Securities
Report, and such should be done, without delay, after the Company files its Semi-
annual Securities Report. A Confirmation of the Adequacy of a Semi-annual
Securities Report filed by the Company is made public by the Tokyo Stock Exchange
under the Timely Disclosure Regulation.

[End]




1)

2)

3)

4)

- 3)

6)

7)

8)

‘Name of Report or

Announcement

Annual securities report
(including audited financial
statements) and any amendment
t}}ereto (in Japanese)

Semi-annual securities report
(including interim financial
statements) and any amendment
thereto (in Japanese)

Securities registration statement
and any amendment thereto, or
shelf registration statement, any
amendment thereto and
supplemental documents thereto
(in Japanese) (if any)

E)%Uaordmary report and any
amendment thereto (in Japanese)
(ifany)

Ré:gistration of take-over bid and
any amendment thereto (in
Japanese) (if any)

-*;
Opinion statement report
concerning take-over bid and any

. amendment thereto (in Japanese)

(if any)

Report concerning take-over bid
and any amendment thereto (in
Japanese} (if any)

Réport as to acquisition of its own

Exhibit C

Source of

Latest Date of Publication,

Filing or Distribution
According to Law,
Regulation or Applicable
Rule

Within three months after the
end of the fiscal year
(December 31)

Reguirement

Articles 24, 24-2(1)
and 25 of the
Securities and

- Exchange Law of

Within three months after the

end of the interim period
(June 30) - ’

Prior to the offering or sale of
securities as stipulated in the
Securities Law

Without delay after the
occurrence of certain events
designated in the Securities
Law

Prior to such take-over bid

Promptly after the target
company of the take-over bid
makes public or represents to
its shareholders an opinion
regarding such take-over bid

Promptly after completion of

‘ such take-over bid

If a resolution concerning

Japan (the
“Securities Law™)

Articles 24-5(1), 24-
5(5) and 25 of the

- Securities Law

Articles 4, 5, 7, 23-3,

23-4,23-8 and 25 of
the Securities Law

Articles 24-5(4), 24-
5(5) and 25 of the
Securities Law

Articles 27-3, 27-8,
27-14 and 27-22-
2(2) of the Securities
Law

Articles 27-10 and
27-14 of the -
Securities Law

Articles 27-13 and
27-14 of the '
Securities Law

Articles 24-6 and 25




‘Name of Report or
Announcement

shares By the C'.ompany and any
amendment thereto (in Japanese)
~(if any)

iy

9)  Report on bulk holding and any

c}iange or amendment thereto (if
any)

I

10) ‘Bf%ief announcement of annual
financial results (in Japanese)

i+

i
f,

 Latest Date of Publication,

Page 2

Source of
Requirement

Filing or Distribution
According to Law,
Regulation or Applicable
Rule | .
acquisition of its own shares  of the Securities Law
is adopted at a general :

meeting of shareholders or a

meeting of the board of

directors, the status of such

acquisition shall be reported

every month from the month

in which such resolution is

adopted to a month which

shall be determined by a

general meeting of

shareholders or a meeting of

the board of directors as

required by the Company Law

of Japan (the “Company

Law”), by the 15th day of the

month following each such -

‘month :

Articles 27-23 and
27-25 of the
Securities Law

Within five business days
after the Company has
obtained more than five
percent of shares (including
certificates of stock
acquisition rights, bonds with
stock acquisition rights, etc.)
of any other listing company,
and within five business days
after the percentage of such
shares has increased or
decreased by more than one
percent '

-

Promptly after the settlement  Article 2(1)(IiI) of
of financial results the Regulation on

' : ‘ Timely Disclosure of
Corporate
Information of
Issuers of Securities
Listed on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange (the
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Name of Report or : _Latest Date of Publication, = Source of

A’nnouncement Filing or Distribution Requirement

According to Law, _
Regulation or Applicable

U

Rule
; ~ “Timely Disclosure
.' _ Regulation™) '
11) Brief announcement of interim Promptly after the settlement ~ Article 2(1)(III) of
ﬁfrilancia] results (in Japanese) of interim financial results - the Timely -
; ‘ Disclosure
Regulation
’ - !
12) Notice and documents with - Promptly after the occurrence  The Timely . .
re'ispect to material issues of the event giving rise to Disclosure !

concerning the Company which ~ such issues or at such time as  Regulation )
may have a material influence on  stipulated in the Timely . |

an investor’s decision (in Disclosure Regulation
Japanese) (if any)
I :
13)  Announcements and press None - None

releases material to an investment
decision (in Japanese or English)
(if any) o

14)  Annual business reportto None ' _ None
shareholders (including summary '
annual financial statements) (in
Japanese)

15) Se}ni-annua.l business report to None | None
shareholders (including summary
semi-annual financial statements)

(in Japanese) (if any) -
16)  Annual report (in English) (if None  None
any) '
17) Coi'porate Facts and Figures (in None : None
~ English) (if any)
18) Ar{icles oflncorboration (in By May 31, 2006 and Article 5(1)(1) of the
Japanese) promptly after its amendment  Timely Disclosure
| _ Regulation
19) Coipmercial Register Any change to the registered  Articles 911 and 915
(administered by Legal Affairs information is generally of the Company Law




20)

21)

L
"
i
1

i
4

Name of Report or

_Announcement

Bureau and containing
1nforrnat10n such as trade name,
business purposes, number of
authonzed shares, location of
head office and branch offices,
partlculars and number of each
class of issued shares, amount of
cap1ta1 and names of
representative directors, directors
and statutory auditors} (in
Japanese)

For the business year ended
December 31, 2006:

Convocatzon notice of an ordinary
general meeting of shareholders
(including balance sheet, profit
and loss statement, business

. report (eigyo houkokusho) and -

proposal for appropriation of
retained earnings), reference
materlals for exercise of voting
nghts and a voting card (in
Japanese)

1.
Fort the business years after the
above:

~ Convocation notice of an ordinary

general meeting of shareholders
(including balance sheet, profit
and loss statement, statement of
changes in equity and business
report (jigyo houkoku)), reference
materials for exercise of voting
rights and a voting card (in

J ap:;mese)

Cofwocation notice of an
extraordinary general meeting of

Latest Date of Publication,
Filing or Distribution
According to Law,
Regulation or Applicable
Rule

required to be reglstered
within two weeks from the
date of such change

Two weeks prior to the
meeting

Two weeks prior to the
meeting

" Two weeks prior to the

meeting

Page 4

Source of ) o
Requirement

Article 232 of the
Commercial Code of
Japan and Articles
21-2 and 21-3 of the
Special Exceptions
Law Concerning
Audit, etc. of a Joint-
Stock Company

Articles 299, 301,
(302, if an electronic
voting system is
adopted) and 437 of
the Company Law

Articles 299 and 301
(and 302, if an




22)
23)

24)

25)

26)

27)

28)

29)

30)

i

B .
Name of Report or
Announcement

shareholders, reference materials
for exercise of voting rights and a
voting card (in Japanese) (if any)

Statutory notices to shareholders
(other than 21) and 22) above) (in
Japanese)

Notice of resolutions of a general

meeting of shareholders (in

Japanese)
r

Vc;)luntary notices to shareholders
(in Japanese) (if any)

Statutory public notices (in
Japanese)

Voj_l‘luntary public notices (in
Japanese) (if any) -

Tnternet Website:
httﬁ://www.chugai-pharm.co.ip/
(injJapanese and English)

Management summary of
quarterly business results for first
and third fiscal quarters (in
Japanese)

Confirmation of the adequacy of
annual securities report, etc.

i :
Affidavit of timely disclosure

Page 5

Source of

Latest Date of Publication,
Filing or Distribution =~
According to Law,
Regulation or Applicable
Rule

At such time as required by
the Company Law’

None

None

At such time as required by
the Securities Law or the
Company Law

None

None

Promptly after the settlement
of such summary '

Promptly after the Company

files its annual securities
report and its semi-annual
securities report

Immediately after change of
the representative of the
Company and upon expiration
of five-year period after the
previous filing of the affidavit

Requirement

electronic voting
system is adopted) of
the Company Law

The Company Law
None

None

The Securities Law

or the Company Law

None

None

Article 2(5) of the
Timely Disclosure
Regulation -

Article 10 of the
Timely Disclosure
Regulation

Article 4-4 of the
Timely Disclosure
Regulation
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il ' ) :
! .
Name of Report or Latest Date of Publication,  Source of
Announcement Filing or Distribution Requirement
I ' According to Law,
‘ Regulation or Applicable
Rule
31) Corporate Governance Report By May 31, 2006 and Article 7-5 of the
and its amendment -promptly after its amendment Listing Rule of the
! _ Tokyo Stock
4 o Exchange, and
- Article 4-5 of the
: ‘ Timely Disclosure
; ' Regulation
i
|
I
i
)
i
i
i
|
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Creating Value for Life

INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Non-audited)

Name of Company;

Address of the Head Office:

Stock Listings:
Security Code No.:

Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Tokyo
4519

(URL http://www.chugai-pharm.co.jp/english)

Representative:
Contact:
Phone:

Date of Board Meeting for Settlement of Accounts: July 31, 2006
Parent Company Name: Roche Holding Ltd. {and other 2 compamcs)
Percentage of voting ownership held by the Parent Company: 50.6%
Application of US Accounting Standards: No

(for the first half of fiscal year 2006.12 ended June 30, 2006)

1. ConSotidated Operating Results for the First Half of FY 2006 ended June 2006

(1) Results of operations

July 31, 2006

1-1, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 2-Chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8324, Japan

Mr. Osamu Nagayama, President and CEQ, Chairman of the Board of Directors

Mr. Yoshio Itaya, Vice President and General Manager of Finance and Accounting Department
+81-(0) 3-3281-6611

Note: Amounts of less than one million yen are omitted,

- Net Sales % change | Operating Income % change | Recurring Profit % change
First half of FY 2006.12 ¥152,624 million (4.2) ¥27,412 million (31.3) ¥29,840 million (30.2)
First half of FY 2005.12 ¥159,243 million 12,1 ¥39,925 million 78.7 ¥42,734 million 80.8
FY ended December 2005 ¥327,155 million ¥79,168 million ¥82,091 miltion

Net Income per Share Net Income per Share

: Net Income % change (B asilc]: (Fully Diluted)
First half of FY 2006.12 ¥18,793 miilign (33.0) ¥33.94 ¥33.88
First half of FY 2005.12 ¥28,047 million 102.7 ¥51.03 ¥50.60
FY ended December 2005 ¥53.632 million ¥97.00 . ¥96.33

Note 1. Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and afftliates: none for the first half ended June 30, 2006, none for the first

half ended June 30, 2005, and none for the year ended December 31, 20085, respectively.

2. Average number of outstanding shares: 553,794,881 shares for the first half ended June 30, 2006, and 549,658,803 shares for the first
half ended June 30, 2003, and 550,619,420 shares for the year ended December 31, 2003, respectively.
3. Change.in method of accounting: None

4. % change for net sales, operating income, recurring profit and net income is presented in comparison with the previous first

kalf.
(2) Financial conditions .
: Total Assets Net Assets Equity Ratio Net Assets per Share
As of June 30, 2006 ¥434,372 million ¥378,194 million 86.6% ¥679.02
As of June 30, 2005 ¥420,962 million ¥345,545 million 82.1% ¥627.13
As of December 31, 2005 |  ¥456,442 million ¥368,306 millien 80.7% ¥665.29

Note!  Number of outstanding shares at the end of the first half or fiscal year (consolidated): 554,107,413 shares as of June 30, 2006,
350,998,318 shares as of June 30, 2005, and 553,269,240 shares as of December 31, 2003, respectively,

Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries accounted for by the-equity method:

Number of affiliates accounted for by the equity methed:

(5) Changes in scope of consolidation and application of equity method:;
Number of companies newly consolidated:
Number of company excluded from consolidation:

Number of companies newly accounted for by the equity method:

Number of companies excluded from the equity method of accounting:

Consolidated - 1

—
o,

1]

- (3) Results of cash flows A
f Cash Flows from Cash Flows from Cash Flows from Balance of Cash and
> Operating Activities Investing Activities Financing Activities Cash Equivalents
First half of FY 2006,12 ¥28,047 million ¥(3,277) million ¥(12,168) million ¥87,308 million
First half of FY 2005.12 ¥35,176 million ¥6,964 million ¥ (4.960) million ¥94 682 million
FY ended December 2005 ¥64,663 million ¥(35,459) million ¥(12,556) million ¥74,380 million
(4) Scope of consolidation and application of equity method:
Number of consolidated subsidiaries:




2. Forecast for the Year ending December 31, 2006 (January 1, 2006 - December 31, 2006)

S — Net Sales -Recurring Profit Net Income

FY ending December 2006 ¥322,500 million ¥56,400 million ¥34,400 million

" Reference: Projected net income per share for the year ending December 31, 2006 is ¥62.08.

Note: The Company bases its forecasts on assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under information available at the time of the forecasts.
Actual results may materially differ from these forecasts due to potential visks and uncertainties,
See page 8 as to the above forecasts.

Consolidated - 2
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PHARMACEUTICAL SEGMENT " (As of June 30, 2006)
"<Domestic> : <Overseas>
<R&D> Raw materials| <R &D, Production, Sales>
*Chugai Research Institute for Medical : _ -F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd.
Science Ine. Cellaborative | (Research and development, production
(Research and development of Contract fessach ) and sales of pharmaceuticals
pharmaceuticals) research M
*Chugai Clinical Research Center Co., Ltd.
(Clinical research for pharmaceuticals) <R&D>
*Chugai Pharma U.S.A,, LLC
<Production> (Clinicrjtl df:vclopmem and sub.mission
K . Contract @) Contract of applications for new drugs in the US)
Chugai Pharpa Manufacturing Co., Ltd. production E research . *Chugai Pharma Europe Ltd.
(Contract production of pharmaceuticals) o) {Clinical development and submission
E of applications for new drugs in Europe)
<Others> - #C&C Research Laboratories
*Chugai Business Support Co., Ltd. E (Research and development in Korea)
{Administrative support service) !
*Chugai Distribution Co., Ltd. E <Sales>
. . . .
" (Storage and transportation) @) Chugai Phe{rt.na M.arketmg Lid.
. : g::::;ct = (Sales administration /Sales of
*Medical Culture Inc. operation c pharmaceuticals in Europe)
(Literature documentation) g *Chugai Pharma U.K. Ltd.
##Eikou Kasei Co., Ltd. 5 | Products (Sales of pharmaceuticals in the UK)
(Discontinued after business transfer) : ®! *Chugai Pharma France S.A.S.
.O (Sales of pharmaceuticals in France)
'r' *CHUGAI sanofi-aventis S.N.C.
-] {Import and sales of pharmaceuticals,
P clinical development and submission of
applications for new drugs in Europe)
*Chugai Pharma Taiwan Ltd.
(Sales of pharmaceuticals in Taiwan)
<Others>
Qb | *Chugai US.A. Inc.
Operation (Holding company/ Business
administration in the US)
*Chugai Pharma (Shanghai) Consulting
Co., Ldd,
* Consolidated subsidiaries (Provision of medical information on
## Subsidi : lidated d for by th i hod drugs in China)
ubsidiary ?ot consolidated nor accounted for by the equity metho #Shanghai Chugai Pharma Co., Ltd.
# Affiliated companies not accounted for by the equity method (Applicd for liquidation)

- Subsidiary of the parent company

- There is no combany listed on a stock exchange,
- Chugai Techno Business Co., Ltd. changed its trade name to “Chugai Pharma Manufacturing Co., Ltd.” as of April 1, 2006,

. Consolidated - 3
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1. Basic Management Principles

In line with its strategic alliance with the world-leading pharmaccutical company F. Hoffmann-La Roche (Headquarters;
Swntzerland) {Roche), Chugai Pharmaceutical has established “dedicating itself to adding exceptional value through the
creation of innovative medical products and services for the benefit of the medical community and human health around the
world” as its mission and “becoming a top Japanese pharmaceutical company by providing a continuous flow of i mnovatwc
new drugs domestically and internationally” as its fundamental management objective.

As we work to achieve these goals, we will carry out our business activities in line with our core values of “putting
patients and customers first” and “committing to the highest ethical and moral standards as befits a company involved in the
healthcare industry.”

We firmly believe that putting these Basic Management Principles into practice is key to boostmg the corporate value of
the Chugai Group as well as the best way to meet the expectations of customers, shareholders, and all other stakeholders,
and will redouble efforts to realize them.

2. Basic Profif Distribution Principles
With regard to income distribution, we 2im to expand the return of profit for all shareholders. Taking due account of
short-term fluctuation in earnings by the effect of flu epidemic as well as medium-to-long-term strategic investment funding
needs and carnmgs prospects, while continuing to base dividend payments on consolldatcd results for each period, we aim to
ensure a consolidated dividend payout ratio of 30% on average.
In addition, internal reserves will be used to fund R&D activities in Japan and around the world as well as for making
capital investments related to new products to further enhance corporate value.

3. Medium-Term Strategy

As a pure-play prescription pharmaceuticals company, we will focus on reinforcing our unique foundation in R&D that is
driven by the most advanced technologies while working with our strategic partner Roche to enhance our clinical
development pipeline and product lineup with the aim of establishing Chugai as a leader in Japan,

Chugai's .new Medium-Term Business Plan for fiscal year 2005 through fiscal year 2010, “Sunrise 2010", aims to
enhance and expand the Company’s competitive advantage by leveraging its strengths and close collaborative relationship
with Roche as well as to further expand business through the development and marketing of innovative drugs in Japan and
overseas. Through the previous fiscal year, the Company had been working to achieve its mid-term business plan target of
“sales of ¥360 billion or more with operating profit ratio of 20% or more on the consolidated statements of income” (for the
fiscal year 2010). However, due to the increase of potential for significant company growth accelerated by well progress of
key pipeline products and strengthening competitiveness through the establishment of Strategic Marketing Unit, Chugai
decided in the current fiscal year to take on a greater challenge by establishing the new target of “sales of ¥450 billion with
operating profit of ¥100 billion on the consolidated statements of income” (for the fiscal year 2010).

4. Future Tasks
Under its Medium-Term Business Plan, “Sunrise 2010”, Chugai aims to dramatically bolster the competitiveness of its
research, development, manufacturing, marketing and sales operations as well as to achieve a high rate of growth. The plan
identifies the continuous development and acquisition of innovative new drugs, the maximization of product value, and
overseas expansion as key tasks.
(1) The Continuous Development of Innovative New Drugs

While working to develop antibody and other innovative new drugs, Chugai has endeavored to raise the level of its
technological skills, enhance its pipeline, and boost the efficiency of its R&D operations through research collaboration
that makes the most of its alliance with Roche.

Going forward, we will work to bring our technological skills to an even higher level, strengthen our network of
relationships with academic ventures and leading corporations, and reinforce our research foundation to foster the
ongoing development of innovative new drugs. In addition, we will proactively introduce promising development
candidates from Roche to further enhance cur development pipeline.

(2) The Maximization of Product Value

Under its alliance with Roche, Chugai has demonstrated substantial growth in the domestic market and is working to
maximize product value and increase its presence in priority fields by establishing strategic marketing functions and
consistently working to meet the needs of the medical community and the market from the early stages of research and
development through post-launch.,

_ In addition, the Company aims to capture a greater share of the domestic market and gain the No. 1 position in the
oncology, renal disease, and bone and joint domains by reinforcing its sales organization.

In the flscal year ending December 31, 2006, in line with our focus on applications submitted for many important new
products and expanded indications, we are planning to make strategic investments and intensify our efforts in preparation
for dramatic growth as a result of early product launches and product value optimization.

(3) Overseas Expansion

Overseas development will be a vital task as we work to accelerate our growth going forward. In Europe and the United
States, we wﬂl work with Roche to rapidly launch and promote the market penetration of MRA (product name: Actemra),
an humam;ed anti-human IL-6 receptor monoclonal antibody that has reached the final stage of clinical development, and
aim to achieve growth in overseas markets by developing and launching other innovative new drugs thereafter.

5. Relationship with the Parent Companies and Related Parties
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: Ratio of ownershi Stock exchange where shares
Parent company, etc. Altribute voting rights (%!)) issued by parent company are
g B8 listed
Roche Holding Ltd. Parent company (28'2) I?X’;;:ac?:g;)
Roche Finace Lid. Parent company (g(())'g)
Roche Pharmholding B.V. | Parent company | - 50.6

In the parenthesis of “Ratio of ownership voting rights” are shown ratio of indirect ownership, which is a breakdown.

(2) Business name of the most influential parent company and the reason of influence

Business name Roche Holding Ltd.
The two companies, Roche Finance Ltd. and Roche Pharmholding B.V., are virtually
Reasons holding companies. All decision-makings as Roche Group are done by Roche Holding
Ltd.

(3} Relationship with the Parent Companies and Related Parties
Position of the listed company in the company group at the Parent Companies, and other relations with the
Parent Companies

Based on the strategic alliance between Chugai and Roche, on October 1, 2002, Roche Holding Ltd. (head office:
Switzerland) obtained 50.1% of Chugai’s shares through a wholly owned submd;ary, Roche Pharmholding B.V. (Roche
Pharmholding) (head office: Netherlands).

Under the agreement to the alliance, Chugai has exclusive rights to market Roche’s pharmaceuticals in Japan, and has
first refusal rights regarding the development and marketing in Japan of all development candidates advanced by the
Roche Group.

In cases when Chugai decides that it requires a partner for the overseas development and/or marketing activities, Roche
will have -the right of first refusal regarding the development and marketing of Chugai’s development candidates in
markets outside Japan (excluding South Korea). The alliance aims to create a new business model that differs from
ordinary acquisitions and mergers,

Although Roche Pharmholding includes Chugai in its consolidated financial statements, Chugai functions as an
independent, listed company, and makes all of its own management decisions based on the principles of seli-governance.
In addition, transactions with the Roche Group are conducted in a fair manner at third-party transaction prices.

As of June 30, 2006, 4 of the 13 directors were members of the Executive Committee of the Roche Group. Chugai, with
an eye to enhancing management independence, maintains its management independence as fewer than half of its directors
are members of this committee. Furthermore, the Company has in place three outside directors who do not belong to the
Roche Group.

Roche Holding Ltd.

100% 100%
L 4 A 4

F. Hoffmann-La Roche Lid. Roche Finance Ltd,

100%
h 4

Roche Pharmholding B.V.

50.6% (Percentage of voting ownership)
Y

CHUGAI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.
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The Parent companies are the issuer of the shares that arc listed in foreign stock exchanges.

e e -

(5)Transactions with the Related Parties (from January 1 to June 30, 2006 of the fiscal year 2006)

Name of Common | Business Rate of Relationship Amount of Ending
Altribute company Address Stock contents voting lm:.rlocklng Rclaliorlshlp on Transaclion | etion *) Account bala.nce
ownership | direcior business (*)
- Acceptance of
Roche ' Direcily Equity bonds with — Bonds 300
Parenl | oy o emhalding Holfand Eurol Holding | o eg _— participaton and | Wwarranl righl .
company Woerden | 467,847,857 Company N
B.V, 50.6% Parinership Paymeni of bands . Accrued o
) interesl ~ | expenses
(*): Millions of Yen
1

Policy for trading terms and conditions
- For funding transactions, interest rates are reasonably determined in consideration with market interest rates.

»
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1. Business Overview
(1) Overview of First Six Months of Fiscal 2006
a) Sales Results

During the pericd under review, the environment surrounding the pharmaceuticals industry remained extremely
challenging due to such factors as the April 2006 reduction of NHI reimbursement prices and the continuation of
Government medical cost reduction policies.

In this business climate, Chugai sought to increase its importance as a member of the Roche Group and endeavored
to expedite product development, promote products in domestic and overseas markets, and implement marketing
campaigns based on sound ethical and scientific principles that promote appropriate drug use as well as customer
confidence,

As a result, net sales for the interim term amounted to ¥152,624 mllhon down 4.2% from the same period of the
prev:ous fiscal year. :

Sales were lower than in the same period of the previous fiscal ycar due to NHI reimbursement price revisions and
the decline in sales of the mainstay product Epogin, recombinant human erythropoietin, due to the introduction of the
flat-sum reimbursement system for dialysis treatment. In addition, sales of our anti-influenza agent Tamiflu were down
as this year’s moderate influenza season ended in February, earlier than the previous year when a large-scale outbreak
occurred in February and March. Sales of the recombinant human granulocyte-colony stimulating factor G-CSF
Neutrogin, however, rose on the back of strong performance in Europe. The anti-tumor agent Herceptin, an anti-HER2
monoclonal antibody, and the osteoporosis treatment Evista also exhibited stellar performance, with sales
outperforming those of the same period of the previous fiscal year.

Overseas sales, including exports, totaled ¥12,966 million, up 17.0% from the same period of the previous fiscal year.
Overseas sales accounted for 8.5% of the company sales total.

b) Financial Results

On the profit level, operating income amounted to ¥27,412 million, declining 31.3% from the same period of the
previous fiscal year, and recurring profit came to ¥29,840 million, down 30.2%, primarily reflecting lower sales
coupled with an increase in the cost of sales and higher R&D costs stemming from proactive R&D initiatives.

[nterim net income totaled ¥18,793 million due to the posting of extraordinary gains of ¥813 million on settlement
duc to office realignments and ¥840 million on the sale of marketable securities, which helped counter the recording of
an extraordinary loss of ¥766 million on office realignment costs and ¥245 million on sales of fixed assets.

Principal non-consolidated and consolidated performance figures and the ratios between those figures are as follows.

Non-Consolidated (A) Consolidated (B) B/A
(Billions of Yen) (Billions of Yen) (Times)
Net Sales 146.5 152.6 1.04
Operating Income 24.1 274 1.13
Recurring Profit 272 29.8 1.09
Net Income 17.6 18.7 1.07

The company plans to pay interim dividends of ¥12 per share.

"
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In Japan and abroad, Chugai is actively engaged in prescription pharmaceutical R&D activities.

Specifically, the Company is working to develop innovative products with global applications, focusing on the
oncology, renal disease, and bone and joint disease domains. In Japan, Chugai’s research bases in Fuji Gotemba and
Kamakurzi are collaborating to develop new pharmaceuticals and its research facilities in Ukima are conducting
industrialization research. Overseas, Chugai Pharma USA, LLC., and Chugai Pharma Europe Ltd., are cngaged in clinical
development activities in the United States and Europe, respectively.

In the interim period under review, R&D costs totaled ¥26,694 million.

(2) Outlook for the Current Fiscal Year

In the first half of the fiscal year 2006, the Japanese pharmaceutical industry remained under a harsh environment on
account of structural reforms in the healthcare system, inctuding the NHI price revision implemented in April.

The environment continues to be harsh, and the sales of our mainstay product, recombinant human erythropoietin
Epogin, is likely to decline due to the introduction of the flat-sum reimbursement system for dialysis treatment. On the
other hand, the shipment of our anti-influenza agent Tamiflu to local governments is likely to occur in the second half of
2006, which was initially projected in the next fiscal year. In addition, overseas sales of recombinant human G-CSF
Neutrogin were strong in the first half of the fiscal year, and sales of our anti-tumor agent Herceptin, a humanized
anti-HER2 monoclonal antibody is also expected to be strong throughout the year. As a result, we forecast consolidated
sales for the full term of ¥322.5 billion, an increase of ¥9.5 billion compared to the initial forecast.

For the consolidated operating profit for the full fiscal year, our forecast remains unchanged at ¥54.0 billion, due to
measures such as efforts to improve cfficiency in expenses, despite the decrease in gross profit due to the change in the
product mlx The forecast of recurring profit is revised, up ¥2.0 billion, to ¥56.4 billion, owing to the increase in
non- operatmg income compared to the initial projection, and consolidated net income is also revised to ¥34.4 billion, up
¥2.6 billion, due to the gain on sales of investment securities, and other factors.

Note: The above earnings outlook is based on information available at the time of preparation and contains
predictions considered reasonable by the Company. As such, this outlook is subject to potential risks and uncertainties
and actual results may differ from the forecast stated herein.
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(1) Overview of First half of Fiscal 2006 (January - June, 2006)

At the end of the consolidated interim period, total assets amounted to ¥434,372 million, ¥22,069 miilion lower than at
the end of the previous fiscal year. The principal reasons for this decline were lower balances of notes and accounts
receivable owing to the decline in net sales, Total liabilities stood at ¥56,178 million, ¥30,265 million lower than at the
end of the prior fiscal year. This decline was mainly due to the payment of outstanding payables and corporate taxes.
Working capital (current assets less current liabilities) amounted to ¥265,459 million, and the Company’s current ratio
was 630.15%, reflecting the Company’s sound financial position.

Net asset at the end of the interim period was ¥378,194 million, and the equity ratio was 86.6%, compared with 80,7%
at the end of the previous fiscal year,

(2) Cash Flows
- Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥28,047 million, a decrease of ¥7,129 million from the same

period last year. This decrease was mainly due to a decline in interim net profit before taxes and an increase in the
payment of corporate taxes, which offset a decline in accounts receivable. :

Net cash used in investing activities totaled ¥3,277 million, down of ¥10,242 million from the same period last year,
owing to an increase in acquisition of fixed assets and other factors.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥12,168 million, down of ¥7,208 miltion from the same period last
year, due to an increase in dividend payments.

Therefore, cash and cash equivalents at the end of the interim period under review amounted to ¥87,308 million,
¥12,927 million more than at the beginning of the interim period.

3) Financiz;i_l Indices

Interim period Interim period Interim period Year-end Year-end
for FY 2004.12 for FY 2005.12 for FY 2006.12 for FY 2004.12 for FY 2005.12
Equity ratio (%) 75.9% 82.1% 86.6% 78.0% BO.7%
Market value equity ratio {%) 232.7% 224.1% 297.9% 226.3% 306.7%
Redempticn of debt (years) 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0
Inlerest coverage ratio 160.3 351.0 377.1 169.3 284.8

Market value equity ratio: total market capitalization/total assets

Interest-bearing debt to cash flows from operating activities (Year-end): interest-bearing debt/operating cash flow (prior to

interest and income tax deductions)

Interest-bearing debt to cash flows from operating activities (Interim period): interest-bearing debt/ operating cash flow {prior

to interest and income tax deductions} x 2

Interest coverage ratio: operating cash flow (prior to interest and income tax deductions)/interest payments

* All of the figures in the aforementioned indices were calculated on a consolidated basis.

* Total market capitalization was calculated by multiplying the closing stock price at the end of the term by the total number of
outstanding shares at the end of the term {excluding treasury stock).

* Cash flows from operating activities (prior to interest and income tax deductions) in the consolidated statements of cash flow
were treated as an operating cash flow (prior to payment of interest and income tax deductions) in the calculations above.

* Interest-bearing debt refers to atl debt posted in the consolidated balance sheet upon which interest is paid.

* The amount of paid interest column in the consolidated cash flow statement was treated as an interest payment in the
calculations above.
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Chugai’s corporate performance is subject to major impact from a range of possible future events. Below, we list what we
consider the prmClpal sources of risk to the development of our business. We recognize the possibility of these risk events
actually occurring, and have prepared policies to forestall such risks and take appropriate measures when they do occur.

The future risks identified in this section are based on assessments made by the Company as of the end of the interim
consolidated fiscal period.

(1) New product development
With the goal of becoming a top Japanese pharmaceutical manufacturer capable of continuously delivering innovative
new drugs, Chugai aggressively pursues R&D in Japan and abroad. As of June 30, 2006, we had 30 themes in our
development pipeline, including new indicators for existing drugs. However, it will not be possible to bring all of them
smoothly through to market from the research and development stages, and we expect to have to abandon development in
some casés. When such a situation occurs, there is a possibility of major impact on our business performance and
financial position, depending on the product under development.

(2) Side effects
Medical products are approved in Japan by the Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare after stringent screenmg
However, advances in science and technology and years of careful post-marketing monitoring of pharmaceutical product
use mean that side effects are discovered in a good number of drugs. In cases where unexpected side effects occur after
marketing, there is a risk of significant impact on our business performance and financial position.

(3) Reform of Japan’s medical system
Japan's medical insurance system is being reformed against a backdrop of rapid demographic change, with a falling
birth rate and increasing numbers of aged citizens. As part of this process, measures are being taken to curb medical
expenses, Revisions have been made to the system of reimbursement of medical fees, and debate is continuing in such
areas as drug price reform. The Company's business performance could be significantly affected by future developments
in medical system reform, including drug price reform.

4) Intellecﬁ]al Property (IP) rights

The Company recognizes that it applies intellectual property rights in pursuing its R&D and other business activities,
and takes care to distinguish its own proprietary intellectual property rights and licensing arrangements recognized under
law. However, the possibility remains of our infringing on third-party intellectual property rights without being aware of
the fact. Major disputes over intellectual property rights relating to our business could have major impact on our business
performance.

In April 2004, we were sued by Ajinomoto Co., Inc., in the Tokyo District Court over alleged patent infringement
relating to the manufacturing processes used for some of our products. However, in March 2006, we won this lawsuit
when the court handed down a decision to dismiss the charges brought by Ajinomoto. In response, Ajinomoto then
appealed to the Intellectual Property High Court in April 2006 and the suit is currently under consideration by the court.
The Company denies patent infringement in this case, and is defending its position in the legal proceedings. However, a
verdict in émy way unfavorable could have an impact on our business performance and financial position.

5 Inventory from Roche
Our ailiance with Roche makes us Roche’s only pharmaccuhcal partner in the Japanese market; therefore we buy
inventory raw materials and other items from them. This inventory includes items that Roche may not be able to secure in
sufficient quantities when they are in short supply for production in the event of a sudden outbreak of a new type of
influenza or some other case. Should Chugai suffer such an inventory shortage, it could have a major impact on the
Company's operating results and financial position.

(6) Foreign éxchange-rate fluctoations -

The Coimpany’s business activities include exports and imports transactions denominated in foreign currencies. The
Company protects itself against exchange-rate and similar risk through hedging contracts, but it is impossible to
completely eliminate such risk, and there is a possibility, albeit minor, of adverse effects on the Company’s business
results and financial position from such risk,
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1. Mainstay Products by Product Applications

Product Application ) Mainstay products
Ccnlr.:_al Nervous System Amoban, Rohypnot, Laughing gas
Cardiovascular, Respiratory Sigmart, Renagel, Rythmodan, Bezalip, Preran, Lanirapid, Digosin
Gastrointestinal Kytril, Ulcerlmin .
Hormone, Vitamin, Tonic Alfarol, Oxarol, Rocaltrol, Tigason
Hematological Agents Epogin, Neutrogin
Metabolic Suvenyl, Evista, Euglucon, Cellcept
Antiéancer, Chemotherapeutic | Tamiflu, Rituxan, Herceptin, Furtulon, Xeloda, Picibanil
Antibiotic Rocephin, Cefotax
Other Pegasys, Benambax, Actemra
2. Production

(1) Production volume by product application
The Company and its group have been comprised of a single business segment of “Pharmaceutical business.”
Product volumé by product application is as follows: )

(Millions of Yen
. Change
: L First Half of FY 2006.12 . FY 2005.12
Product Application " ” {Compared to the First Half - ’

) (Jan, 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006) of FY 2005.12) (Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)
Central Néwous System 4,695 83) % 9,116
Cardiovascular, 17,712 .2) 36,661
Respiratory
Gastrointestinal 11,037 32.1 17,217
Hormone, Vitamin, Tonic 16,730 38.7 30,209
Hematologic Agents 52,082 56 101,548
Metabolic - : 10,172 344 17,343
Anticancer,

i . 28,249 492. 48,782
Chemotherapeutic 8,78
Antibiotic’ 3,269 3.1 6,890
Other | 6,205 2.2 11,678

Total 150,156 161 279,447

Note: Amounts are computed based on expected sales price net of consumption tax.
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Product volume by product application is as follows:

The Company and its group have been comprised of a single business segment of “Pharmaceutical business.”

{Millions of Yen
: . Change
. o First Half of FY 2006.12 . FY 2005.12
Product Application 5 (Compared to the First Half of ” =
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006) FY 2005.12) (Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec, 31, 2005)

Central Nervous System 1,671 45 % 3,212
Cardl.ovascular, 2043 8.2 5376
Respiratory
Gastrointestinal 27 (87.1) 626
Hormone, Vitamin, Tonic 444 253 774
Metabolic 5378 545 8,313
Anticancer

’ . 6,660 0.4 ’
Chemotherapeutic (04) 12,836
Other 78 (54.3) 228

Total 17,204 13.0 31,929

Note: Amounts are computed based on purchase price net of consumption tax

3. Orders

All of the Chugai Group’s productions are based on sales forecast, not on orders,

4. Sales by Product Application . .
The Company and its group have been comprised of a single business segment of “Pharmaceutical business.”
Product volume by product application is as follows:

(Millions of Yen

Product Application

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

Change
{Compared to the First Half
of FY 2005.12)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Central Nervous System 6,229 49 % 13,611
Cardiovascular, 18,178 (2.3) 39,541
Respiratory

Gastrointestinal 7,960 2.2 16,671
Hormone, ;jVitamin, Tonic 14,564 4.5 31,855
Hematoloéic Agents 47,463 (1.3) 104,047
Metabolic. 14,680 19.1 27,746
Anticancer ’

2 . 36,2 . g
Chemotherapeutic 04 (155) 77,493
Antibiotic 2,866 (1.6) 5,996
Other , 4,476 (8.3) 10,190

Total 152,624 (a.2) 327,155

Note: Amounts are net of consumption tax.
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{Millions of Yen)
: As of June 30, 2005 As of June 30, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Accounts )
Assets ‘ % ] % %
I Current assets:
Cash and deposits 94,682 87,308 94,380
Trade notes and accounts
receivable 104,262 100,545 118,873
Marketable securities 33373 63.923 ) 68,645
Inventories 44,722 46,122 47,440
Deferred tax assets 10,723 12,262 12,793
Other - 7,407 5,625 : 6,652
Reserve for doubtful _
accounts (326) (256) (347)
Total current assets 294,846 | 70.0 315532 | 726 328,439 | 72.0
11 Fixed assc@s:
1. Tangible fixed assets:
Buildings and structures 97,307 97,833 97,257
Accumulated depreciation 53769 | 43,538 58,729 | 39,104 57,110 | 40,147
Machinery and vehicles 53,708 59,262 59,597
Accumulated depreciation | 43367 | 11,340 44843 | 14,418 43925 | 15672
FUl'llittll':C and fixtures 32,440 | . 33,161 32,643
Accumulated depreciation 26,607 5,833 26,826 6,334 26,459 6,183
Land ' : 9,941 9,941 9,941
Construc:tion in progress 4,214 7.841 7,514
Total langxble fixed assets 74,868 77,640 79,459
2. [ntangibl§ fixed assets:
Software 4,509 3,893 4,008
Other - 2,364 1,905 ' 2,127
Total infangible fixed assets 6,873 5,799 6,136
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As of June 30, 2005 As of June 30, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Accounts
% % %
3. Investments and other assets:
Invcsﬁnent securities 15,268 15,709 18,482
Long-term loans 101 93 100
Dcfcrljcd tax asseis 15,613 9,834 11'499
Other: 13,670 10,034 12,629
Reserve for doubtful
accounts (281) (272) (304)
Total investments and
other assets 44,373 35,399 42,407
Total fixed assets 126,116 | 300 18840 | 274 128,003 | 280
Total assets 420,962 | 100.0 434,372  100.0 456442 | 100.0
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: As of June 30, 2005 As of June 30, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Accounts . '
Liabilities % % %o

1 Current liabilities:

Trade notes and accounts
payable : 11,469 | 19,301 20,989
Short-term borrowings 1,000 _ —_—
Other payables 4,446 3,172 13,467
Accrued income taxes 13,723 8217 18,820
Deferred tax liabilities 2 3 4
Accrued consumption
taxes 1,559 1,073 1,888
Accrued expenses 9,429 8,994 13,496
Reserve for bonuses to
employees 3,788 3,929 4,524
Reserve for bonuses to
directors i 57 -
Reserve for sales returns 70 35 43
Reserve for sales rebates 1,502 2662 1,884
Other 4,844 2,624 3,347
Total current liabilities 51,837 123 50,072 | 115 78,468 | 172
I1 Fixed liabilities:
Bonds Wlth warrant 2,404 300 901
Convertible bonds 1,306 155 447
Deferred tax liabilities 3 2 2
Reserve for employees’
retirement benefits 17,986 5,093 6,103
Reserve for officers’
retirement benefits 430 509 480
Other 33 43 38
Total fixed liabilities 2164 53 6,105] 14 7,975 L7
Total liabilities 74002 | 176 56,178 | 129 86443 | 189
Minority interests
Minorify interests 1,414 0.3 | — 1,692 0.4
Shareholders’ equity
I Common stock 71,261 | 169 _—| — 72,443 [ 159
Il Additional paid-in capital 91,115 217 — | — 92 296 20.2
111 Retained iearnings 187,861 44.6 —_— —_— 206,834 453
IV Net unrealized gain on '
securities . 2,842 0.7 — | — 3,781 0.8
V Foreign currency translation
adjustments 97 0.0 — | — 561 0.1
VI Treasury stock, at cost (7,631 | (1.8) —_ — 7610 | 1.6
Total shareholders’
equity | 345,545 [ 82.1 —_—| — 368,306 |  80.7
Total liabilities, minority
interests and 420,962 | 100.0 —_ — 456,442 | 100.0
shareholders’ equity

Consolidated - 15




(v1l110nS oI YeEn

‘ As of June 30, 2005 As of June 30, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Accounts
Net assets % % %
I Shareholders’ equity:
1. Common stock’ _ 72,891 J—
2. Additional paid-in capital - 92,743 o
3. Retained éarnings - 213,233 _
4. Treasury stock, at cost —_ (7.608) N
Total shareholders’ equity _ —_ 371259 | 85.5 _ —
II Valuation and translation
adjustments:
1. Net unrealized gain on .
securities - 3,990 -
2. Foreign currency translation _ 999 _
adjustments
To-lal valuation and translation _ . 4,990 11 _ L
adjustments
111 Minority interests — — 1,944 0.5 —_— —_—
Total net assets — — 378,194 | 871 — —_—
Total l‘lablllt]cs and net _ L 434372 | 1000 _ _
assets
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{Millions of Yen)

Accounts

First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. I, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun, 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2003)

I Net sales :
Il Cost of saies:
Gross prf:fit
Reserve }‘or sales returns

Net gross profit
III Selling, general and
administrative expenses: (* 1)

Operating income

IV Non-operating income:

Interest income

Dividend income

Life insurance dividends
received:

Patent royalties
Gazin on foreign exchanges
Gain on derivatives
Other ‘
v Non-opcr:;tiug eXpenses:

Interest expense

Loss on disposal of fixed
assets '

Reserve f(;r doubtiul accounts
Loss on inventories

Loss on foreign exchanges
Legal cosuts

Other |

Recurring profit -

VI Extraordinary gain:

Gain on the return of substituted
portion of welfare pension plan
*2)

Fee of Licensing Agrecment
3

Profit from sale of fixed
assets(*4)

Gain on sales of marketable
securities,

Gains on settlement due to

%

159,243 100.0

59,047 37.1

100,196 62.9

2 0.0

100,193 62.9

60,268 378

39,925 25.1
198
61

404

647
469
335

1,629 3,745 2.4

557 936 0.6

%

152,624
60,075

92,548
8) ] (0.0)
92,556

65,144

27412

3,990 2.6

281
245
161

592 1,562 1.0

%

327,155 | 100.0

119,447 36.5

207,707
_(23)
207,731

63.5
(0.0)

63.5

128,562

)
R
[

79,168

547
94

404

1,298

946
5,442 1.7

326
327

35
779

1,050 2,519 0.8

42,734 26.8

. 2,389 15

29,840 19.6

840

813 1,654 1.1

82,001 | 25.1

10,717

1,667

723

13,108 4.0

office realignments (*5)
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Accounts

First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. I, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2003)

LArAIiliVEo WL 1 )

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006}

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

VII Extraordinary loss:
Office cl;insing costs (*6)
Impairment loss (*7)

Loss on office realignment
costs (*8)

Loss on sales of fixed
assets (*9)

Income before income
taxes and minority
interests ;|

Income taxes:
Current
Deferred

Minority interests

Net income .

%

341

549
— 850 0.6
44232 | 278

15,098
439 | 15,537 9.8
648 0.4
28,047 17.6

% %

—_ 6,826

—_— 2,194

Ay

766 —_
245 1012 | 07 —_ 9,021 28
30,482 ¢ 200 86,178 | 263

8,861 29,778
2,042 10903 | 71 1,436 | 31,214 9.5
786 | 0.5 1,331 0.4
18,793 12,3 53,632 16.4
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(Millions of Yen
.,’ First Half of FY2005.12 FY 2005.12
Accounts - (Jan.1,2005-Jun.30,2005) | (Jan.1,2005-Dec.31,2005)
(Additional paid-in capital}
[ ::}d:;::nal paid-in capilal at beginning 90,387 90,387
Il Increase inf Additional paid-in capital:
Conversion of convertible bonds 276 705
New stock by preemptive right 450 1,200
. Gain on ;iisposal of treasury stock _ 0 727 1 1,908
[11 Additicnal paid-in capital at ending balance 91,115 92,296
{Retained earnings)
[ Retained earnings at beginning of year 164,854 ' 164,854
I Increase in retained earnings:
Net income 28,047 28,047 53,632 53,632
Il Decrease in retained earnings:
Dividendis paid 4,946 11,558
Bonuses to directors 94 5,040 94 11,652
IV Retained carnings at ending balance 187,861 206,834
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(Millions of Yen

First Half of FY 2006.12 (Jan, 1, 2006 ~ June. 30, 2006)

Shareholders” equity

- . Total
Additional Retained Treasury stock,
Common stock . ) ) shareholders’
paid-in capital carnings at cost )
equity
Bal fD b
alance as OF Decembet 72,443 92,296 206,834 (7,611) 363,962
31, 2005
Changes:
New stocks issuance 447 445 893
Dividends paid {12,171) (12,171)
Bonuses to directors (222) (222)
Interim net income 18,793 18,793
Purchase qf treasury (14) (14)
stocks
Deposition of treasury i 17 19
stocks
Net changc:s except for
shareholders’ equity
Net changes - 447 447 6,399 3 7,297
Bal f June 30,
arance as of e 72,891 92,743 213,233 (7,608) 371,259
2006
(Millions of Yen)
Valuation and transiation adjustments .
. Forei .
Net unrealized oreign Total valuation Minority
currenc . Total net assets
. Y .
gainon . ) and translation Interests
.. translation )
securities . adjustments
adjustments
Balance as of December 3,781 561 4,343 1,692 369,998
31, 2005
Changes:
New stocks issuance 893
Dividends paid {12,171)
Bonuses to directors (222)
Interim net income 18,793
Purchase of treasury (14)
stocks
Deposition of treasury 19
stocks
-Nel changcs;“ cxcc;')l for 209 437 646 251 898
shareholders’ equity’
Net changes 209 437 646 251 8,195
Bal £] -
ance as of June 30, 3,990 999 4,990 1,944 378,194
2006 g
“ Consolidated - 20
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(Millicns of Yen)
: First Haif of First Half of FY 2005.12
Accounts FY 2005.12 FY 2006.12 {Jan.1,2005-Dec 3!,
(Jan.1,2005-Jun.30,2005) J (fan.1,2006-Jun30,2006) 2005)
1 Cash flows from operating activities
Income befare income taxes and minority interests 44,232 30,482 86,178
Depreciaticn and amortization 6,734 6,440 16,980
Impairment loss 549 _ 2,194
Decrease in reserve for employces® retirement benefits (2,199) (1,010) {14,082)
Interest and dividend income (259) (1,422) (642)
Interest expense . 124 124 326
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 151 157 327
Loss (profit) from sales of fixcd assets (716) 120 (802)
Loss (gain) on sales and revaluation of invesiment securities (194) (840} 206
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts reccivable 441 18,395 (14,135)
Decrease in inventories 13,203 1,373 10,526
(Decrease) increase in notes and accounts payable (7,706) (1,721} 1,794
Decrease in accrued consumption tax (888) (814) (560)
Others (8,642) (5,370) (4,181)
Subtotal 44,828 45915 84,131
Interest and dividends received 259 1,339 582
Interest paid . {128) (125) (297)
Income taxes paid (9,782) (19,141) (19,753)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 35,176 28,047 64,663
Il Cash flows fram investing activities -
Purchases of marketable securities (35017) (76,937) (123,096)
Proceeds from sates of marketable securities 41,102 84,501 93,906
Purchases of investment securities (1,096) ) (3,132)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 354 1,026 393
Purchases of fixed assets (3.813) (12,377) (9,102)
Proceeds fromﬂ sales of fixed assets 5,363 504 5472
Net decrease (increase) in short-term loans 0 0 0
Net decrease (increase) in long-term loans 7l 6 70
Proceeds from sales of subsidiary’s stock accompanied with _ _ 29
change in scope of consolidation ;
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activitics 6,964 (3.277) (35,459)
Il Cash flows from financing activities
Net {decrease) in long-term debt _— _— (1,000}
Redemption of bonds ® (0) ()
Net (increase) in treasury stock (14 3 4
Cash dividerds paid {4,946) (12,171) (11,558)
Cash dividends paid to minority shareholders —_— —— (3)
Net cash used in financing activities {4,960) (12,168) (12,556)
i
v Effc.ct of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 121 326 353
equivalents’
V  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 37,302 12,927 16,999
VI Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 57,380 74,380 57,380
VI Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 94,682 87,308 74,380
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Basis of Preparmg Interim Consolidated rmnancial >tatements

(1) Number of consolidated sub51d1ar1es
15 companies
Major subsidiaries:
- Chugai Pharma Marketing Lid.

Chugai Pharma (Shanghai) Consulting
.Co., Ltd, has been included in the scope
of consolidation due to its establishment
in2005.

Tohoku Chugai Pharmaceutical Co, Ltd.
has been excluded from the scope of
consolidation of the Balance Sheet as of
June 30, 2005 because they had little
value in their materiality. Their profit
and loss statement during the first half
period of 2005 is consolidated in the
Consolidated Statement of Income.

{2) Non-consolidated subsidiaries:
Eiko Kasei Co., L4d., transferred
nonprescription products business and
Shanghai Chugai Pharma Co., Lid. have
been excluded from the scope of
consolidation, because they had little value
in their materiality,

2, Application of Equity Method

{1) Number of mnon-consolidated subsidiaries
and affiliates accounted for by the equity
method: None

(2} Companies to which the cquity method kas
not been apphed
Subsidiaries: Eiko Kasei Co Ltd. and

Shanghai Chugai Pharma Co,,
iLtd,

Affiliate: C&IC Research Laboratories

Invesimenis m these companies have bgen
* carried at cost and the effect of their net
income and retained carnings on the
consolidated financial results of the
Company haa;i little value in their
materiality. !
a
3. Treatment for the difference in fiscal half-year
period
Closing date in ﬁscal half-year period of all
subsidiaries is in agreement with the Company.

(1) Number of consolidated subsidiaries:
15 companies
Major subsidiaries:
Chugai Pharma Marketing Ltd.
Chugai Pharma Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Chugai Techno Business Co., Lid.,
subsidiary of Chugai, whose trade name
was changed to “Chugat Pharma
Manufacturing Co., Lid.” as of April 1,
2006 and has succeeded Chugai
manufacturing function since May 1,
2006.

{2) Non-consolidated subsidiaries:
Same as in the left

2. Application of Equity Method
" (1) Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries
and affiliates accounted for by the equity
method: Same as in the lefi

(2) Companics to which the equity method has
not been applied:
Same as in the left

3. Treatment for the differcnce in fiscal half-year
period:
Same as in the left

First Half of FY 2005.12 First Half of FY 2006.12 FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005) (Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun, 30, 2006) (Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)
1. Scopc of Consolidation 1. Scope of Consolidation 1. Scope of Consolidation

(1) Number of consolidated subsidiaries:
L5 companies
Major subsidiaries:
Overseas: Chugai Pharma Marketing
Ltd,

Chugai Pharma (Shanghai) Consulting Co.,
Ltd. has been included in the scope of
consolidation due to its establishment in
2005,

Tohoku Chugai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.
has been excluded from the scope of
consolidation of the Balance Sheets as of
Dec 31, 2005 because we sold their stock.
Their profit and loss statement during the
first half pericd of 2005 is consolidated in
the Consolidated Statements of Income.

(2) Non-consolidated subsidiaries:
Same zs in the left

‘2. Application of Equity Method

{1) Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries
ang affiliates accounted for by the equity
method: Same as in the left

(2) Companies to which the equity method has
not been applicd:
Subsidiaries; Eiko Kasei Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai Chugai Pharma Co.,
Lid.
Affiliate; C&C Research Laboratories

Investments in these companies have been
carried at cost and the effect of their net
income and retained earnings on the
consolidated financial results of the Company
had little value in their materiality,

3. Treatment for the Difference in Fiscal Period
Closing date of all subsidiaries is in agreement
with its Company.

o
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" First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006,12-
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

4, Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Basis and method for valuation of
significant assets
a. Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securitics:
Held-to-maturity securities are stated
by the amortized cost method.

Other securities:

- Securities with market value are stated
at fair value at closing date for the
fiscal half-year period, and changes in
fait value are recorded as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity at
an amount net of tax, and the moving
average method is used to calculate the
original éost.

- Securitics without market value are
stated at cost determined by the
moving average method.

b. Basis of valuation of derivatives:
Derivatives are revaluated by the market
value method.

¢, Inventories’

- Inventories other than woerk in process
are presented at cost determined
principally by the average methed.

- Work in process is stated at cost
determined principally by the first-in,
first-out method.

{2) Method of depreciation

a. Tangible fiXed assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is
calculated primarily by the
dectining-balance method.

b. Intangible fixed assets
Depreciation of intangible fixed assets is
calculated primarily by the straight-line
method., *

Dcprecialioni‘.;f software for internal use is
calculated based on the usable period (five
years).

(3) Accounting for important reserves
a. Reserve fof doubtful accounts
In order to prepare for losses of bad
credits such as account receivables or
loans and for revaluation losses on
financial instruments, except valuation
losses on sccurities, the reserve for
doubtful accounts is provided for at
uncollectable amouni based on the
historical percentage of credil losses for
general credits, and is provided for at
amount that is estimated individually
considering these possibilities of
" collection for bad credits that is highly

possible to fail and these possibilities of
future loss on financial instruments.

. Reserve for bonuses to employees
The reserve for bonuses to employees is
presented at an estimated amount of the
liability for bonuses incurred for the

o

4. Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Basis and method for valuation of
significant assets
a. Financial assets

Held-to-maturity securilies:
Held-to-maturity securities are stated
by the amortized cost method.

Other securilies:

- Securities with market valuc are stated
at fair value at closing date for the
fiscal half-year period, and changes in
fair value are recorded as a separate
component of net assets at an amount
net of tax, and the moving average
method is used to calculate the original
cost, '

- Securitics without market value are
stated at cost determined by the moving
average method.

b. Basis of valuation of derivatives:
Same as in the left

c. Inventories
Same as in the left

(2) Method of depreciation
Same as in the left

(3) Accounting for important reserves
a, Reserve for doubtful accounts
Same as in the left

b. Reserve for bonuses to employees
Same as in the lefi

4, Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Basis and method for valuation of
significant assets
a. Financial assets

Held-to-maturity securities:
Held-to-maturity securities are stated
by the amortized cost method

Other securilies:

- Securities with market value are stated
at fair value at closing date for the
fiscal year, and changes in fair value
are recorded as a separate component
of shareholders’ equity at an amount
net of tax, and the moving average
method is used to calculate the original
cost.

- Securities without market value are
stated at cost determined by the moving
average method.

b. Basis of valuation of derivatives:
Same as in the lefi

c. Inventories
Same as in the left

{2) Mcthod of depreciation
Same as in the left

{3) Accounting for important reserves
a. Reserve for doubtful accounts
Same as in the left

" b. Reserve for bonuses to employees
The reserve for bonuses 10 employees is
presented at an estimated amount of the
liability for bonuses incurred for the fiscal
year.

fiscal half-year periods.
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First Half of FY 2005.12

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan, 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12

{Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

[

n

[

d. Reserve for sales returns
The reserve for sales returns is calculated
by multiplying a sales credit at the end of
fiscal haif-year period by the ratio of
returns to sales of the latest two fiscal
years and by the ratio of current sales
profit for the fiscal half-year periods, in
order to prepare for a loss arising from-
sales returns subsequent to the interim
balance shect dale.

. Reserve for sales rebates
The reserve for sales rebates is computed
based on sales amount in order 1o prepare
for any expenditure on sales rebates
subsequent to the first half of this fiscal
year. ‘

[1]

f. Reserve for cmployecs’ retirement
benefits
The reserve for employces’ retirement
benefits is stated at the amount required
to cover the liabilities as of the interim
balance sheet date, and is based on the
Company’s estimate of its liability for
retirement benefits and pension assets as
of the interim balance sheet date.
This reserve also includes the amount
which would be required to be paid if all
eligible employees of domestic
subsidiaries voluntarily terminated their
employment as of the interim balance
sheet date.:
Prior service cost is being amortized as
incurred by the declining-balance method
over 10 years which is shorter than the
average remaining years of service of the
eligible employees.
Actnarial gain and loss are amortized by
the declining-balance method over 10
years which is shorter than the average
period of the remaining years of service
of the eligible employees and are
amortized from following year in which
the gain of loss is recognized.
The rcscrvje for employces’ retirement
benefits of the foreign subsidiaries is
calculated in conformity with accounting
standards of their countries of domicile.

a

o

=

¢. Reserve for bonuses to directors

The reserve for bonuses to directors is
presented at an estimated amount of the
{iability for bonuses incurred for the fiscal
half-year periods.

Reserve for sales retums
Same as in the left

. Reserve for sales rebates
Same as in the left

. Reserve for employees® retirement
benefits
The reserve for employees’ retirement
benefits is stated at the amount required to
cover the liabilities as of the interim
batance shect date, and is based on the
Company's estimate of its liability for
retirement benefits and pension assets a5
of the interim balance sheet date.,
This reserve also includes the amount
which would be required to be paid if all
eligible employees of domestic
subsidiaries voluntarily terminated their
employmeni as of the interim balance
sheet date.
Prior service cost is being amortized as
incurred by the declining-balance method
over 10 years which is shorter than the
average remaining years of service of the
cligible employees.
Actuarial gain and loss are amortized by
the declining-balance method over {0
years which is shorter than the average
period of the remaining years of service of
the cligible employees and are amortized
from following year in which the gain or
loss is recognized.
The reserve for employees’ retirement
benefits of the foreign subsidiaries is
calculated in conformity with accounting
standards of their countries of domicile.

c

d

f.

{Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

. Reserve for sales returns
The reserve for sales returns is calculated
by multiplying a sales credit at the end of
fiscal year by the ratio of returns to sales
of the latest two fiscal years and by the
ratio of current sales profit for the fiscal
year, in order to prepare for a loss arising
from sales returns subsequent to the
balance sheet date.

. Reserve for sales rebates

The reserve for sales rebates is computed
based on sales amount in order to prepare
for any expenditure on sales rebates
subsequent to this fiscal year.

Reserve for employees’ retirement
benefits

The reserve for employees’ retirement
benefits is stated at the amount required
to cover the liabilities as of the balance
sheet date, and is based on the Company’s
estimate of its fiability for retirement
benefits and pension assets as of the
balance sheet date.

This reserve also includes the amount
which would be required to be paid if all
eligible employees of domestic
subsidiaries voluntarily terminated their
employment as of the balance sheet date.
Prior service cost is being amortized as
incurred by the declining-balance method
over 10 years which is shorter than the
average remaining years of service of the
elipible employees.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized by
the declining-balance method over 10
years which is shorter than the average
period of the remaining years of service
of the eligible employees and are
amortized from following year in which
the gain or loss is recognized.

The reserve for employees’ retirement
benefits of the foreign subsidiaries is
calculated in conformity with accounting
standards of their countries of domicile.

1

I3
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First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2003)

{Additional information)
Retumn of substitutional employees’
pension fund

‘The Company received approval of the
exemption from the obligation for
payments of benefits related to future
employee services with respect to the
substitutional portion of ils employee
pension fund. The approval was
received from the Minister of Health,
Labour and Welfare on October 7, 2004,
in accordance with the enforcement of
the Defined-Benefit Corporate Pension
Law.

The amount of pension plan assels
cxpected to be transferred back to the
government {minimum legal reserve)
was measured at ¥8,501 million as of the
balance sheet date, If the payment of the
amount were made on that date, the
expecied gain in accordance with
paragraph 44-2 of “Practical Guideline
for Accounting of Retirement Benefits
{Interim Report)” (Report No,13 of the
Commiitee of Accounting System of
Association of Japanese Cenified Public
Accountant) would be ¥10,844 million.

. Reserve for officers’ retirement benefits
The reserve for officers’ retirement
benefits is recorded at an smount based
on manageincnt‘s estimate, which would
be required to be paid if all officers
resigned as of the interim balance sheet
date on the basis of the Company's

g. Reserve for officers’ retirement benefits
Same as in the left

{Additional information)

Return of substituted portion of welfare
pension plan to the government

The Company received approval of the
return of the pension plan assets related
to prior employee services with respect
to the substituted portion of welfare
pension plan. The approval was received
from the Minister of Health, Labour and
Welfare on August 1, 2005, and the
Company returned the amount of
pension plan asset {minimum legal
reserve) 10 the government on
November 16, 2005, in accordance with
the enforcement of the Defined-Benefit
Corporate Pension Law.

The amount affecting the current income
statement! was ¥10,717 million, recorded
as extraordinary gain,

g. Reserve for officers’ retirement benefits
The reserve for officers’ retirement
benefits is recorded at an amount based
on management’s estimate, which would
be required to be paid if all officers
resigned as of the balance sheet date on
the basis of the Company’s internal
repulations,

internal regulations.
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First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
{Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006}

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

(4) Foreign currency translation
The revenuc and expense accounts of the
foreign consolidated subsidiaries are
translated into yen at the rates of exchange
in effect at lhe_: interim balance sheet date,
and, except for the components of
shareholders’ equity, the balance sheet
accounts are also translated at the rates of
exchange in effect at the interim balance -
shect date. The components of sharcholders’
equity are translated at their historical rates.
Translation differcnces arc presented as
translation adjustments in shareholders’
equity of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements,

(5) Accounting for lease transactions
Non-cancelable lease transactions are
primarily accounted for as operating leases
(regardless of whether such leases arc
classified as operating or finance leases)

except that lease which stipulate the transfer -

of ownership of the leased assets to the
lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

(6) Other
Income and expenses for the Company and
its domestic subsidiarics are recorded at net
of consumption taxes.

. Basis of evaluation of consolidated
subsidiaries
Inter-company investments and the net equity of
companies acquifed are climinated in
accordance with the partial fair value method.
This means that a portion of the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary that is allocable to
the parent is re-measured at fair value as of the
date of the investment, and the remaining
portion of the assets and liabilities to be
allocated 1o the minority interest(s) is carried at
book value. :

. Excess of costs over net assets of acquired
subsidiaries ;
The excess of costs over the net assets of
gcquired subsidiarics is amortized over 20 years
using the straight-line method or amortized

fully when acquired if the amount is immaterial,

. Appropriations of retained earnings
The accompanying interim consolidated
statements of retained eamings for fiscal
half-year period have been prepared based on
the appropriations approved by shareholders
through the end of the fiscal half-year period.

8. Scope of Cash Equivalents in Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows (for fiscal half-year
period)

All highly liquid investments with maturitics of
three months or less when purchased and which
are readily convertible into cash and are
exposed to insignificant risk of changes in
value, are considered cash equivaients.

(4) Foreign currency translation
The revenue and expense accounts of the
foreign consolidated subsidiarics are
translated into yen at the rates of exchange
in effect at the interim balance sheet date,
and, except for the components of
sharcholders’ equity, the balance sheet
accounts are also translated at the rates of
exchange in effect at the interim balance

sheet date, The components of sharcholders’

equity are translated at their historical rates.
Translation differences are presented as
translation adjustments in net assets of the
accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

{5) Accounting for lease transactions
Same as in the left

(6) Other
Same as in the left

5. Basis of evaluation of consolidated subsidiarics
Same as in the left

6. Excess of costs over net assets of acquired
subsidiaries
Same as in the left

o0

. Scope of Cash Equivalents in Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows (for fiscal half-year
period}

Same as in the left

(4) Foreign currency translation :
The revenue and expense accounts of the
foreign consolidated subsidiaries are
translatcd into yen at the rates of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date, and,
except for the components of sharcholders”
equity, the balance sheet accounts are also
translaled at the rates of exchange in effect
81 the balance sheet date. The components
of sharcholders’ equity are translated at their
historical rates. Translation differences are
presented as translation adjustments in
sharcholders’ equity of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

(5) Accounting for lease transactions
Same as in the left

{6} Other
Same as in the left

5. Basis of evaluation of consolidated subsidiaries

Same as in the left

6. Excess of costs over net assets of acquired

subsidiaries
Same as in the left

7. Appropriations of retained earnings

The accompanying consolidated statements of
retained carnings for fiscal year period have
been prepared based on the appropriations
approved by shareholders through the end of the
fiscal year,

. Scope of cash equivalents in consolidated

statements of cash flows

All highly liquid investments with maturities of
three months or less when purchased and which
are readily convertible into cash and are
exposed to insignificant risk of changes in
value, are considered cash equivalents.
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First Half of FY 2005.12
. (Jan. I, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Impairment Accounting for Fixed Assets

The Company adopted early impairment
accounting standards during the fiscal period
under review, These standards are based on the
"Report on Accotnting Standards for Impaired
Fixes Assets”, published by Business
Accounting Couhcil on August 9, 2002, and
the “Implementation Guidelines on Accounting
Standards for Impaired Fixes Assets” in the
"Accounting Standard Implementation
Guideline No. 6%, published by the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan on October 31,
2003. From the fiscal year closing on March
31, 2004, these standards are applicable on its
fiscal statements. This caused a loss of ¥549
million in the interim income before income
taxes. ;

Accumulated impairment losses are deducted
directly from the value of each asset according
to the revised regulations of interim financtal
statcments,

Accounting for employees’ pension and

retirement benefits
The Company adopted new accounting
standard, “Partial Revision of Accounting
Standards for Retirement Benefits™
{Accounting Standard Statement No.3, issued
on March 16, 2005) and “Implementation
Guidance for Partial Revision of Accounting
Standard for Retirement Benefits” (Accounting
Standard Guidance No.7, issued on March 16,
2005) from the fiscal period under review. The
cffect of this adoption was to increase
operating profit, recurring profit and income
before income taxes by ¥23% million.

Accounting for directors’ bonus
The Company adopted new accounting
Standard, “Accounting Standard for Directors’
Bonus™ (Accounting Standard Statement No.
4, issued on November 29, 2005) from the
fiscal period under review, This adoption
resulted in the decrease of operating profit,
recurring profit and interim net income before
income taxes by ¥57 million,

Presentation of net asscts in the balance sheet
The Company adopted new accounting
standard, “Accounting Standard for
Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance
Sheet” (Accounting Standard Statement No.5,
issued on December 9, 2005) and "Guidance
on Accounting Standard for Presentation of
Met Assets in the Balance Sheet” (Accounting
Standard Guidance No.8, issued on December
9, 2005) from the period under review.

Total amount of conventional sharcholders
equity was ¥376,250 million.

Due to corporate law regarding financial
statements, net assets in the interim balance
sheet was shown based on the revised
regulation.

Impairment Accounting for Fixed Assets
The Company adopted early impairment
accounting standards from the fiscal year
2005. These standards are based on the
"Report on Accounting Standards for Impaired
Fixes Assets”, published by Business
Accounting Council on August 9, 2002, and
the "Implementation Guidelines on
Accounting Standards for Impaired Fixes
Asscts” in the "Accounting Standard
Implementation Guideline No. 6%, published
by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
on October 31, 2003, From the fiscal year
closing on March 31, 2004, these standards are
applicable on its fiscal statements, This caused
a foss of ¥2,194 million in the income before
income taxes.
Accumulated impairment losses are deducted
ditectly from the value of each asset according
to the revised regulations of financial
statements.
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First Half of FY 2005.12
'(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun, 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

Legal costs

“Legal costs” was included in “Other” of non- operating expenses until
previous interim period. From this interim period, as it exceeds over 10 %
of total non-operating expenses, “Legal costs” is described out from the
“Other”. “Legal costs” of previous interim period in the “Other” was ¥16

million,
Additional Information
First Half of FY 2005.12 First Half of FY 2006.12 FY 2005.12

(Jan, 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

(Jan, 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Pro forma standard taxation
Pro forma standard taxation system was
introduced as from the fiscal year starting on
and after April 1, 2004, based on “the law for
partial revision of local tax law, etc.”(Code 9
of 2003} issucd on March 31, 2003,
The company included business tax on value
added and on capital in selling and general
administration expenses, according to
“Practical treatment for representation of pro
forma pant of business tax on income
stalernent”(in thé Repont of practical
compliance No.12 issued on February 13, 2004
by the corporate accounting standard
committee).
As a result of this, selling and general
administration expenses increased by ¥413
million, and  operating profit, recurring profit,
and interim net profit before tax decreased by
¥4 15 million.

Pro forma standard taxation
Pro forma standard taxation system was
introduced as from the fiscal year starting on
and after April 1, 2004, based on “the law for
partial revision of local tax law, ete."(Code @
of 2003) issued on March 31, 2003,
The company included business tax on value
added and on capital in selling, general and
administrative expenses, according to
“Practical treatment for representation of pro
forma pant of business tax on income
statement”(in the Repont of practical
compliance No.12 issued on February 13,
2004 by the comporate accounting standard
committee).
As a result of this, selling, general and
administrative expenses increased by ¥819
million, and operating profit, recurring profit,
and net profit before tax decreased by ¥819
milfion.

Notes

1, Notes to ti;e Consolidated Balance Sheets

First Half of FY 2005.12
{As of June 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
{As of June 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
{As of December 31,2005)

{1} Contingent liabilitics

: {Millions of Yen)
Guarantees of loans 887
to employees”

(2) Commitment line {loan framework) contract
The Company maintains commitment line
contracts with thirteen financial institutions in
order to allow the efficient procurement of
working capital. The balances of loans, ctc. at
the fiscal half-year end were as follows;

(1) Contingent liabilities
{Millions of Yen)
Guarantees of loans 132

to employees

(2) Commitment line (loan framework) contract
The Company maintains commitment line
contracts with thirteen financial institutions in
order 1o allow the efficient procurement of
working capital. The balances of loans, etc. at
the fiscal half-year end were as follows;

(1} Contingent liabilities
(Millions of Yen)
Guarantees of loans 8Ll

to employees

(2) Commitment line {(loan framework) contract
The Company maintains commilment line
contracts with thirteen financial institutions in
order to allow the efficient procurement of
working capital. The balances of loans, etc in
the balance sheet date was as follows;

: (Millions of Yen) {Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
Total commitments 20,000 Total commitments 30,000 Total commitments 30,000
Commitments used — Commitments used —_— Commitments used —_
30,000 Commitments unused 30,000 Commitments unused 30,000

Commitments unused
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2. Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Income

First Half of FY 2005.12
{Jan. L, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
{Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

(1) Significant components of SG&A expenses

: {Mitlions of Yen)
Depreciation 935
Reserve for doubtful 2141
accounts | ’
Reserve for bonuses to 633
employces
Reserve for officers’ 4

retirement benefils

Payroll expenses 11,596
Selling expenses 6,034
22,893

R&D expenses

1
P

@ e

(3) Fec for licensing agreement
Milestone payments received based on the
licensing agreé_menl related to the
co-development and co-marketing of MRA.
iy

(4) Profit from sales of fixed assets
The profit was from the sale of land, building,
cte. of old Kagamiishi factory, and the sale
of land of old Matsunaga factory.

©®) e

I

(6) Office closing costs
This is mainly retirement of equipment, etc.

(1) Sigaificant components of SG&A expenses

{Millions of Yen)
Depreciation 1,006
Reserve for doubtful 2472
accounts
Reserve for 57

directors’ bonuses
Reserve for bonuses

374
to employees
Reserve for officers” 28
retirement benefits
Payroll expenses 12,214
Selling expenses 4,774
R&D expenses 25,604
(2) [ —
3) [ —
4) rrmmmpmmmmennan

(5) Gains on settlement due to office
realignments
These gains included the following:
(2) Although the Company made the decision
in the previous fiscal year to tear down
certain buildings and other structures at its
Tsukuba Research Center, an offer to
purchase these facilities was received, and
the Company sold these to another party
without removing them. (b) The expenses
that the Company expected to incur in
connection with the relocation of its Head
Office building, consisting of costs related to
restoring the property to its original
condition, were lower than expected.

®

(1) Significant components of SG& A expenses

(Millions of Yen)

Depreciation 1,922
Reserve for doubtful accounts 0
Reserve for bonuses to 2,847
employees

Retirement benefit expenses 1,257
Reserve for officers’ 98
retirement benefits

Payroll expenses 26,088
Selling expenses 12,513
R&D expenses 50,058

(2) Gain on the return of substituted portion of
welfare pension plan
As the defined benefit pension plan law took
effect, the company was approved for
returning the substituted portion of welfare
pension plan (prior services) by the Ministry
of Health, Labor and Welfare as of August 1,
2005. This is due to its return.

(3) Fee for licensing agreement
Milestone payment received based on the
licensing agreement related to the
co-development and co-marketing of MRA,

{4) Profit from sales of fixed assets
The profit was from the sale of land,
building, ctc. of the former Kagamiishi plant,
and the sale of land of the former Matsunaga
plant.

©) e

{6) Office closing costs
This is mainly duc to retirement of
cquipments, elc.
In addition, the Company depreciated
extraordinarily ¥3,252 million to express
reasonable book value, with respect to Ukima
plant and Kamakura plant which were
decided to close in the fiscal year 2005,
This amount is included.
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First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Haif of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

(7) Impairment loss
' The impairment loss was for the
unutilized assets of Tsukuba
Research Center.

O

e}

{7) Loss on impairment

Although the Company and consolidated subsidiaries have divided
assets for business use into groups by business unit that generates the
cash continuously, the Company and consolidated subsidiaries have
treated the pharmaceutical business as one group because the Company
and consolidated subsidiaries hold only pharmaceutical business. In
addition, unutilized assets have been divided into groups individually.
The following impairment losses were recognized for the fiscal year

(8) Loss on office rcaiignm:nt costs
This is mainly arising from the
restructuring of the manufacturing
function.

(9) Loss on sales of fixed assets
This is arising from the sales of
former Tsukuba Research Center.

2005.
1. Former Tsukuba Rescarch Centet
(Millions of Yen)
Location Use Classification Amount
Former Tsukuba Building and 1.396
Research Center Phasmaceulical Equipment '
{Niharu District, research
Ibaragi) Land 359

The Tsukuba research center was closed as part of the restructuring of
research and development function during the fiscal year 2005 and it
is unutilized condition now. In addition, the buildings of its center
were decided to dispose because of the difficulty in reusing.

In relation with this, the Company and consolidated subsidiaries
reduced the buildings” book value to zero and the land’s book value
to net recoverable value. Net selling price, on the basis of the
valuation price by the fixed property tax, was used as net recoverable
value for the land.

2. Ukima Plant, Kamakura Plant, 2nd Fujieda Plant

{Millions of Yen)
Location Use Classification Amount
Ukima Plant . -
" Pharmaceutical Building and
(Kita Ward, production Equipment 270
Tokyo) .
Kamakura Plant Pharmaceutical Builc!ing 2nd 131
(Kamakura-City, production Equipment
Kanagawa) Other 0
(F]‘::ljjn;ia; P(l:f:i; Pham;acﬂl.uical Building and 34
Shizuoka) production Equipment

@

®

In connection with the {aunch of restructuring production system for
the purpose of thorough efficiency of manufacturing function and
concentration of resources, the utilized assets mentioned above were
decided to dispose and their book value were reduced to zero,
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First Half of FY 2006.12 (Jan. 1, 2006 — Jun. 30, 2006)

1. Type and number of outstanding shares

. o Number of shares Number of shares
T f Shares’ Number of shares as of | ; creased in the ¢ t | decreased in the current Number of shares as of
ype of Shares Dec. 31, 2005 increasec in the curren -ased 1n the Tun. 30, 2006
interim period interim period
Common stock 558,655,824 832,045 —_ 559,487,869
Total ' 558,655,824 832,045 —_ 559,487,869

(Note) Outstanding shares are increased by 832,045 due to conversion of convertible bonds 382,933, and exercise of warrant

bonds 449,112,

2. Type and number of treasury stocks

Number of shares as of

Number of shares

Number of shares

Number of sharés as of

Type of sharcs‘ Dec. 31, 2005 incrc.ascd'in thc_current del:re.ased. in thc.currcnl Jun. 30, 2006
interim period interim period
Common stock 5,386,584 6,290 12,418 5,380,456
Total 5,386,584 6,290 12,418 5,380,456

(Note) 1. Treasury stocks are increased by 6,290 due to repurchase of fractional shares.
2. Treasury stocks are decreased by 12,418 due to additional purchase of fractional shares 218, and exercise of stock

option 12,220,

3. Warrants and treasury stocks with warrants,

Not applicable.

4. Dividends

(1) Dividends paid to shareholders

Date of Approval

Type of shares

Amount
(Millions of Yen)

per Share
(Yen)

Record date

Effective date

23rd March, 2006
Annual general
, meeting

Common stock

12,171

22 | Dec. 31, 2005

Mar, 24, 2006

of shareholders

(2) Dividénds which record date within current interim period but to be effective after current interim period

‘ Type of Amount e per Share Effective
Date of Appro_yal shares | (Millions of Yen) Resource of distribution (Yen) Record date date
31st July, 2006 Common . .
Board of directors stock 6,649 Retained earnings 12 | Jun. 30,2006 | Sep. 8, 2006
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First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Reconciliation between cash and cash
equivalents in the interim consolidated
statements of cash flows and cash and deposits in
the interim consolidated balance shects.

Reconciliation between cash and cash
equivalents in the interim consolidated
statements of cash flows and cash and deposits in
the interim consolidated balance sheets.”

Reconciliation between ¢ash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statements of
cash flows and cash and deposits in the
consolidated balance sheets,

‘ {Millions of Yen) {Millions of Yen) {Millions of Yen)
Cash and deposits - 94,682 Cash and deposits 87,308 Cash and deposits 74,380
Cash and Cash Equivalents 94,682 Cash and Cash Equivalents 87,308 Cash and Cash Equivalents 74,380
5. Lease Transactions
First Half of FY 2005.12 First Half of FY 2006.12 FY 2005.12

(Jan, 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

(Jan.1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Finance lease transactions other than those which
transfer ownership of the leased assets to the
lessee were as follows:
(1) Acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation
and net balance.
{Millions of Yen)
Acquisition Accumulated

; - Nei balance
cosl depreciation
Maafhinery and 74 19 55
vehicle
Fumiture and - 2383 1,208 1178
fixtures
Total 2458 1224 1,234

Acquisition cost includes interest expense
since the balance of future minimum lease
payments accounts for only a small
percentage of tangible fixed assets as of the
interim balance sheet date.

(2) Future minimum lease payments
| (Millions of Yen)

Due within one year 560
Due over one year 673
Total 1234

Future minimum lezse payments include
interest expense since the balance of future
minimum lease payments accounts for only a
small percentage of tangible fixed assets as

" of the interim balance sheet date.

(3) Lease payments and depreciation

{Millions of Yen)
313
33

Lease payment
Depreciation
(4) Depreciation of lcased assets
Assuming that the residual values are nil,
depreciation of leased assets is calculated
over the relevant lease periods using the

straight-line method,

Finance lease transactions other than those which
transfer ownership of the leased assets to the
lessee were as follows:
(1) Acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation
and net balance.
(Millions of Yen)

Acquisition Accumulated
cosl depreciation
Mat.:hmcry and 74 11 4
vehicle
Furniture and 2982 1,785 296
fixtures
Total 2,357 1,317 1,039

Acquisition cost includes interest expense
since the balance of future minimum lease
payments accounts for only a smal]
percentage of tangible fixed assets as of the
interim balance sheet date.

(2) Future minimum lease payments
(Millions of Yen)

Due within one year 400
Due over one year 638
Total 1,039

Future minimum lease payments include
interest expense since the balance of future
minimum lease payments accounts for only a
small percentage of tangiblc fixed assets as
of the interim balance sheet date.

(3) Lease payments and depreciation

(Millions of Yen)
296
296

Lease payment
Depreciation

{4) Depreciation of leased assets
Same as in the left.

Finance lease transactions other than those which
transfer ownership of the leased assets to the
lessee were as follows:
{1) Acquisilion costs, accumulated depreciation
and net balance.
(Millions of Yen)
Acquisition  Accumulated

cosl depreciation Net balance
Matfhmery and s 25 48
vehicle
Furniture and 2538 1,404 1134
fixtures
Total 2613 1,429 1,183

Acquisition cost includes interest expense
since the balance of future minimum lease
payments accounts for only a small
percentage of tangible fixed assets as of the
balance sheet date.

{2) Future minimum lease payments
(Millions of Yen)

Due within one year 490
Due over one year 693
Total 1,183

Future minimum lease payments include
interest expense since the balance of future
minimum lease payments accounts for only a
small percentage of tangible fixed assets as
of the balance sheel date,

(3) Lease payments and depreciation
{Millions of Yen)
< 604

604

Lease payment
Depreciation

(4) Depreciation of leased assets
Same as in the left.
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6. Fair Value of Marketable Securities and Investment Securities
As of June 30, 2005:
(1) Held-to-maturity securities at market value

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had no held-to-maturity securities at market value.
1

(2) Marketable securities classified as other securities at market value

(Millions of Yen)
. Acquisition cost Carrying value Net unrealized gain (loss)
Stocks ¢ 3,285 7,975 4,690
Bonds : 35,821 35,835 14
Others 3,989 4,051 61
Total 43,095 47,862 4,766
(3) Balance sheet amounts of securities that are not presented at market value .
' (Millions of Yen
Carrying value
Other securities:
Unlisted stocks, etc 537

As of June 30, 2006:
(1) Held-to-maturity securities at market value
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had no held-to-maturity securities at market value.

(2) Marketa_'blc securities classified as other securities at market value

(Millions of Yen
: Acquisition cost Carrying value Net unrealized gain (loss
Stocks . 3,089 9,837 6,747
Bonds 53,157 © 53,133 (23}
Others _» 15,989 15,958 (31)
Total . 72,236 78,929 6,692

(3) Balance sheet amounts of securities that are not presented at market value
(Millions of Yen}
Carrying value

" Other securities:
Unlisted stocks, etc 518
Total 518

As of December 31, 2005:
(1) Tradmg securities
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had no trading securities.

(2) Held- to matumy securities with market value
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had no held-to-maturity securities with market value.

(3) Other sccurilies with market value

{a) Secuntlcs whose carrying value exceeds their acquisition costs {Millions of Yen)
Acquisition cost Carrying value Net unrealized gain (loss)
Stocks 3,272 9,522 T 6,249
Bonds - 18,564 - 18,580 ' 15
Others - 15,989 16,076 87
Total ! 37,826 44,179 6,352
(b) Securities whose carrying value does not exceed their acquisition costs . (Millions of Yen
' Acquisition cost Carrying value Net unrealized gain (loss)
Bonds | 42209 42,198 (10
Total | 42,209 42,198 (10)
Total (a+b) 80,036 86,378 6,342
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M (Millions of Yen)
Total of sale Total of gain on sale Total of oss on sale
361 246 23
{5) Securities without market value
{Millions of Yen)
. Carrying value

a. Held-to-maturity securities: —

b. Other securities:
520

Unlisted stocks, etc

(6) Scheduled redemption value of other securities with maturity dates and held-to-maturity securities

(Millions of Yen

_ Within one year

Between one and five years

Other securities with maturity dates

Governmental bonds,

Municipal bonds, etc 4,999 -
Corporate bonds 30,570 8,210
Others 33,075 —
Total 68,645 8,210

7. Derivative. Transactions

As of June 30, 2005:

Description of fair value of the financial derivatives

a. Currency-related transactions

(Millions of Yen)

Notional amounts Fair value Unsealized gain
. {loss)
Forward foreign exchange contracts
" Buy:
. Swiss francs 13,814 13,778 - (36)
Currency swaps: .
Euro/Yen 1,000 34 34
. Total — —_ 2)
(Notes)
1.'Revaluation method of fair value:
. It is based on the prices that financial institutions present.
) 2.:Derivatives applying hedge accounting:
: None
b. Interest-related transactions (Millions of Yen)
I Notional amounts Fair value Unrealized gain
(loss)
Interest rate swaps: .
Receive/floating and pay/fixed 5,000 (255) (255)
Receive/fixed and pay/floating 5,000 261 261
Total 10,000 5 5
(Notes)

1. Revaluation method of fair value:

It is based on the prices that financial institutions present,
2. Derivatives applying hedge accounting:

None

i

[}
|
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As of June 30, 2006:
Description of fair value of the financial derivatives

a, Currency-related transactions . . (Millions of Yen)

f: Notional amounts Fair value Unrcalized gain

! (loss)
Forward foreign exchange contracis

Buy: )
 Swiss francs 192 201 N
Total ' 192 201 8

{Notes) :

1. Revaluation method of fair value:
- It is based on the prices that financial institutions present.
2. Derivatives applying hedge accounting: None

b. Interest-related transactions (Millions of Yen)
Notional amounts Fair value Unzealized gain
(loss)
Interest rate swaps: .
Rcécivc/ﬂoaiing and pay/fixed 5,000 (115) (115)
Receive/fixed and pay/floating 5,000 118 118
Total 10,000 2 2
(Notes)

1, Revaluation method of fair value:
It is based on the prices that financial institutions present.
2. Derivatives applying hedge accounting: None

As of December 31, 2005:
(1} Items related to the status derivative transactions

a. Description of financial derivative transactions
The derivative financial instruments that the Company utilizes are both foreign exchange contract transaction and
currency swap relating to foreign currency, and interest rate swap transaction relating to interest rate.

b. Policy of financial derivative transactions
The Company mainly utilizes financial derivative transactions in order to reduce a market risk on business, but
does not utilize them for speculative purpose,

c. Purpose of financial derivative transactions
The Company utilizes them for following purposes;
- in order to hedge against fluctuation risks in foreign currency exchangc rate according to money claim and
monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies.
- in order to hedge against fluctuation risks in interest rate according to borrowed money and reduce financial
charges

d. Description of risks associated with derivative transactions
The Company is exposed to fluctuation risks in foreign currency exchange rate according to foreign cxchange
contract transactions, and exposed to fluctuation risks in markel interest rate according to interest rate swap
ag'reemcnt. It is believed that the risk of non-fulfillment of contracts would be quite low because the Company
enters into transactions only with financial institutions with high credit ratings.

e. Rxsk management of the financial derivatives
Bursary executes and controls the foreign exchange contract transactions relating to foreign currency, by getting
the approval of the settlement person in charge based on the Company’s rule.  And bursary also executes interest
swap transaction relating to interest rate, by getting the approval of the settlement person in charge.

f. Supplementary note for “Description of market value of the financial derivatives”
The contract amount of the financial derivatives on following note is absolutely nominal amount or estimated
notional principal. The contract amount is not representative of the size of risk associated with derivative
transactions.

"
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a. Currency-related transactlons {Millions of Yen
Notional amounts | Notional amounts Fair value Unrealized gain
(Total) {Over one year) {Loss)
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Buy: :
Swiss francs 13,941 — 14,014 73
Total 13,941 — 14,014 73
(Notes)
1. Revaluation method of fair value: It is based on the prices that financial institutions present.
2. Derivatives applying hedge accounting: None
b, Interest-related transactions (Millions of Yen)
Notional amounts | Notional amounts . Unrealized gain
Fair value
(Total) (Over one year) (Loss)
Interest rate swaps:
Receive/floating and pay/fixed 5,000 5,000 (187) (187)
Receive/fixed and pay/floating 5,000 5,000 191 191
Total : 10,000 10,000 3 3

(Notes)
1. Revaluation method of fair value: It is based on the prices that ﬁnanmal institutions present.
2. Derivatives applying hedge accounting: None

8. Stock Option
As it is published by EDINET, description related to stock option is omitted..

9. Segment Information
(1) Business Segments
For the First Half of FY 2005.12 ended June 30, 2003 (Jenuary 1. 2005 - June 30, 2005)
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have transferred Insecticide business, which was categorized as
“Qther business” in the fiscal year 2004. As it has been comprised of a single business segment of “Pharmaceutical
business™ for the fiscal year 2005, the disclosure of business segments has been omitted.

For the First Half of FY 2006 ended June 30, 2006 {January 1, 2006 - June 30, 2006
As the Company has been comprised of a single business segment of “Pharmaceutical business,” the disclosure of
business segments has been omitted.

For the Year ended December 31, 2005 (January 1, 2005 - December 31, 2005)
The :Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have transferred Insecticide business, which was categorized as
“QOther business” in the fiscal year 2004. As it has been comprised of a single business segment of “Pharmaceutical
business” for the fiscal year 2005, the disclosure of business segments has been omitted.

(2) Geographical Segments
For the First Half of FY 2005.12 ended June 30, 2005 (January I, 2005 - June 30, 2005) and
For the First Half of FY 2006 ended June 30, 2006 (January 1, 2006 - June 30, 2006)
As net sales of the domestic consolidated subsidiaries constituted over 10% of the consolidated totals, the disclosure
of geographical segment information has been omitted.

For the Year ended December 31, 2005 (January I, 2004 - December 31, 2005)
As net sales and total assets of the domestic consolidated subsidiaries constituted over 10% of the consolidated
totals, the disclosure of geographical segment information has been omitied.

(3) Overseas Sales.
For the First Half of FY 2005.12 ended June 30, 2005 (January 1, 2005 - June 30, 2005)
Oversea sales were ¥11,083 million. The disclosure of overseas sales has been omitied because they were less than
10% of the consolidated total.
For the First Half of FY 2006 ended June 30, 2006 (January 1, 2006 - June 30, 2006 .
Oversea sales were ¥12,966 million. The disclosure of overseas sales has been omitted because they were less than
10% of the consolidated total.
For the year ended December 31, 2005 {January 1, 2005 - December 31, 2005)
Oversea sales were ¥23,455 million. The disclosure of overseas sales has been omitted because they were less than
10% of the consolidated total.
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First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan, 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jua. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Return of substituted portion of
welfare pension plan to the
government

As the defined benefit pension plan
law took effect, the company was
approved for returning the past part
of substituted portion of welfare
pension plan by the Ministry of
Health, Labor and Welfare as of
August 1, 2005.

This will influence the profit of this
year by 10,850 million yen.
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! INTERIM N ON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Non-audited)

L
Name of Company

Address of the Head Office:

Stock Llstmgs
Security Code No.:

Chugai:Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

(for the first half of fiscal year 2006.12 ended June 30, 2006)

July 31, 2006

1-1, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 2-Chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8324, Japan

Tokyo
4519

{URL http://www.chugai-pharm.co.jp/english)

Representative: Mr., Osamu Nagayama, President and CEO, Chairman of the Board of Directors
Contact: ¢ Mr. Yoshio Itaya, Vice President and General Manager of Finance and Accounting Department
Phone: +81-(0) 3-3281-6611

Date of Board Meeting for Settlernent of Accounts: July 31, 2006 A } i
Date of Declaration of Interim Dividends: September 8, 2006 Application of unit share system: Applicable

. {A unit is 100 shares)
1. Non-Consolidated Operating Results for the First Half of FY 2006 ended June 30, 2006

(1)Results of operations Note: Amounts of less than one million yen are omitted,

. Net Sales % change| Operating Income % change | Recurring Profit % change |
-| First half of FY2006.12 ¥146,538 million  (4.3) ¥24,186 million  (34.1) ¥27,281 million  (32.0)
First half of FY2005.12 ¥153,156 million  11.1 ¥36,686 million 810 ¥40,106 million 81.5
FY ended December 2005 ¥314,524 million ¥72,024 million ¥76,057 million
- Net Income % change Net Income per Share
First half of FY2006.12 ¥17,602 million  (35.7) ¥31.79
First half of FY2005.12 ¥27,360 million  106.1 ¥49.78
FY ended December 2005 ¥51,367 million ' ¥92.89

Note 1. Average number of outstanding shares: 553,794,881 shares for the first half ended June 30, 2006, and 549,658,803 shares for the first haif
: ended June 30, 2003; and 550,619,420 shares for the year ended December 31, 2005, respectively.

2. Change in method of accounting: None:

3 % cig]'ange for net sales, operating income, recurring profit and net income is presented in comparison with the previous first half.

i
(2)Financial conditions

Total Assets Net Assets Equity Ratio Net Assets per Share
As of June 30, 2006 ¥422,015 million ¥365,828 million 86.7% ¥660.21
As of June 30, 2005 ¥410,093 million ¥338,796 million 82.6% ¥614.88
As of December 31, 2005 ¥443,026 million ¥359,513 million 81.1% ¥649.40

Note:  (a) Number of shares outstanding at the end of the first half or fiscal year: 554,107,413 shares as of June 30, 2006, 550,998,318 shm es as
of June 30, 2005, and 553,269,240 shares as of December 31, 2005, respectively.
(b} Numbers of treasury stock : 5,380,456 shares as of June 30, 2006, 5,408,178 shares as of June 30, 2005 and 5, 336 584 shares as of
December 31, 2005, respectively.

2. Forecast for the Year ending December 31, 2006 (January 1, 2006 - December 31, 2006 )

_ © Net Sales Recurring Profit Net Income

FY ending Decémber 2006 ¥310,000 million ¥51,700 million ¥32,800 million

Reference: Projected net income per share for the year ending December 31, 2006 is ¥59.19.
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3.Dividends

Cash dividcnéls Dividends per Share (yen)

_- Interim Year-end D?vl;::;s
FY ended Decqlmbcr 2005 12.00 22,00 34.00
FY ending December 2006 (actual) 12,00 —
FY ending December 2006 (forecast) B detcr:r:')ltined dete[:'l;tined

3
i
h

Note: The Comp'c::ny bases its forecasts on assumptions that are believed 10 be reasonable under

information available at the time of the forecasts. Actual results may materially differ from

these forég:asrs due to potential risks and uncertainties.
See page 8 of the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as to the above forecasts.
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Interim Non-Consoﬁt_lated Balance Sheet

. (Millions of Yen)
‘!
- As of As of . As of
: L June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006 December 31, 2005
Accounts ! -
Assets ég % % %
1 Current assei'ts: '
Cash and deposits 85,631 67,721 61,316
Trade nolés receivable 128 B 42
Accounts feceivable 103,206 98,622 117,253
Markclabl'i: securities 33,373 63,923 68,645
Inventories 44,069 23,230 46,781
Deferred fax assets 10,129 10,724 12,193
Other 4,991 15,691 5,740
Reserve foé.doubtful accounts (323) {253) (344)
Total réjturrcnt assets 281,206 68.6 279,660 66.3 311,629 70.3
1I Fixed asscls:
1. Tangible fixed assets:
1) ;L
Buildings 40,697 23,613 37,414
Machinery and equipment| 11,199 3,341 15,571
Land 9,109 9,109 9,109
Constmc%tion in progress 4,211 1,703 7,514
Other | 8,011 6,558 8,252
Total tanéible fixed assets | 73,229 44,325 77,861
2.-]ntangibl§:°l. fixed assets: 5,542 4,796 4,959
3. !nvestmem% and other assets:
lnvestment securities 15,026 15,513 18,240
lnvestmeihts in
subsidiarii;es and affiliates 6,111 57,643 6,111
Deferred tax assets 15,130 9,856 11,402
Other | 14,128 10,488 13,120
Reserve fc_;_r doubtful accounts (281) ' {267) (299)
Total investments and other sses | 50,115 93,232 _ 48,576 .
Total ﬁxcd assets 128,886 31.4 142,354 33.7 131,397 29.7
Total assets 410,093 100.0 422,015 100.0 443026 1000
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(Millions of Yen)

As of As of ‘As of
June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006 December 31, 2005
Accounis
Liabilities % % %
1 Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 11,402 22,448 20,914
Short-term borrowings 1,000 —_ _—
Accrued expenses 9,063 9,303 12,791
Accrued income taxes 13,411 7,503 18,204
Accrued c{:;nsumption taxes 1,509 1,027 1,813
Reserve for bonuses to employees | 3,713 3,540 4438
Reserve for bonuses to directors —_— 57 —_—
Reserve for sales returns 70 35 43
Reserve for sales rebates 1,502 2,662 1,884
. Other 7,726 3,786 15,717
Total mr}cnt liabilities 49,400 121 50,365 11.9 75,808 17.1
11 Fixed liabilities:
Bonds willh warrant 2,404 " 300 901
Convertible bonds 1,306 155 447
Reserve for cmﬁloyrcs’ etirernent benefits 17,732 4,824 5,844
Reserve for officers” retirement benefits 430 507 480
Other | 22 33 30
Total fixé‘d liabilities 21,896 53 5,820 1.4 7,704 1.8
Total lial;iljtics 71,296 17.4 56,186 133 83513 18.9
Shareholders’ equity
1 Commonsiock 71,261 17.4 — — 72843 163
11 Additional paid-in capital
1.Additional paid-in capital| 91,114 — 92,294
2.0ther 0 — ' 1
Total additional paid-in capital 91,115 222 — — 92,296 208
I Retained c_hmings
1. Legal rii:scrvc 6,480 _— 6,480
2. Voluntary eamed reserve - | 136,388 — 136,388
3. Unappropriated retained )
eamnings for the current vear 38,339 -_— 55,734
Total retained earnings 181,208 442 —_ —_ 198,603 44.8
IV Net umealizéd gain on securities 2,842 0.7 —_— — 3,781 0.9
V Treasury stock, at cost (7,631) 19) — — @61 (7
Total shérehold:rs’ equity 338,796 826 — _— 359,513 81.1
Tota iailties and shareholders” equity 410,093 1000 . —_ — 443,026 100.0
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(Millions of Yen)

"Accounts

As of
June 30, 2005

As of
June 30, 2006

As of
December 31, 2005

Net assets
1 Shareholdess’ equity
1 Common stock
2 Additional l;aid-in capital
1.Capital su;'plus
2 Other
Tota! additional paid-in capitel
3 Retained ezj;mings
1. Legal rcsie_rve
2, Other

Reserve for advanced
depreciation of fixed asscts

:n

It
Special reserve
Retained earnings carricd
forward
Total rei'ained carnings
‘\
4 Treasury stock

I .
Total stockholders’ equity
I Valuation and transtation
adjustments
Lh -
Net unrealized gain on securities

Total w_i:luation and
translation adjustments

Total ne!'l'assets

h]
Total liabilities and net assets
1

4

%

92,739
3

6,480

1,075

149,220
47,036

92,743

72,891

203,812
(7,608)

361,837

3,990

3,990

365,828

422,015

17.2

220

48.3
(1.8)
857

10

86.7
100.0

r
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Interim Non-Consolidated Statement of Income

(Millions of Yen)
First Half of FY 2005.12 First Half of FY 2006.12 FY 2005.12
(Jan, 1, 2005-Jun. 30, 2005) | (Jan. 1, 2006-Jun, 30, 2006) | (Jan. 1, 2005-Dec. 31, 2005)
Accounts
% % %
1 Net sales 153,156 100.0 146,538 100.0 314,524 100.0
11 Cost of sales 58,492 38.2 59,661 40.7 118,629 317
Gross profit 94,664 61.8 86,877 593 195,894 62.3
Reserve for sales returns 67 0.0]. 43 0.0 67 0.0
Reversal of reserve for sales retums 70 0.0 35 0.0 43 0.0
Net gross profit 94,661 618 86,885 59.3 195,918 62.3
111 Selfing. general and administraiive expenses 57,975 37.9 62,699 428 123,894 39.4
Opcraling: income 36,686 24,0 24,186 16.5 72,024 22,9
IV Non-operating income (*1) 4,268 2.8 4,546 31 6,388 2.0
V Non-operating expenses (*2) 848 0.6 1,451 1.0 2,354 0.7
Recurriné profit 40,106 26.2 27,281 18.6 76,057 242
% Extraordi;lary gain (*3) 2,416 1.6 1,654 1.1 13,135 4.2
vl Exlraordilnary loss (*4) 549 0.4 1,012 0.7 8,531 2.7
Income bléfmc income taxes 41,973 27.4 27,923 19.1 80,661 25.6
Income taxes: .
Current: 14,322 7,447 27,976
Deferred 291 14,613 9.5 2,874 10,321 1.0 1,318 29,2594 9.3
Net income 27,360 17.9 17,602 12.0 51,367 16.3
Retained earnings 2t begioning of year 10,979 —_ 10,979
Interim dividends — S 6,611
Unal‘:rproprialcd retained 38339 _ 55,734
camings for the cumrent year
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Non-Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

First Half of FY 2006.12 (Jan. 1, 2006 — Jun. 30, 2006) (Millions of Yen)
Shateholders’ equity
Additional paid-in capital Retained eamings
Common Other retained earnings
stock 5 Reserve for .
S:r%llll:; Other Legal reserve advanced Special !:emgncd
depreciation pec Ngs
reserve carried
of fixed forward
assets
Balance as of December 31, 2005 72,443 92,294 1 6,480 1,168 135,210 55,734
Changes:
New stocks issuance 447 445
Reversal of reserve for
advanced depreciation of fixed 5 92
assets i
Voluntary camed reserve -
special reserve . 14,000 (14,000}
Dividends paid (12,171)
Bonuses to directors (222)
Interim net income 17,602
Purchase of ti-casury stocks
Deposition of treasury stocks 1
Net changes except for
sharcholders’ equity
Net changes - 447 445 1 —_ (92) 14,000 (8,698)
Balance as of June 30, 2006 72,891 92,739 3 6,480 1,075 149,220 47,036
{Millions of Yen)
Valuation
. and
Sharcholders’ equity iranslation
adjustments
Total Net Total nct assets
Treas Y stockholders’ unr:_ahzed
stock equit gain on
quity securities
Batance as of December 31, 2005 (7,611) 355,731 3,781 359,513
Changes:
New stocks issuance 893 893
Reversal of reserve for
advanced depreciation of fixed —_ —_—
asscts -
Voluntary camed reserve -
special reserve _ I
Dividends paid (12,171) (12,171)
Bonuses to directors (222) @22
Interim net income 17,602 17,602
Purchase of’lrcnsury stocks (14) ' (14) (14)
Deposition of treasury stocks 17 19 19
Net changes except for
shar:holdgers’ equ?ty 209 209
Net changes . 3 6,106 209 6,315
Balance as of June 30, 2006 (7,608) 361,837 3,990 365,828
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Significant Accounting Policies

First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jax. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006,12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dee. 31, 2005)

1, Basis and method for valuation of assets
a. Financial assets

Held-to-maturity securities:
Held-to—matumy debt securities are stated
by the amortized cost method.

Investments in subsidiarics and affiliates:
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates
are statcd at cost determined by the
moving average method.

Other securities:

- Securities with market value are stated
at fair value at closing date for the fiscat
half-year period, and changes in fair
value are recorded as a separate
component of sharcholders’ equity at
an arzount net of tax, and the moving
avera!ge methed is used to calculate the
original cost.

- Securities without market value are
stated at cost determined by the moving
average method,

b. Basis of vqluation of derivatives
Derivatives are revaluated by the market
value method.
c. Inventories
- Inventories other than work in process are
presented at cost determined principally by
the average method.
- Work in process is stated at cost determined
prmc:pally by the first-in, first-out method,

2, Method of deprccnauon
a, Tangible fixed assets
Dcpr:cmuon of tangible fixed assets is
calculated primarily by the
declining-balance method,
b. Intangible fixed assets
Depreciation of intangible fixed assets is
calculated primarily by the straight-line
method. '1
1
Depreciation of software for internal use is
calculated based on the usable period {five
years). i
\!
3. Accounting fl.!nr important reserves
a. Reserve for doubtful accounts
In order to prepare for losses of bad credits
such as acoount receivables or loans and for
revaluation losses on financial instruments,
except valuation losses on securities, the
reserve for doubtful sccounts is provided
for a1 un-collectable amount based on the
historical percentage of credit losses for
general crcdns and is provided for at
zmount t.'hal is estimated individually
considering these possibilities of collection
for bad credils that is highly possible to fail
and these possibilitics of Future loss on
financial instruments.
b. Reserve for bonuscs to employees
The reserve for bonuses to employees is
presented at an eslimated amount of the
liability for bonuses incurred for the fiscal
half-year. periods.

1. Basis and method for valuation of asscts
2. Financial assets

Held-to-maturity securitics:
Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated
by the amortized cost method.

Investments in subsidiarics and affiliates:
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates
are stated at cost determined by the
moving average method.

Other securities:

- Securities with market value are stated
at fair vatue at closing date for the
fiscal half-ycar period, and changes in
fair value are recorded as a separate
component of net assets at an amount
net of tax, and the moving average

method is used to calculate the original-

cost,

- Securitics without market value are
stated at cost determined by the
moving average method,

b. Basis of valuation of derivatives
Same as in the left

c. Inventories
Same as in the left

2. Method of depreciation
Same as in the left

3 Accountin‘g for important reserves
a. Reserve for doubtful accounts
Same as in the left

b. Reserve for bonuses to employees
Same as in the left

¢. Reserve for bonuses to directors
The reserve for bonuses to directors is
presented at an estimated amount of the
liability for bonuses incurred for the fiscal
half-year periods.

1, Basis and method for valuation of assets
a. Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securities:
Held-to-maturity debt securities are
stated by the amortized cost method.
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates:

[nvestments in subsidiaries and affiliates

are stated at cost determined by the

moving average method.
Other securities:

- Securities with market are stated at fair
value at closing date for the fiscal year,
and changes in fair value are recorded
as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity at an amount net
of tax, and the moving average method
is used to caleulate the original cost.

- Securities without market value are
stated at cost determined by the moving
average method.

b. Basis of valuation of derivatives
Same as in the left

c. Inventories
Same as in the left

2. Method of depreciation
Same as in the left

3. Accounting for important reserves
4. Reserve for doubtfu! accounts
Same as in the left.

b, Reserve for bonuses to employees
The reserve for bonuses to employees is
presented at an estimated amount of the
lizbility for bomuses incurred for the fiscal
year.

Non-conéoﬁdated -8




i

First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. &, 2005 - Dec, 31, 2005)

d. Reserve for sales retums
The reserve for sales returns is calculated by
multiplying 2 sales credit at the end of fiscal
half-year period by the ratio of returns to
sales of th latest two scal years and by the
ratio of current sales profit for the fiscal
half-year periods, in order to prepare for a
loss arising from sales returns subsequent to
the interim balance sheet date.

c. Reserve for sales rebates
The reserve for sales rebates is computed
based on sales amount in order to prepare
for any expenditure on sales rebates
subsequent 1o the frst half of this fiscal

. year.

f. Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits
The reserve for employees’ retirement
benefits is stated at the armount required to
cover the liabilities as of the interim balance
sheet date, based on the Company's
estimate of its liability for retirement
benefits and plan assets as of the intcrim
balance sheet date.

Prior service cost is being amortized as
incurred by the declining-balance method
over 10 years which is shorter than the
average remaining years of service of the
cligible employees.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized by the
declining-balance method over 10 years
which is shorter than the average period of
the remaining years of service of the eligible
employces and are amortized from
following year in which the gain or loss is
recognized.

{Additional information)
Return of substitutional employees’
pension fund
The Company received approval of the
excmption from the obligation for
payments of benefits related to future
employee services with tespect to the
substitutional portion of its employee
pension fund. The approval was received
from the Minister of Health, Labour and
Welfare on October 7, 2004, in accordance
with the cnforcement of the
Defined-Benefit Corporate Pension Law.

The amount of pension plan assets expected
to be transferred back to the government
(minimum legal reserve) was measured at
¥8.501 million as of the balance sheet date.
If the payment of the amount were made on
that date, the expected gain in accordance
with paragraph 44-2 of “Practical Guideline
for Accounting of Retirement Benefits
{Interim Report)” (Report No.13 of the
Committee of Accounting System of
Association of Japanese Certified Public
Accountant) would be ¥10,844 million,

d. Reserve for sales returns
Same as in the left

¢. Rescrve for sales rebates
Same as in the left

f. Reserve for employees' retirement benefits
The reserve for employees' retirement
benefits is stated at the amount required to
cover the liabilitics as of the interim
balance sheet date, based on the
Company’s estimate of its lability for
retirement benefits and plan assets as of the
interim balance sheet date.

Prior service cost is being amortized as
incurred by the declining-balance method
over 10 years which is shorter than the
average remaining years of service of the
eligible employees.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized by the
declining-balance method over 10 years
which is shorter than the average period of
the remaining years of service of the
cligible employees and are amortized from
following year in which the gain or loss is
recognized.

d. Reserve for sales retumns
The reserve for sales returns is calculated by
multiplying a sales credit at the end of fiscal
year by the ratio of returns to sales of the
latest two fiscal years and by the ratio of
current sales profit for the fiscal year, in
order to prepare for a loss arising from sales
returns subsequent to the balance sheet
date.

c. Reserve for sales rebates
The reserve for sales rebates is computed
based on sales amount in order to prepare
for any expenditure on sales rebates
subsequent to this fisca) year.

f. Reserve for employces’ retirement benefits
The reserve for cmployees’ retirement
benefits is stated at the amount required to
cover the liabilitics as of the balance sheet
date, based on the Company's estimate of
its liability for retirement benefits and plan
assets as of the balance sheet date.

Prior service cost is being amortized as
incurred by the declining-balance method
over 10 years which is shorter than the
average remaining years of service of the
eligible employees.,

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized by the
declining-balance method over 10 years
which is shorter than the average period of
the remaining years of service of the
eligible employees and arc amortized from
following year in which the gain or loss is
recognized.

{Additional information)
Return of substituted portion of welfare
pension plan to the government
The Company received approval of the
return of the pension plan assets related to
prior employee services with respect to the
substituted portion of welfare pension plan.
The approval was received from the
Minister of Health, Labour and Welfare on
August 1, 2005, end the Company returmed
the amount of pension plan asset {minimum
legal reserve) to the government on
November 16, 2005, in accordance with the
enforcement of the Defined-Benefit
Corporate Pension Law,

The amount affecting the current income
statement was ¥10,717 million, recorded as
extraordinary gain,
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First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Ha!f of FY 2006.12
(Jan, 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

f. Reserve for officers’ retirement benefits
The reserve for officers’ retirement benefits
is recorded at an amount based on
management's estimate, which would be
required to be paid if all officers resigned as
of the interim balance sheet date on the basis
of the Company s internal regulatioss.

4, Accounting for lease transactions
Non-cancelable lease transactions are
primarily accounted for as operating leases
(regardless of whether such leases are
classified as operating or finance leases)
except that lease agreements that stipulate
the transfer of ownership of the leased asscts
to the lessce are accounted for as finance
leases,

5. Other
Income and expenses for the Company and
its domestic subsidiaries are recorded at net
of consumption taxes.

f. Reserve for officers’ retirement benefils
Same as in the left

4. Accounting for lease transactions
" Same a5 in the left

5. Other
Same as in the left

f. Reserve for officers’ retirement benefits
The reserve for officers’ retirement benefits
is recorded at an amount based on
management’s estimate, whick wouid be
required to be paid if all officers resigned as
of the balance sheet date on the basis of the
Company’s intcrnal regulations.

4. Accounting for lcase transactions
Same as in the left

5. Other
Same as in the leht

Change m Accounting Policies

First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan, 1, 2005 - Dec, 31, 2005)

Impairment Accounting for Fixed Assets

The Company adopted early impairment
accounting standards during the fiscal period
under review, These standards are based on
the "Report on Accounting Standards for
Impaired Fixes Assets”, published by
Business Accounting Councit on August 9,
2002, and the "Implementation Guidelines
on Accounting Standards for Impaired Fixes
Assets” in the "Accounting Standard
Implementation Guideline No. 67, published
by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
on Qctober 31, 2003. From the fiscal year
closing on March 31, 2004, these standards
are applicable on its fiscal statements, This
caused a loss of ¥549 million in the interim
income before income taxes.

Accumulated impairment losses are
deducted directly from the value of cach
asse according to the revised regutations of
interim financial statements.

Accounting standard for employees’ pension

and retirement benefits
The Company adopted new accounting
standard, “Partial Revision of Accounting
Standards for Retirement Benefits™
{Accounting Standard Statement No.3, issued
on March 16, 2005) and “Implementation
Guidance for Partial Revision of Accounting
Standard for Retirement Benefits”
(Accounting Standard Guidance No.7, issued
on March 16, 2005) from the fiscal period
under review, The effect of this adoption was
1o increase operating profit, recurring profit
and income before income taxes by ¥239
miltion,

Accounting standard for directors’ bonuses
“The Company adopted new accounting
Standard, “Accounting Standard for
Directors’ Bonus” (Accounting Standard
Statement No. 4, issued on November 29,
2005) from the fiscal period under review.
This adoption resulted in the decrease of
operating profit, recurring profit and interim
net income before income taxes by ¥57
million,

Impairment Accounting for Fixed Assets

The Company adopted carly impairment
accounting standards from the fiscal year
2005, These standards arc based on the
"Report on Accounting Standards for
Impaired Fixes Assets”, published by
Business Accounting Council on August 9,
2002, and the "Implementation Guidelines
on Accounting Standards for Impaired Fixes
Assets" in the "Accounting Standard
Implementation Guideline No. 6",
published by the Accounting Standards
Board of Japan on October 31, 2003. From
the fiscal year closing or March 31, 2004,
these standards are applicable on its fiscal
statements, This caused a loss of ¥2,194
millicn in the income before income taxes.

Accumulated impairment losses are
deducted directly from the value of cach
asset according to the revised regulations of
financial statcments. -
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First Half of FY 2005.12

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan, 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

(Jan. 1; 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

Accounting standard for nct assets of balance

sheet
The Company adopted new accounting
standard, “Accounting Standard for
Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance
Sheet” (Accounting Standard Statement
No.5, issued on December 9, 2005) and
*Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance
Sheet” (Accounting Standard Guidance No.8,
issued on December 9, 2005) from the period
under review.
Total amount of conventional sharcholders’
cquity was ¥365,828 million.
Due to corporate law regarding financial
statements, net assets in the interim balance
sheet was shown based on the revised
regulation.

Additional Information

First Half of FY 2005,12
(}an. 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006}

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Pro forma standard taxation
Pro forma standard taxation systcm was
introduced as from the fiscal year starting on
and after April 1, 2004, based on “the law for
partial revision of local tax law, etc."(Code 9 of
2003) issued on March 31, 2003.
The company included business tax on value
added and on capital in selling and general
sdministration expenses, according to
“Practical treatment for representation of pro
forma part of business tax on income
statement™ {in the Report of practical
compliance No.12 issued on February 13, 2004
by the corporate accounting standard
committee),
As a result of this, selling and general
administration expenses increased by ¥415
million, and cperating profit, recurring profit,
and-interim net profit before tax decreased by
¥415 million.

Pro forma standard taxation
Pro forma standard taxation system was
introduced as from the fiscal year starting on
and after April 1, 2004, based on “the law for
partial revision of local tax law, etc.”(Code 9
of 2003) issued on March 31, 2003.
The company included business tax on vale
added and on capital in selling and gencral
administration expenses, according to
“Practical treatment for representation of pro
forma part of business tax on income
statement” (in the Report of prectical
compliance No.12 issued on February 13,
2004 by the corporate accounting standard
committee).
As a result of this, sclling and general
administration cxpenses increased by ¥819
million, and operating profit, recurring
profit, and net profit before tax decreased by
¥819 million.
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Notes

1. Notes to the Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet

First Half of FY 2005.12
{As of June 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
{As of June 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(As of December 31, 2005)

(1) Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed
asscts; ¥121,473 million ”
(2) Contingent liabilities

‘ {Millions of Yen)
Guarantees of loans 887
to employees .

{3) Commitment linz (loan framework) contract
The Company maintains commitment line
contracts with thirteen financial institutions
in order to allow the efficient procurement of
working capital. The balances of loans on the
balance sheet for fiscal half-year ended June’
30 were as follows;

(1) Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed
assets: ¥70,272 million
(2) Contingent liabilities
(Millions of Yen)
Guarantees of loans

732

to employees

{3) Commitment line (loan framework) contract
The Company maintains commitment line
contracts with thirteen financial institutions
in order 1o allow the cfficient procurcment of
working capital. The balances of loans on
the balance sheet for fiscal half-year cnded
June 30 were as follows;

(1) Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed
assets: ¥126,104 million
2) Contingent liabilities

. {Millions of Yen)
Guarantees of loans
Bl1

to employees

{3) Commitment line (loan framework) contract
The Company maintains commitment line
contracts with thirteen financizal institutions
in order to altow the effictent procurement
of working capital, The balances of loans,
elc. on the balance sheet for fiscal year
ended December 31 were as follows;

(Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen) (Millions of Yen)
Total commitments 30,000 Total commitments 30,000 Total commitrnents 30,000
Commitments used —_ Commitments used — Commitments used ——
Commitments unused 30,000 Commitments unused 30,000 Commitments unused 30,000
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2. Notes to the Non-Consolidated Statement of Income

First Half of FY 2005.12

First Half of FY 2006.12

FY 2005.12

(As of June 30, 2005) (As of June 30, 2006) (As of December 31, 2005)
(1) Significant components in non-operating (1) Significant components in non-operating (1) Significant components in non-operating
income: income: income:
‘ {Millions of Yen) {Millions of Yen)’ {Millions of Yen)
Interests income 70 Interests income 74 Interests income 217
Interests on securities 19 Interests on securities “ Interests on securities 68
Dividend income k) B Dividend income 1,128 Dividend income 352
Patent royalties 1,027 Patent royalties 1,239 Patent royalties 2,301
Exchange profit 518 Gain on derivaiives 263 Exchange profit 22
Gain on derivatives 335 Gazin on derivatives 945

(2) Significant componeats in non-operating
tXpense:
: (Millions of Yen)

Interests expense 70
Interests of bonds 20
Loss on inventories 100
Loss on disposal of fixed 151
assets

{3) Extrzordinary gains:
(Millions of Yen)
Fee for licensing agreement 1,667
Milestone paymenis received
based on the licensing agreement
related to the co-development
and co-marketing of MRA

Profit from sales of fixed

assels
The profit was from the sale of
land, building, etc. of old
Kagamiishi factory, and the sale
of land of old Matsunaga
factory.

749

(2) Significant components in non-operating
expense:

{Millions of Yen)
Interests expense 77
Interests of bonds 2
Loss on inventories 281
Loss on disposal of fixed

151
assets
Exchange loss 276
(3) Extraordinary gains:
(Millions of Yen)

Gains on seftlement due to

office realignments
These gains included the following:
(a) Although the Company made
the decision in the previous fiscal
year to tear down certain buildings
and other structures at its Tsukuba
Research Center, an offer to
purchase these facilities was
received, and the Comparny sold
these to another party without
removing them. (b} The expenses
that the Company expected to incur
in connection with the relocation of
its Head Office building, consisting
of costs related to restoring the
property to its original condition,
were lower than expected.

813

Gain on sales of investment

. 840
securities

(2) Significant componeats in non-opcrating

cxpense:
(Millions of Yen)
Interests expense 218
Interests of bonds 32
Loss on inventories 779
Loss on disposal of fixed 125
assets
(3) Extraordinary gains:
(Millions of Yen)
Return of substituted
portion of welfare pension 10,717
plan 1o the government

The Company received approval of the
return of the pension plan assets related
to prior employee services with respect
to the substituted portion of welfare
pension plan. The approval was
received from the Minister of Health,
Labour and Welfarc on August 1,
2005, and the Company retumed the
amount of pension plan asset
(minimum legal reserve) to the
government on November 16, 2005, in
accordance with the enforcement of the
Defined-Benefit Corporate Pension
Law.The amount affecting the current
income statement was ¥10,717million,
recorded as extraordinary gain,

Fee for licensing agreement 1,667
Milestone payments received based
on the licensing agreement related to
the co-development and co-marketing

of MRA
Profit from sales of fixed 750
asscls
The profil was from the sale of land,
building, etc. of former Kagamiishi
plant, and the sale of land of former
Matsunaga plant.

Non-consolidated - 13




First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Jun, 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

(4) Extraordinary losses:
: . (Millions of Yen)
Impairment loss 549
The impairment loss was for the
unatilized assets of Tsukuba
Rescarch Center,

{(4) Extraordinary losses:
(Millions of Yen)
Loss on office realignment 266
costs
This is mainly arising from the
restructuring of the manufacturing
function.
Loss on sales of fixed assets 245
This is arising from the sales of former

Tsukuba Research Center.

(4) Extraordinary losses:

(Millicas of Yen)
Office closing costs 6,337
This is mainly due to retirement of
equipments, etc. In addition, the
Company depreciated extraordinarily
¥3,252 million to express reasonable
book value, with respect to Ukima
plant and Kamakura plant which were
decided to close in the fiscal year
2005. This amount is included.

Loss on impairment 2,194
Although the Company bas divided
assets for business use into groups by
business unit that generates the cash
continuously, the Company has treated
the pharmaceuticat business as one
group because the Company bolds only
pharmaceutical business. In addition,
unutilized assets have been divided into

groups individually.
The following impairment losses were
recognized for the fiscal year 2005.
1. Former Tsukuba Research Center
(Millions of Yen)
Location Use Qlassification Amount
Former
Tsukuba Bailding 1.396
Research
Center (Niharu | T mmh":"
Disirict, Lamd 359
Tbaragi)

The Tsukuba rescarch center was closed as
part of the restructuring of research and
development function during the fiscal year
2005 and it is unutilized condition now. In
addition, the buildings of its center were
decided to dispose because of the difficulty
in reusing,

In relation with this, the Company reduced
the buildings’ book value to zero and the
land’s book value to net recoverable value.
Net selling price, on the basis of the
valuation price by the fixed property tax,
was used as net recoverable value for the

land,
2,Ukima Plant,Kamakura Plant,and Fujicda Plant
(Millions of Yen}
Location Use Classification Amount
Ukima Plant
(Kita  Ward, Building 264
Tokya) Pharmacculical
production
Equipment 5
Kamakura
Plant Building 131
(Kamakura- Ph ical
City, production
Kanagawa) Other o
Fujieda Plant
(Fujieda-City, Building n
Shizooka) Pharmaceutical
production
Equipment 12
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First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan, l=, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005}

' First Half of FY 2006.12
{Jan. T, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(3az. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

(5) Depreciation .

{Millions of Yen)
Tangible fixed asscts 5,057
Intangible fixed assets 555

(5) Depreciation
(Millions of Yen)
Tangible fixed assets 3,865
Intangible fixed assets 597

In connection with the launch of
restructuring production system for the
purpose of thorough efficiency of
manufacturing function and concentration
of resources, the utilized assets mentioned
ebove were decided to dispose and their
book value were reduced to zero.

(5) Depreciation
(Miilions of Yen)
Tangible fixed assets 10,159
Intangible fixed assets 1,111

3. Notes to the Non-Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
First Half of FY 2006.12 (Jan. 1,2006 - Jun. 30,2006)

Type and number of treasury stocks

Number of shares
as of Dec, 31,2005

Number of shares increased
in the current interim period

Number of shares decreased
in the current interim period

Number of shares
as of Jun. 30,2006

Common stock

5,386,584

6,290

12,418

5.380,456

Total

5,386,584

5,290

12,418

5,380,456

(Note) 1. Treasury stocks are increased by 6,290 due to repurchase of fractional shares.
2. Treasury stocks are decreased by 12,418 due to additional purchase of fractional shares 218, and exercise of stock option 12,200.
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4. Lease 1ransactions

First Half of FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1; 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006,12
(Jan. 1, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Finance lease transactions other than those which

transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee

were as follows:

{1} Acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation and
netbalance

{Millions of Yen)
Acquisition Accumulated  Net
cosl depreciation  balance

Vehicles  and ' .
Lransport 74 19 55
equipment \
Fumitore and i
fixtures 2345 1,189 1,155
Total 2,419 1,708 1,211

Acquisition cost includes interest expense since
the balance of future minimum lease payments

accounts for only a small percentage of tangible
fixed assets as of the interim balance sheet date.

(2) Future minimum lease payments

{Millions of Yen)
Due within one year 551
Due over one year 659
Total 1,211

Future minimum lease payments include interest
expense since the balance of future minimum lease
payments accounts for only a small percentage of
tangible fixed assets as of the interim balance sheet
date. :

{3) Lease payments and depreciation

. (Millions of Yen)
Lease payments 306
Depreciation 306

{(4) Depreciation of leased assets

. Assuming thai lhg residual values are nil,
depreciation of leased assets is calculated over the
relevant lease periods using the straight-line
method. ]

Finance lease transactions other than those which

transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee

were as follows:

(1) Acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation and
net balance

(Millions of Yen)
Acquisition Accumulated  Net
; cost depreciation  balance

Vehicles and '
transport T4 3 42
equipment

Furniture and 2,225 1272 053
fixtures

Total 2,300 1,304 995

Acquisition cost includes interest expense since the
balance of future minimum lease payments
accounts for only a small percentage of tangible
fixed assets as of the interim balance sheet date,

(2) Future minimum lease payments

(Millions of Yen)
Due within one year 385
Due over one year 610
Total 995

Future minimum lease payments include interest
expense since the balance of future minimum lease
paymenis accounts for only a small percentage of
tangible fixed assets as of the interim balance sheet
date.

{3) Lease payments and depn:cialiot'l

(Millions of Yen)
Lease payments 291
Depreciation 291

(4) Depreciation of leased assets
Same as in the left

Finance lease transactions other than those which

transfer ownership of the leased assets to the lessee

were as follows:

(1) Acquisition costs, accumulated depreciation
and net balance

{Millions of Yen)
Acquisition  Accumulaied Net
cost deprecistion ~  balance
Vehicles  and
| transport T4 25 48
equipment -
Furnitore  and
fixtures 1,499 1,387 1,111
Total 2,573 1,413 1,159

Acquisition cost includes interest expense since
the balance of future minimum lease payments
accounts for only 2 small percentage of tangible
fixed assets as of the balance shect date.

(2) Future minimum lease payments

{Millions of Yen)
Due within one year 482
Due over onc year 677
Total 1,159

Future minimum lease payments include interest
expense since the balance of future minimum
lease payments accounts for only a small
percentage of tangible fixed assets as of the
balance sheet date.

(3) Lease payments and depreciation

{Millions of Yen)
Lease payments 595
Depreciation 595

(4) Depreciation of leased assets
Same as in the left

5. Fair Value of Investments in Subsidiaries and Affiliates

As of June 30 2005, As of June 30, 2006 and As of December 31, 2005 .

The Company has no investments in subsidiaries and affiliates that have fair-value.
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6. Significant Subsequent Events

First Half of FY 2005.12
{Jan, 1, 2005 - Jun. 30, 2005)

First Half of FY 2006.12
(Jan. L, 2006 - Jun. 30, 2006)

FY 2005.12
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Retum of substituted portion of welfare pension
plan to the government

As the defined benefit pension plan law took
ctfect, the company was approved for returning
the past part of substituted portion of welfare
pension plan by the Ministry of Health, Labor and
Welfare as of August 1, 2005.

This will influcnce the profit of this year by
10,850 million yen.

Chugai decided to spin-off the manufacturing
function of four plants to its wholly owned
subsidiary, Chugai Techno Business Co., Lid,, as
of May 1, 2006. This decision was made by the
Board of Directors on Febmary 9, 2006 and the
Company concluded the contract regarding
absorption and division with the subsidiary. In
addition, Chugai Techno Business Co., Ltd.
plans to change its trade name to Chugai Pharma
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

(1)Purposes of the scparation
The separation of the production function is
part of the restructuring of the production
system, a critica) goal of the mid-term
business plan “Sunrise 2010.” The Chugai
Group aims to maximize its value through
pursuing further cost effectivencss and
improvement of preduction technology.

{2)Method of the separation
The method is for Chugai Techno Business
Co., Ltd., to absorb Chugai Pharmaceutical’s
production function as the surviving
company.

{3)Schedule of the separation
The Board of Directors
for approval of the
separation
Signing the contract of
the scparation
The General
Shareholders Meeting
for approval of the
separation
Execution of the
separation
Registration of the
separation

(4)Stocks issued for the separation
The surviving company will issue 100
numbers of stock that will be allocated all to
the Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

{5)Rights and obligations succeeded by Chugai
Techno Business Co., Lid. .

The surviving company will succeed asscts
related to pharmaceutical production and
other rights and obligations in Utsunomiya
plant, Ukima plant, Kamakura plant and
Fujieda plant from the Company, The
surviving company will not succeed liabilitics
on the balance sheel.

(6)Condition of the scparating function
a. Mamufacturing function

Utsunomiya plant, Fujicda plant, Ukima
plant and Kamakura plant
b. Assets and amounts subject to the
scparation {As of December 31, 2005)

February 9,2006

February 9,2006
March 23, 2006

May 1, 2006

May !, 2006

{Millions of Yen)
Current assets 25,012
Fixed asscts 33,892

Non'consoli&ated -17
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Financial Highlights

(FY2006.12 Supplementary Materials for Consolidated Interim Financial Results)

{Millions of Yen)

;-: FirstHalfof | FirstHalfof | ot Haifof FY2006.12 | Fr2006.12
FY2005.12 "

FY2004.12 FY2005.12 Change (%) (Forecasts)
Net sales 142,002 159,243 152,624 (4.2) 327,155 322,500
Cost of sales’ “ 54,355 59,049 60,067 17 119,423 130,500
: % | 383 37.1 39.4 36.5 405
SG&A expenses 42,357 37,374 38,449 29 78,504 85,000
T 298 235 52| ) 240 26.4
R&D expenses 22,951 22,893 26,694 165 50,058 53,000
o 1622 14.4 7s| 153 | 164
Operating income 22,337 39,925 27412 {31.3) 79,168 54,000
- ) 157 25.1 18,0 242 16.7
Recurring profit 23,638 42,734 29,840 (30.2) 82,091 56,400
S 168 26.8 196 251 175
Net income 13,838 28,047 18,793 (33.0) 53,632 34,400
(%) 97 176 23] 16.4 107

Notes: 1. ¢ost of sales includes the provision for returned goods. ]
2. The assumed exchange rates for the period ending December 31, 2006, are 1US$=¥110 1€=¥135 and

1CHF=¥ 88

Fl
i
A
4

Extraorﬁinary Gains and Losses

Extraordinary Gains -
d (Milions of Yen)
: Amount Description
Gain on sales of investment
securities 840 B
..;3 These gains included the following: (1) Although the Company made
the decision in the previous fiscal year to tear down certain buildings
Ell and other structures at its Tsukuba Research Center, an offer to
Gains on seﬁ}ement due to office 813 purchase these facilities was received, and the Company sold these
realignments; to another party without removing them. (2) The expenses that the
Company expected to incur in connection with the relocation of its
: Head Office building, consisting of costs related to restoring the
; property to its original condition, were lower than expected.
Extraordinary Losses ~ _
' (Milions of Yen)
Amount -Description
i This is mainly arising from the restructuring of the manufacturing
Loss on office realignment costs 766 .
function.
Loss on sales of fixed assets 245 This is arising from the sales of former Tsukuba Research Center.
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Sales of Products

: (Bilions of Yen)"
Prodlﬁd Name First Half of | First Half of First Half of FY2006.12 EY2005.12 FY2006.12
FY2004.12 FY2005.12 (Forecasts)
Change (%)

Epogin 32.0 33.2 31.0 (6.6) 71.8 64.0
Neutrogin - 13.0 14.9 16.5 10.7 323 333
Tarnifiu 7.2 23.2 16.3 (29.7) 352 385
Sigmart 85 9.1 8.6 (5.5) 19.3 17.9
Rituxan 7.4 B.1 . 8.1 0.0 17.8 17.1
Alfarol 76 76 7.0 (7.9) 15.8 14.9
Herceptin 41 49 6.4 30.6 1.2 133
Kytril 5.0 55 6.0 9.1 122 125
Evista 2 1.5 36 58 61.1 9.2 12.8
Suvenyl 3.2 3.7 41 10.8 8.1 8.8
Oxarol 31 3.4 a5 29 7.3 7.5
Furtulon _ 6.0 4.7 3.4 (27.7} 9.2 6.0
Rythmodan 36 35 3.2 (8.6} 7.2 6.9
Pegasys 2.3 37 3.0 {18.9) 8.0 6.5
Rocephin 22 26 26 00 5.4 5.2
Renagel 1.6 21 23 95 48 50
Euglucon 286 24 2.1 (12.5) 49 45
Xeloda _ 09 1.2 1.2 0.0 27 28
Other prescription products 213 219 21.5 (1.8} 45.1 443
Nonprescription products 92 - - - - -
Total : 142.0 159.2 152.6 (4.1) 327.2 3225
Prescriptioh pharmaceuticals 132.8 159.2 152.6 (4.1) 327.2 3225
Domestic 123.9 148.2 139.7 (5.7). 303.7 298.1
Overseas 9.0 1.1 13.0 171 235 245

Notes:
2. Launched in May 2004

1. Figures are rounded to the nearest ¥100 million. The percentages are calculated based on the rounded numbers.




{FY2006.12 Supplementary Materials for Consolidated Interim Financial Results)

Balance Sheets
i {Millions of Yen)
E As of June 30, 2006
AsofJune | Asof June Change from Change from As of
30,2004 | 30,2005 Juna 30,2005 | December 31 December -
. ' 31, 2005
%) 2005 (%)
Cash and deposits 37,217 94,682 87,308 (7.8) 17.4 74,380
Trade Notes and Accounts 104632 | 104,262 100,545 (36) (15.4)| 118873
Receivable 3
Marketable securities 42,384 33.373 63,923 915 6.9) 68,645
Inventories 57,068 44,722 46,122 3.1 28| 47440
Other Current Assets 12,781 17,805 17,631 (1.0) (7.7) 19,098
Total Current Assets 254083 | 294,846 315,532 70 39| 328430
Tangible Fixed Assets 92,851 74,868 77,640 37 @3) | 79,459
Intangible Fixed Assets 3,036 6,873 5,799 (15.6) (5.5) 6,136
Investments and Other Assets T 52221 44373 35,399 (20.2) (65| 42,407
, Total Fixed Assets 148110 | 126,116 118,840 (5.8) 72y | 128,003
Total Assets 402,194 | 420,962 434372 32 @8) | 456,442
Notes and Accounts Payable 12,446 11,469 19,301 66.3 (8.0) 20,989
Other Current Liabiltties 35,447 40,367 30,771 (23.8) (46.5) 57,478
Total Curent Liabilites | 47.894 51,837 50,072 (3.4) ©@62)| 78468
. Fixed Liabities 47,825 22,164 6,105 (72.5) (23.4) 7,975
Total Liabifites 95719 74,002 56.178 (24.1) (35.0) 86.443
. Minority Interests * 1,403 1,414 - - - 1,692
Common Stock _ 68,409 71,261 72.801 23 06 72.443
Additional Paid-in Capital T mgar1 | 9iits 92,743 1.8 05| 92208
Retained Eamings 150,707 | 187,861 213,233 135 32| 208834
Treasury Stock, at Cost (5,945) (7.631) (7.608) 0.3) (0.0) (7.611)
Valuation and Translation T 3p28 2,939 4,990 69.8 149 | 4343
Adjustments
Minrity Interests . = - 1.044 - -1 -
Total Shareholders’ Equity 305070 | 345,545 - — —| 368,306
Total Net Assets - - 378.194 - - -
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 402,104 | 420,962 434,372 3.2 48) | 456,442

Note: The company adopted new accounting standards “Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net Assets in
the Batance Sheet” (Accounting Standard Statement No.5, issued on December 9, 2005) and “Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet “ (Accounting Standards Guidance

No.8, issued on December 9, 2005} from the period under raview.

+
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Performance Indicators
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{Millions of Yen)

First Half of | First Halfof | First Half of FY2006.12

. FY2005.12
b FY2004.12 | FY2005.12 | FY2006.12 (Forecasts)
Return on Equity (ROE) 4.6% 8.6% 5.0% 15.6% : -
Retum on Assets (ROA) 5.9% 10.4% 6.7% 18.9% -
Net Income per Share [Basic] ¥25.33 ¥51.03 ¥33.94 ¥97.00 ¥62.08
Net Income per Share [Fully Diluted] - ¥24.96 ¥50.60 ¥33.88 ¥06.33 -
Net assets pef Share ¥558.14 ¥627.13 ¥679,02 ¥665.29 -
Equity Ratio 75.9% 82.1% 86.6% 80.7% -
Payout Ratio * - - - 35.1% -

‘Note: Interim ROE and ROA are not annualized.

Capital Expenditures

(Millions of Yen)

5 _ First Half of First Half of First Half of FY2006.12

B FY2005.12

FY2004.12 FY2005,12 FY2006.12 - (Forecasts)
Capital Expenditures " 5351 2,355 2937 | - 16,129 18,500
Depreciation * 6,060 5,937 - 5659 11,957 13,000

¥
%

Major Cépital Investments

(Millions of Yen)

Investment to-date
i
Slated
Prante & Description of (Investment - | Tota) (planned) Start of completi
ants ! ; mpletion
: investment made in the investrnent construction P
fiscal year under date
' review)
t; Construction of
o antibody product
L manufacturing . :
Utsunomiya Plant L 9,421 : w2 | 9,564 March 2003 July 2007
i facilities (Second :
+ | stage of
: construction)
Solid
. N phamnaceutical . . .
Fujieda Plant’ L 5,058 274 . 21,800 August 2005 April 2009
! production lines and _
' related facilities
. i Investigational drug
Ukima and Fujieda . December
5 synthesis and 1,151 133 9,000 2007-2008
Plants . - 2005
formulation facilities
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Cash Flows

‘ (Millions of Yen)

First Half of First Half of First Half of
FY2005. 12

‘ FY2004.12 FY2005.12 FY2006.12
Net Cash (Uséd in) Provided by Operating Activities 26,863 35,176 28,047 64,663
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities (18,933) 6,964 (3,277} {35,459)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (7.122) (4,960) {12,168) {12,556)

Rate Ch Cash and :

Effect of E-xchange ate Changes on Cash an 182 191 326 353
Cash Equivalents
Net increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 990 37,302 12,927 16,999
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 36,226 57,380 74,380 57,380
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 37,217 94,682 87,308 74,380
Convertible Bonds

. . Balance of

- Type unredeemed bonds Redemption period Redempticn price* Rate

issued Amount
No. 6 Series Unsecured ¥155 million November 1, 1996 -
. N ¥762.50 1.05%

Convertible Bonds [¥25,000 million] September 29, 2008
Note: ~-In ¢onnection with capital reduction with compensation, we adjusted the exercise price from ¥1,014.00 to ¥762.50

effective August 1, 2002.
- The total amount of convertible bonds converted from January 1, 2008, through June 30, 2006, was ¥292 million.
- As a result of this conversion, the total number of shares outstanding increased by a total of 382,933.

Corporate Bonds

: Balance of
- Type Unredeemed Bonds Exercise Period Exercise Price Rate
' Issued Amount
o _ ¥300 million October 1, 2002 -
No.1 Series Bonds with Warrants I %¥1,338.5108 0.8969%
S [¥43,883 miflion] September 28, 2008 .

Note:

- As a resutt of this conversion, the total number of shares outstanding increased by a total of 449,112,

Number. of Employees

- The total amount of corporate bonds converted from January 1, 2006, through June 30, 2008, was ¥601 million.

] As of December
‘ As of June 30, As of June 30, As of June 30, As of December 31 2006
2004 2005 2006 31, 2005 )
(Forecasts}
Number of Erhployees 5,582 5,471 5,975 5,357 5,895

Note: Number of employees includes staff seconded to companies oulside the Group.
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For refefence: Highlights (Non-consolidated)
‘ {Millions of Yen)

First Half of FirstHalfof | First Half of FY2005.12 FY2006
FY2004.12 FY2005.12 FY2006.12 ’ (Forecasts)

Net Sales 137,881 153,156 146,538 314,524 310,000

Cost of Sales 4 54,330 58,494 | 59,653 118,605 131,500

(%) 394 38.2 407 kY 424

SGRA Expenses B 40,293 35,102 35,827 74,008 78,000

(%) 292 220 24.4 235 252

R&D Expenses 22,990 22,872 26,872 49,885 53,000

{%) 16.7 149 18.3 159 171

Operating Income 20,268 36,686 24,186 72,024 47,500

' (%) 147 24.0 16.5 229 15.3

Recurring Profit 22,092 40,106 27,281 76,057 51,700

. (%) 16.0 268.2 1 18.6 24.2 16.7

Net Income. 13,275 27,360 17.602 51,367 32,800

: (%) 96 178 12.0 163 106

Return on Equity (ROE) 4.5% 8.4% 4.9% 15.2% -

Retum on Assets (ROA) 2 5.6% 9.9% 6.5% 18.0% -

Net Income per Share [Basic] ¥24.30 ¥4978 ¥31,79 ¥92.89 ¥59.19
Net i 2 per Share

et income pe ¥23.94 ¥49.36 ¥31.73 ¥92.24 -

[Fully Diluted)

Net Assets per Share ¥546.41 ¥614.88 ¥660.21 ¥649.40 -

Dividends per Share ¥9.00 ¥12.00 ¥12.00 ¥34.00" -

Payout Ratio — - - 36.6% -

Equity Ratio 76.2% B2.6% 86.7% 81.1% -

Capital Expenditures 5,307 2,236 2,617 15,925 7,400

Depreciation 5,646 5612 4463 11,271 8,500

Number of Employees 3 4,082 4825 5,183 4,824 5,130

Notes: 1.‘:Cost of sales includes the provision for retumed goods.
2. Interim ROE and ROA values are not annualized

3. IlNumber of employees includes staff seconded to subsidiaries and other companies.

4. The annual cash dividend per share for the year ended December 31, 2005, includes a special dividend of ¥10 per

ishare,




(FY2006.12 Supplementary Materials for Consolidated Interim Financial Results)

For feference:Sales of Products (Non-Consolidated)'

(Billions of Yen)™

Product Name First Half of | First Half of First Half of FY2006.12 FY2005.12 FY2006.12
FY2004.12 | FY2005.12 Change (%) {Forecasts)
Epogin 320 332 31.0 {66} 71.8 64.0
Tamifly 7.2 23.2 16.3 (29.7) 35.2 | 39.5
Rituxan 7.4 8.1 8.1 0.0 17.8 17.1
Sigmart 73 7.7 73 (5.2) 16.1 15.3
Alfarol 76 75 7.0 ®.7) 15.8 149
Herceptin 41 4.9 6.4 306 1.2 13.3
Kytril 5.0 5.5 6.0 9.1 12.2 125
Evista 2 15 36 5.8 61.1 9.2 128
Neutrogin 5.8 59 5.6 (5.1) 134 127
Suvenyl 3.2 37 41 108 8.1 8.8
Oxarol 3 3.4 35 29 73 7.5
Furtulon 6.0 47 34 (27.7) 9.2 6.0
Rythmodan 36 ‘35 3.2 (8.6) 7.2 6.9
Pegasys 23 3.7 3.0 (18.9) 8.0 6.5
Rocephin 22 26 26 0.0 5.4 52
Renagel 16 2.1 23 95 45 5.0
Euglucon 26 24 2.1 (12.5) 49 45
Xeloda 0.9 1.2 1.2 0.0 2.7 26
Other 20.7 21.1 20.7 (19) 437 430
Presaription Phamaceuticals 1239 148.2 139.7 5.7 303.7 298.1
* Total
Neutrogin 33 3.1 5.1 64.5 6.8 8.5
Sigmart 1 1.2 1.0 (16.7) 2.8 21
Ulearimin 0.4 06 0.7 14.3 1.2 1.2
Other 0 0 0 0.0 0.1 0.1
Export Products Total 48 5.0 6.8 36.0 10.8 1.9
Guronsan Brand 39 - - - - -
Varsan 40 - - - - -
Chugai ichoyaku :
Brar?d . ' 04 - N - - -
Nonpreseription Products Toetal 8.2 - - - - -

Notes: = 1. Figures are rounded to the nearest ¥100 million.
2. Launched in May 2004
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For refere:nce: Outline of Principal Subsidiary and the State of Its Business Result

Chugai Pharma Marketing Ltd.

Established 1097

Location London, United Kingdom

Business Sale Administration *
o £8,677,808

Capital (June 2006)

Percen't_age Ownership 100.0%

Note:. Chugai Pharma Marketing Ltd. oversees the sales and marketing operations of the Germany branch, Chugai
Pharma France 5.A.S,, Chugai Pharma UK Lid., ,_and CHUGAI sanoft-aventis S.N.C.

Businéss Results .

(Millions of Yen)

{Consolidated) First Half of FY2005.12 First Half of FY2006.12
Net sales 8,664 10,631
in local currency
(in thousands) £43,331 £50,473
Compared with the o 0
previous interim Period (122.2%) (116.5%)
Net Income 1,082 1,661
In local currency
‘ £5,414 £7,9
(in thousand) 5 54
Compared with the
Preyious Interim (1326%) {146.9%)
Period .

Note: * Transtations into yen are based on the rate on the day of settlement of accounts (Interim period
. 2005: £199.95; Interim period 2006: £210.63) '

1

For refereﬁce: Product distribution structure

l Chugai Phamaceutical Co., Ltd.

----1 Chugai Pharma Marketing Ltd

(CPM)’

L {(UK) ]’"""""'""'“. """""""""""""

CHUGAI sanofi-aventis $.N.C. {France)

| (CPM ownership: 55%)

/

Chugai Pharma Marketing Ltd.
the Germany branch

1
I
!
1
1
1
L]
1
1
L]
1
1
1
I
I
1
1
1
1
1
]
b
]

h 4

(France)

Chugai Pharma France S.A.S.

(CPM ownership; 100%)

| Chugai Pharma U.K. Ltd.

{CPM ownership: 100%})

R < l

Sanofi-Aventis Group,
| etc. :

Respective Markets -




(FY2006.12 Supplementary Materials for Consolidated Interim Fingncial Results)

R&D Activities (Jan.1, 2006 — Jul. 31, 2006)

As for research activities, the Company saw progress as described below.
- The Company decided to license-out to Roche three compounds, 2 in oncology and 1 in diabetes, from its
research portfolio. '

As for clinical development activities in Japan, the Company saw progress as described below:

Oncology :
- In January, the manufacturing and marketing approval for aromatase inhibitor CG520267 (product name:

Femara) was obtained by our partner, Novartis Pharma K. K., for the treatment of breast cancer in
postmenopausal women, and the product was launched in May.

- InMarch, we filed an application for R340 (product name: Xeloda) for monotherapy treatment in adjuvant colon
cancer together with the application for global dosage and administration for breast cancer.

- In April,:we filed an application for manufacturing and marketing approval for epidermal growth factor receptor
(EGFR/HER1) tyrosine kinase inhibitor R1415 (expected indication: non-small cell lung cancer),

- InApril, we filed an application for manufacturing and marketing approval for humanized anti-VEGF (vascular
endothelial growth factor) monoclonal antibody R435 {expected indication: colorectal cancer).

B

Bone and Joint Diseases

- In April, we filed an application for humanized anti-human IL-6 receptor monoclonal antibody MRA {product
name: Actemra) for additional indication of rheumatoid arthritis together with an appiication for systemic onset
juvenile idiopathic arthritis (SJIA).

Renal Diseases
- InMay, :'we filed an application for additional dosage and administration for recombinant human erythropoietin
‘EPOCH (product name: Epogin) for hemodialysis patients.

Transplant, Immunolegy and Infectious Disease
- We started phase Il clinical trials for peginterferon alpha-2a agent R442 (product name: Pegasys) and anti-viral
agent R964 targeting compensated liver cirrhosis caused by hepatitis C virus.

Other Diseases ]

- In January, we filed an application for additional dosage form, lotion, for psoriasis treatment, OCT (product name:
Oxarol, marketed by Maruho Co., Ltd.).

- In April.::we obtained approval for recombinant human erythropoietin EPOCH (product name: Epogin) for
additional indication of anemia in premature infants.

- in April,@we suspended the development for insulin sensitizer R483 {expected indication: type 2, diabetes, as no

 results fo differentiate this compound from preceding agents were obtained in overseas studies conducted by
Roche, the originator.

- InJduty, we filed an application for additional dosage and administration for HIV protease inhibitor, Invirase.

At preserit, we are awaiting the approval of applications filed for 10 themes under development (new molecular
entities and’'additions of indications), including R964 (expected indication: chronic hepatitis C).
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Currently running clinical trials in oncology field

Cancer
Theme Type Title of Study Regimen Filing Date
Safety comformation study of R435 (bevacizumab) in FOLFOX4 ' Filed
Colorectal . ) )
patients with metastatic colorectal cancer + Avastin (Apr.06)
R435 Phase /1 study of R435 (bevacizumab) in patients with SFUALY Filed
Colorectal .
{bevacizumab) metastatic colorectal cancer + Avastin (Apr.06)
Phase 111 Study of R340 {capecitabine), L-OHP (oxaliplatin}
Colorectal and R435 (bevacizumab) in advanced and/or metastatic XELOX 2008
R340 + Avastin
colorectal cancer
{capecitabine)
R1415 Non-small | FRase Ul clinical study of R1415 {erlotinib} for treatment of Filed
{erlotinib) cell lung advanced, metastatic, and/or recurrent non-small-cell lung (Apr.0G)
HERA study:
Breast ) . — 2006
A study of intravenous K597 (trastuzumab) in women with
R597 ToGA study:
(trast B 5FU + CDDP
stuzuma A study of R597 (trastuzumab) in combination with + 4y .
. ) *+ Herceptin
Herceptin Gastric . 2008
chemotherapy compared with chemotherapy alone in | Xeloda+ CDDP :
patients with HER2-positive advanced gastric cancer % Herceptin

10
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Developniént pipeline (as of July 31, 2006)

Development Indication Sﬁm Generic name Origin .
ods # Additional indication (date) Product name | Overseas name Mode of Action
' Dosage form (Coliaborator)
Oncology
(CGS20267 - | Breastcancerin Launched | letrozole Novartia Aromatase inhibitor
postmenopausal women May.06 Femara Femara
: Tablet (Novartis
Pharma)
EPOCH Chemotherapy-induced Filed epoetin beta In-house Recombinant human
anemia Dec.05 Epogin erythropoietin
# Injection
R435 .| Colorectal cancer Filed bevacizumab Roche Humanized anti-VEGF (Vascular
Apr06 | Avastin /Genentech Endothelial Growth Factor)
:' Injection Avastin monoclonal antibody
R1415 + | Non-small celt lung cancer Filed erlotinib 0OSI/Genentech/ | Epidermal growth factor receptor
i Apr06 | Tarceva Roche (EGFR/HERD  tyrosine  kinase
Oral Tarceva inhibitor '
R340 - | Colon cancer (adjuvant) Filed | capecitabine’ | Roche Antimetabolite, 5 FU derivative
L# -Mar06 | Xeloda Xeloda
, | Colorectal cancer Phase 2 | Tablet
e
| Gastric cancer Phase 2
& ]
R597 Breast cancer (adjuvant} Phase3 | trastuzumab Roche Humanized anti-HER2
# Multinational] Herceptin /Genentech monoclonal antibody
study Injection Herceptin
i | Gastric cancer Phase 3
K Multinational
study
MRA 1 | Multiple myeloma Phase2 | tocilizumab In-house Humanized anti-human IL-G receptor
‘ Overseas | Actemra {(Roche) monoclonal antibody
5 Phase 1 | Injection
; Overseas
R744 % | Chemotherapy-induced Phase 2 Injection Roche C.E.RA. (Continuous erythropoiesis
., | anemia Mircera receptor activator)
R1273 + | Non-small cell lung cancer Phase1 | pertuzumab Roche HER dimerization inhibitory
Injection /Genentech humanized monoclonal antibody
B Omnitarg
TP300 Colorectal cancer Preparing for| Injection In-house Topoisomerase [ inhibitor
! Phase 1 ‘
Overseas
P
Bone and Joint
MRA » | Rheumatoid arthritis Filed tocilizumab In-house Humanized anti-human IL-8 receptor
oo # Actemra monoclonal antibody
4 Apr.06 Injection
j Phase3 | tocilizumab In-house
.:_ Overseas | Actemra (Roche)
r' Injection
Systemic onset juvenile Filed tocilizumab In-house
«{ | idiopathic arthritis (sJIA) ] Actemra
' # Apr06 Injection
r Phase 3 tocilizumab In-house
Overseas | Actemra (Roche)
: Injection

11
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) L Generic name Origin
Development. Indication (S;:E‘; Productname | Overseas name Mode of Action
code #Additional indication e Dosage form | _(Collaborator)
ED-71 Osteoporosis Phase 3 In-house Activated Vitamin D derivative
3 Oral
R484 Osteoporosis Phase 2 |ibandronicacid | Roche Bisphosphonate
Completed Bonivain US
j' Injection /Bonviva in EU
a Phase 2 |ibandronic acid
Oral
CHS13340 (steoporosis Phase 2 Daiichi Asubio Recombinant parathyroid hormone
i Nasal spray
: Pharma (rhPTH1-34)
Renal disease
R744 Renal anemia Phase 2 | Injection Roche C.E.R.A. (Continuous erythropoietin
Mircera receptor activator)
Cardio/Cerebro-vascular disease
8G-75 Acute heart failure Filed nicorandil In-house Potassium channel opener
# Jun.03 Sigmart
Injection
AVS Subarachnoidal Filed nicaraven In-house Hydroxyl radical scavenger
hemorrhage Apr.95 Antevas
Injection
Transplant, Immunology and Infectious disease
R964 « | Chronic hepatitis C Filed ribavirin Roche Anti-viral agent in combination with
'g Jun.05 Copegus Copegus Pegasys
Compensated liver | Phase3 Tablet '
cirrhesis ~ caused by
‘ hepatitis C virus
+ | (R442#)
R442 }' Peginterferon | Roche Peginterferon alfa-2a agent
; alfa2a Pegasys (recombinant)
K Pegasys
Injection
MRA Crohn's disease - Phase 2 tocilizumab In-house Humanized anti-human [L-6 receptor
# Actemra monoclonal antibody
Enjection
) Castleman's disease Phase 1 tocilizumab In-house
Overseas | Actemra {Roche)
Systemic lupus Phase 1 Injection
erythematosus (SLE) Qvergeas
Other fleld
EPOCH Anemia in premature Approved | epoetin beta In-house Recombinant human erythropoietin
infants Apr.06 Epogin
# Injection
Predeposit of autologous Filed
blood transfusion Mar.02 ,
#
VAL B Post-hepatectomy/ Liver ' Phase 2 valine In-house Recovery of liver function
‘ transplantation Completed | Injection

12
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Development ' I mmn . Stage Product name | Overseas name Mode of Action
code # Additional indication (date) Dosage form (Collaborator)
: | Decompensated Phase 2 valine
" | cirrhosis Oral
GM-611 " Diabetic gastroparesis Phase 1 mitemcinal In-house Motilin agonist
Completed | Tablet Recovery of gastrointestinal motility
Phase 2
Qverseas
Irritable bowel syndrome Phase 2
{IBS) QOverseas
R483 Type 2 diabetes Development | edaglitazone Roche Insulin sensitizer
suspended | Oral

Changes from the last announcement on April 25, 2006

Oncology

-QGS20267

Bone an’H Joint

-MRA

Preparing for filing — Filed (# rheumatoid arthritis})

Approved — Launched (postmenopausal breast cancer)

Preparing for filing — Filed (# sJIA)

Transgla;nt, Immunology and Infectious disease .
-R:964, R442 Phase 3 (# R442, compensated liver cimhosis caused by hepatitis C virus)

Others

-R483

Development suspended

13



=

RECEIVED

Y 28 P 34

P>

900Z ‘L Isnbny/Lg AInp

"AL1"02TVIILNIDVINYVHC IVONHD

ATIO

INTERBEARIY
TE Firh T2

CFICE OF
CORPORA

ik

MBIAIBAQ [BIOUBUI PSIEPHOSUOD WBIU| 900ZAS




" "UMOYS SJUNOWE UO paseq pajendies si %

"uak uoljiig L°0 0} papunos ale suNoWwy S10N

mmwwmc_wjn_ .

S >chEoO ay} Homtm Aew jey} wm_gc_mtmoc: Ucm mv_m: uo
_umwmn suone)oadxs Wodj Jaylp Aew sj|nsal [EN}OY "Spual} pue
- uoljewlojul buisixa Jo sisAjeue juasnd w>chEoo_.m£ IETIEY
mEmEQEw asay 1 "(LAuedwo), ayy) ‘P11 0D _mo_SmomEhmsn_
| _mm:co jJO syadsold pue ssauisng m£ o) mc_c_mtmn_
wEmEmHSw @c_v_oo_ plemioy m_u:_oc_ >mE co;mucmwma SIYL

“sjuowele)s Bu00T-pIEMIOS



o

‘0)8 ‘abueyoxa ublaio) Uo

- §S0| th.um.,mmmbmv.mrcoo:_ Bupesado-uoN - -

(%Z0g) 62i-.

(%E°LE*) G2l

(%L V) 99
(uak uong)

" Jyoid Bulinoay<

.G d 01y
swoou| Bunesedp<
- ¥'d 01 1840y
" so|eg 19N«

%ETL | %LL |SORSIO%
6ze- iz6- |88l |08z awoou] 19N
%561 | %goT | somsion
zoe- 162 |862 |22p  |woidBuwnosy
m_ %08k | %1’z |sersio%
e1e- 16Tl |vLz |e'6e - | awoou Bugessdo:
L'v- 1o9- . |9'2sL | Z6S1 S9les 1N
o |
.......... | soueuen mwmw mmnw (us A -uonjig)

(Je®A UO JBB A) MSIAIBAD ..,_m_ocmc _“_




14

Goow >ms_ u um;ocsm_v AEVEE
GSN unr ul Bcoc:m_v VHWILOV X8
moow muc_m um;oc:mﬂ muo:uoa :syonpoud Bmz.,

oer

Se9sIan)

ansewoq J

auio-

muoz_uo_n_?mz.,

#

“ - s

“nmymv__omcoom :

el

]

— ........

“ 019 30015 .

1 o | MIHINVL
........ T o

“ Emc_EO.

. T g

_mw_mm sz,.._ :

900z "Unr

ozmmEon_ _

1BYI0

i : mm_mm bm:_EO p

:._“__s_ﬁ -

.Bm xon .§oO

NIdINVL

3 soueuen | goozunp goozunr * CEIN co____m_v
Aww_mm ﬁwz Jo cgouv_mmhm_v . o
(Ua A uoiig) -
e i (HL/S00Z.'SA) sales. Ez




SONIANOE (9 Ul JUSWISaAU] SAISSBIBBY -
g'¢- -~ asusdxa gy Ul 8sEAIOU]
- L .- esealoul .
JUNOopEaY- B pasea.ou) mmm:maxm -
17 L- sasuadxe ,m>=mbm_c_EU<
- ] o pue Bujjes w aseaJou

[

6P mmwcmo_xm <.w0w Ul esBaIoU]

x_E..ﬁsno.E ul ebueyn

9/- : S | b_o._n_ mmo_mv Ul asealna(] -
A . mEooc_ méanOA
(ush uoilig)

900z U - . goozunp

: : - o I .;..A,.x_m.rm.-v 5z~

dxa gy Ul
" aseau|

. woud-
. ss0.19) U |

rdxe uiwpy

.8 Buyjes ul
eseasou|

,EQ__S____@

<

. (Hus00zZ 'S

v mEooc_ mc_HEwao



‘ PL+  S9IINJas JUBLSAAUI JO SOIES |
uo ureb wouy paseatoul uieb Aeuipioenxy .

%ETL | %¥6 - |seesio
(%E'SEH) 67+ - swoou] 1< . Naer lawy

eSED e | sv+ |88L [6€L awoou| JoN
8 L+ " "D}9 SUIOOUI PUSPIAIP _ S
w0y pasea.sul swoou) bunelado-uoN -«

-

%56l | %e9L -|soesion

(%i€z+) LG+ -~ - Myoid Bumnoay< | . - m
R S0 o|Lee+ LS+ (862 |2 | woid Buunoay
. . L£d0 .__ohm_m , ! . , . | B .
- (%9'91+)6'e+ . ewoou| Bupessdo< | %0'8L |%6Gl |seesjo%
Cvoe IANZANS log+ ieg+ |v2g |9z - | ewooul busessdo
o+ S TRMLAY e | . S o
S0+ . LHVNOIS | - | ,
80+ ' NILJIOY¥3IH i o . ., . R
v l+ S NIHINVYL . . mm”._. ! } m_.._' @ Nm—o_\ mN.V—‘ R sales HQZ
9L+ . NI9OYLNAN %) | : | -
A ~ NI9OdI o | ggequo | o
(%G'c+) LG+ o ~ seles IeN< P SOUBHRA _ﬂ:uox\ seosi04 | Ew) :0.__,__mv

(usA uol|g)

(3508104 "SA) MBIABAQ [BIOUBULY




2L mw.cmaxm.n_.mm U] 8SE8OU| .
, ‘218 asuadxa [3ABIL
‘uoneuoq ‘uonowold sajes
~ sasuadxa Jo Ae;aQg

g€+ - sasuadxs anjensutWpY

, pue Bujeg w esealoa(q
9L+ WOId SSOIO Ur'aseasdu. -
6'C+ awooul BuneladO<

(uak uolg)

lenoy

6 .‘nmn_,:o
Jseoalod

(%9'94+) 6€+

" Woud
SS0I9 Ul
asealoy|

‘dxe "uiupy
» Buyjes Ul
' aseasosq !

"dxe gy ul
asealou| .

(Us A uolyg)

L. e et FE R P L L e

iy | ——y @

1>

(3seos404

1) ewoou] bunesedo



‘8 sojeg AIEUIPIQ Hed 1aMO| 938 %2038 1Moy SHed Jaddn ‘g0z W TTJINY L 403x

- NVXN1I LYVADIS 3.._n:_>_<._.. NI9OYLN3IN NIDOd3

e O SIOOEL | oo

o g00zunfm e et I 00¢
so0zunr @ L Ottres)
e e eeessesesiseesonosooooooooooseees R 114

- (us A uolg)

" (4esA U0 JeaA) spnpoid oAl do] jo safes

w.._....‘@

gt
2




- DZ/9002

Vo

e ves

-~

6924 uo
15803404

Aiojusau)
19]ES3I0Y

~ —— u) aseasou| ,Qm”\“ :
TRl L ey o YA ’ ? .

86 s RSP " D 9%ug
T v N oA .

- J aoueuep

(Us A uong)

o %8

Juswesinquiiay

%Y Fi
uoisuedx3y

- wng-jeld I —
ewEn

wol) eduw|

(U A uoijig)

.

. (1eapuo seap) solesS DZ NIDODT.

0Z/5002




0L (9002 Aew ut payounel) yovW3d
(S00Z "unr ul payoune|) VYW LOV '19xe
£00Z aouls vmco.::m_ sjonpoud :sjonpoud mep,

.¥Q013X '~ 13OVNIY - ‘SASVO3d - .VISIAZ
O U N oz
Seeteeseeae REARRREEERE TS - B SR ot

ST T e og ] OF

moow.c:_,l | 0S- E
_ . e RRRRES eeennegeeee QG 4 09 -

R R e

1500Z°UNr @

(us A uolijig) .

T (1e9A UO JEBA) SPNPOI] MON JO SOlBS.

ey e

=




) L saseasiq m._._o:ooh:_ J0 @InlIsu| |euclieN s.ueder >n peysignd
._._E.<-u_E pue 18qoja() ele| ueamleq uwtmn 'Hoday-A|¥eap seseas|qg snoyoeju| 8y) u)-seidwes patjoljuod eyl jo ._2_._,._._:: sjuened ejoyl ..
. }se23104 -

LG6E - zse 98 oiL | veL . selEs JEeA-Ng
- 1. 1210}
«.r m.N . 2002/900¢ :
_ _ : ‘018 }001S | 2002/9002
: ,.m Ll |elUaWUIBA0D| uoseeg
| . | | sees.
E R KA . . 1 Keupio
si16  |¢ 1e91 oz | | oo
‘ 8¢ I 9002/5002 -
. . . ‘018 }00)1S  (9002/500¢
- L9 § @ ¢o ’ {EJUBWIUIAA0S)| UOSEES
N S . sajes
si6 |81z 66 |61 . freiipio
_ . . - 5002/¥002
viv'L 9've | . AR ‘ . uoseag
: : _ : e L . ¥002/€00Z
042 8'gl - I Ll |9 . - : - uoseag
_ . . . : . £002/200Z
8y |veh - | | zL |Ts Hosess
Amﬂ.:.mm:ocb_ soles ‘nag ‘unp -08(] ‘unp "08() | .:J_. .omn_-;m,.q e | oeq . ‘
sjuaned |RUOSEeS -iar | -uer | -mp | -uep | - | -uep | -'uep | =190 - .(ua A uol|ig)
J0 JoquInN,, : 900ZAd . | . S00ZAS P00ZAd  |ereooead|  €€00ZAL -




Zl

900¢ ung _ ‘6002223

o (%8Y) 0T

. 918 MI4IAVL
10} B|qeAlasal SJUNOJJE JO aseaidaq
€'8l- _ |
"S9|qeAI9dal SJUNOJOE pUB S9J0U 9pel} < -

2WOIUI JaN Ul 9SBaJ0U|

: sjsodap pue yse
mw? | }S P puey OA._ Woo-
(ua A uong) ol

SaUOJUSAU| sapundes
jusunsaAul

. | SIOIO™E H 2871 5 .
. sjesse poxy E8CH  sicode ue 8
- a|qibuey 7R I PP |

. SenuUNo8es w
igeiashieyy m mT

_wm_n_mam,oE mE:ooom
pue sajou OUN._._- AC®> CO____mv

(sye88Y) wEm: Hmmcw ouejeg

Saryamy

ol




€l

900z unp - -  500Z 99Q
, ~ (%0g€-) Zzoe- R
: m._:u._ucmax.m_ _m.u_,n_mo 10 uewAeq
col- ~  sejqeAed 18yi0<
XE)} 8LIOOU| JO JuaLAed sIPyI0 cosuadxe. -
vy . . , .= gezicay . PenIody sajqeded
9'0l-  SOXE} SWOOU} PANINOY< | @..lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁm e
(uaA uolg) SiqeAed ML oy
: Sjunodde pue 1A
Sajou Iped]
| ' 'Xe} 8Wwoou umﬂmwm
. | - (usA uoilig) -
. (seniiger) swsay| 198yg douejeg
reary () . .

f



P

pled spuspialp Yseg -

AR
. Z'Zl-  ssnAnoe Bujpueuly wWol Mol Ysed<
.v.NT $]9SSE paxy JO aseyoind .
692~
$oNuNoos Em::mgc_ pue 3|gejayJew Jo mwmco:i .

G'G8+ : 01
mm:::omm JuslulsaAul pue ajqejexiew Jo uondwapay .«

e saniAnoe BURSsAUl WOl SMOY Useo<

pied saxe)} awoodu| .

6L~ -

9+ UONEZIUOWE pue uoheioaids( .
2'gL+  9|BAIS08) SJUNOIOR PUB SSI0U Ul 8S8108(] »
goe+ - o .

's)s8181UI AJLOUIL PUE SBXE) SWOOU| 810)aq SO »
0'8Z+ Ssenanoe-bunesado wol smoy ysed<

(us A uoig)

900 "unr-

5002 92

'.\

(%€ Li+) 62h+

=04 =
SISUI0 ¢ N NF

SonIAIOY
Bupesado

SONIAIOY -
mc_o:mc_ 4

- SANANDY
mc:wm>c_

~

(s A uoifig)

EmEBEw MO| yseo




S-TN

%2401,

|vve

%G 2L
¥'9G
%Ll
0'¥S
%P9l

loes.

%1'9Z
068
%S0

lgoset

G'2ce

€92

o\on

oGl
%LGL

992
%L'S)

992
%SGl "

Qov.NN“
Iw
%Y by
yoL -
6'691

%tCl

l'ggl

%S 61
8'6¢
%081

vz
| %2
VAT A

%ZST

. ,. ) .v-mm‘
| %vee
1109

9°¢sl

}SB08.0
Ad

. 1SE09404

HZ

. [emoy

Hi

%0l .

81

%Ll

14
%ELL

05
%L'LL
G'eS
%E LT
G'G8-

HEBE -

00z}

0ELE

|62
WEBL

%8°0L

€0€

| %8l

G'0€"

| %boL

082
Qom 9Z
gy

| %¥8e

mmo
mmor

| %V'6
| 6°€l
ageL
Vv

%6SL |

|5z

%E 'L}

|g'sz
| %5'8¢
|0y

%€ 8E
G5
| §LL

,mo_mmho.xg | .
- mEooc:mz.

wm_mw ho %

- yold bupinoay |

sojes 4o %

mEoo.e_ Bunessdo
SBeSP%
" sosuadx3y .o.,w.m__

wm_mw Jo ...xu

"dx3g c_En< .w .m_.___wuwW
| 'sees0%

| soes 01800
. sojes JoN :

15809104
Ad

uwmom.._o m

|- 1se08104

- HL -

L€ 'INF UO PasiAG) }SBOBI0S

6 nm.._ uo ummom._ou

~ (usi uGliig)

e i e meom._om@oomﬁ_ :




o | e _ LEInruo
T T T T, posinal .
o ThSE T €6 ﬁ PR seosiog | ‘ | - |eny
S 07 ] L Gregsaoiow di uommen | HE900 _ - H2/S002

— mom._bﬂc:_g | (%Sv1-) 96~

. -_q_.x,.N.. .+ 60 .. v th ﬁmLE_ 2 r.ﬁcmb:_
S A s - Jgessjoym ) eseasou|’ )
L AT - | N _ ... 4 - __Swm

S g el T A s juswesinquuiey,
B p 08 ~wng-18|y. Eo._tomaE_

AT L S L

BJUNIOA -
wouy
oedw|

ng’ | (uaA uonE)

o SoUBLIBA JO UMOpYea.qg . =r 033
_ A Aiojuanu)
- - o 13]ES2|0UM

_ : Ul 8sea.ou|

v

i ..o..m-,;; a0l vo.,..m.. : m.”.nx‘uow..\r_,_n_
Zel ey - omn BT

morm:m . e 6'ge4 CQ . b %8
M| uo'pesies .| (uep uomng) | _ . jusiiesinquiisy
llllll . 1sedalo4 Jsev8i0d ' ' ) , ‘ Eﬁ“%&ﬁbﬂ: , *ﬂ h

. InD aoud

(%)

L_...-;:-..'_.J_‘_

(Ua A Uoi|iig)

’

... )sedalod s9leS Hz NIDOJ3 pPasiney.




L€ “InF uo , | -
pasinal . 6 "qed uo
jsessiod | - o ~ sedalod-

(%8'Cl-).6°¢-

) m..o- uononpal mmm:mn._.xm_.
N:vl. " C. .o . N

_..:.Q pasueApe sasuadx3]
| mwmcmaxm asey

S0+
sasuadxa co;oEoE S9|ES Ul 95B3.0U)
GZ+ HI woy padejaQ :
sosuadxa aajensiulwpy g Bulies "dxe gy Ul $50J9) Uj
* sasuadxe YRS Ul sebueyn< ~8seasnnq asealnaq
’ o . “dxe ‘ulwpy
65 -7 N©od3 . o ® wﬂuwwm“
g L+ "2j0 ¥0IS M09 NTHINYL . _ |
£'Z+  sejes AIBUIPIO MIHINY.L
. . .. $9|eg 19N< |
- (uak uoiig) S o | . L R . (UaA :o_____,m:
(3seo90404 6° qe4 'sA) wEooc_ m_-- nesado _omw_>om_
lla.llt@




- Xipuad

dy




6] usALs08=dHDL 21ea aBueyoxy spiepuelg Buinodey _m_ucmc_u _m:o:mEmE_ 1SHA

) 86 o . - . (s;seq oy n_a umSoE_ b:oEE 0} ejqreaydde oEouE
. : ' T - (pold Buunp oBeiene) eBraussied yuo._o...c_b_._os_z

%ol ¥
a5k . - . _ © mc:c:oooa .._o_._m_a_ooa. wc_u:_oxa awoau) uoz
2 . ] oEooc_ 19U ue Pedw Bupunosse :o_u_m__._vom 524 ppY
. UONE(NITRD 1SaIAU) bto_.__s_

SISBqQ SHd|

SaxXe) sWwodu| -

£l . . . o | . §)s02 m:_u:mcc_u:m eEouc__m_u_.a_._c.
- S, ?_mmn mm"_z sway Bupesado-uou cosvo_& PRV
- feE = . e N I - a_mun mm.m_rcfa. ac_ﬁono:_:umh Eosm,om _m,msnum. 7 (SisEQ'SYI)) -
; . . . T P T T l AT S - BT ENON " - XN _mmzco g
0. . ~sesed _umc_ Jofew -

- . " swey euondexs au.:vnz PPy

Ly RESo

e R T . Ewmn mxn__v mEs_._ucozaouxo_&o__on r_oz_ mc_.ano _mmsgu*

.

m...hl W b -

. w_._oum_.__nEou mmosm_._..._ Eo.__ ac_m_.a muomwa o_n_uzﬁc_ Jo :oaumEoEm
- EoE&:vu u..a usd .\anoa ._o :oau_uoaov

. T AR LB AT = g ~{siseq;
.. A 1 - _u‘wmoy,uaf_ u:_u_._:ooon coa_m_.iun @._82_ ucu, mEou_ _acoaaouxa o._m_xon ) .J_oi .mcmm._ono ammr.u“
00 . ‘ . SOMIUR UOHEPIIOSLOI PUR S2IUIIYIP JALR0 -
kA . Co S . swey Argiipioeaxa Jo LOfedLISSE)D - i
£l . T mucsot_u s|1se2q :o_um_ooaou d

L) siseq dvvor
Ww4HD  UqAdr ,
900z unp-uep

‘paepueys Bupunodoy [eucnewsajul pue aseueder 4o uosuedwo.

1




.. | E_v_o 1 mv_:w:> :N_E_cw oono L muoms_ oey mquD SelN -
| A dlroo E._m;a _mm:co©.__ [lew-a
B@@ Bmm msv £+xmu_vmmo Rmm Qe 5+ _m.r

Q:P_O mco;m_mm Loumm>c_ :

.w:o_ﬁmu_:.:EEoo th_oa.__oo“ nwﬁmgcoo |




14y

he SRR

N F . LAY E A

B TV e

[

iy BV 238 oz

4

9002 ‘I ¥snbny/L¢ AIne

BWEPOY 0ZNAY
04D pue Juapisa.d 3JIA 3ANNI9XS

"aL1"091vIoLLNIOVINEVHC IVONHD

TEFHN N

FEICE OF INTERHETD
CORPOR A

f

.>>o_Z®>O |eldueul{ pajepljosuoc) whsjuj 900CAd




"UMOUS S)UNOLE UO pasEq-Pale|no|es si %

‘USA Uoljjiq L°Q 0} papunos ale siUNoWwy ‘8JoN

"s9@ssauisng

s Auedwon ay} 108k Aew jey) sajjuielladun pue Sysii uo
paseq suole)dadxs wol) Jaylp Aew s)nsal |ENIOY "SpuUsi] pue
uoljeuwlojul Bunsixa Jo sisAjeue juauno s Auedwo) ay) Josjjo.
sjuswalels asay] ‘(. Auedwo), ay}) "p1] "'0D [ednadewleyd
1ebnyo Jo sjoadsoud pue sssuisng sy} o} bulurenad
sjuswalels mc_v_oo_-Emz:ou_ apnjoul Aew uonejussald siy |

!.l‘l@

Eo

~ sjuowelels BuOOT-pIEMIOS




| %eZL | %9LL | seiEsio %
6¢c- 126~ |88l |08 awoou| 18N
| %6l | %89T | eESI6%
+'0- ‘oje ‘abueyoxa ubialoy uo NOM- m 6Cl- me YA A 4 }joid mc_h:umm_ |
SSO| WOl pasealoap swoodul Bupeiado-uoN . m ) o :
(%2 0ge-) 672CL- 1o1d Buninoay< | %081 %L°GC $9|eg Jo 9
oy sy ele- 16Cl- [V'LC |6'6€ awicouj BugesadQ
(%€°1Le-) §2L- .. awoou| Bugessdp< o
vaoey L'y 19°9° 19°CSL | Z'6S) sajes 1oN |
(%L'v) 99 . soles 1oN< | | e ‘ e
(uak uoy)ig) . (%) _
-------74 eoueue m_wm_m mmmw (UsA uolig)

N e

. (Jesj _uo Jeg \) MBIAIBAQ |elouUBUIS




¥ (900z Aey ui payoune|) vyvNTd

(5002 "unp W payoune]) VHWI LIV 19X
£00Z aouls payaune] sponpold :sjonpold maN,

Vil L 6L+ o€l LLL SE9SIOA0 gooz'unr © googunp
oe 1ve  |60LL | €Ll | ousewoq B0 (%L'v-) 9'9-
O+ 18+ | T 9'0l S1oNpOId MEN,
S D R T (madiavL 1o%9)
20+ g0+l -'E'9EL - | 09EL - . - SelegieN:
RS R T RO .." pejepijosuoy .
Lez- 169 | €91 z'ee le1o)
" . *0]2 J20}S
- m g9+ G'9 - A0S ATdINYL s1onpoid .a,
N . . sajeg B8SISNQ
€19 1 €€l 66 gee Aeupio . MaN |
T o “ieTT | selegieN - :EWw:mwwmsm _mﬁ._o.sv...oem o9
e -lozeL lzest- | ‘ opsauioq
W9 A 9CSh e8| - peepiosio oyo  MHEINVL
- Mo\mu.u - ..“ souBLEA 940z unr moom unp (us A uonng)

Amm_mm 19N jo :Bouxmmhmv

(Ua A uoiliig)

~ (HL/S00Z ‘sSA) sales 18N



9002 unr

SaljIANOE (1'9y Ul JusWiSaAuUl aAIssalbby -
Q¢ asuadxa w9y Ul 9sealou|
asealoul
junoopeay Aq pasealoul sasuadx3 -
L*b- sasuadxa aAleNSIUIWPY
pue Buljag ul aseasou|
6t sasuadxa yQRoS Ul 8SEaI0U| »

xiw-janpoud ul abueyn -dx® "UIUpY

Q2 o1 $S0ID) Ui 8sealda(] - » BuiljeS Ul
gcClL- swoouj BugeradO< esealoU|
(usk uol[ig)

(Us A uolg)

(HL/S00Z "SA) awoouj Bunjesadp =




p'L+  S8HUNOSS JUSLWISOAU] JO SA[ES “ o/ O e . ;.o&
uo uieb woly pasesidu) uieb Aeuiploenxy « " %€ Tl %¥'6 S9IES 10 %
e oe4) B bt awosu| J19N< | . . : .
(e 5e+) 6% gGe+ 67+ |88L |6l auioouf JoN
Q'+ '0}J8 SWODUI PUSPIAIP '
LUOJ) PasSEaIdul 8Wooul Buipesado-uoN - m %561 %9l sajes 40 %
(%L°€2+) L'G+ Jyoid BuLnday< “
L'€g+ 1.6+ |86 L'V Jyo1d bulunosy
L'd 01139y . !
(%9'9L+) 6'¢+ awoou| bupesado< i %08l | %6°GlL sales 4o %
v+ JANTANS 99L+6¢+ (ViZ |S€EC swoou| bugesado
v O+ MHLAN _ | | :
G0+ LYVADIS '
80+ NILd3OHIH i . .
: e So|BS 19
P+ N1AIWYL G+ “ _‘ m+. _m ek : Sivl N _m ﬁ. 2
gL+ . NIDOY1N3N (%) | ‘
0 |
L'g- NIOOd3 ' L 6'qa4 uo
o e J n ua 1
(%S'e+) L'G+ soles JoN< soueleA | IBNIDY | ceoaiog (ua A uolljg)
(UsA uoyg)

(1SB28104 'SA) MBIAJIBAQ |BIoUBUl{




Z2'l- asuadxa gy Ul aseasou] .
"0)@ asuadxa |pAel]
‘uonieuo ‘uonowold s9ES |
sasuadxa Jo Aejag
g+ sosuadxa sARElSIuIWPY
pue Buljeg Ul 8seal23(] «
9L+ 1JOld SSOIS) Ul 9SEBIOU| »

6'C+ awooul Buyesadp<

(uah uoig)

6 "qe4 uo
jsedalo

[enpdy

(%99L+) 6'C+

jyoid

ss019) U]

_dxa ‘uppy aseaiou|
g Buillog Ul pEEiaa
asealna

"dxa g9y u
’ ISEDIoU|

(ua A uong)

cmmoeom 'SA) BWOJU| mczeuao_




] sajeg AdeulpaQ ;ed samo| “03e ¥o03g A0 THed saddn *goog W NIV L 4od*

NVXNLIY LHVADIS NI1dIAVL NIDO¥LNAN NIDOd3

900z UNM @ oo o
GooZ'uUnrE | S

(ua A Uoljiig)

00

00l

0°0¢

00€

0'0%

" (ieeA uo Jesp) spnpoid oA do] Jo sefes

=0




02/9002 ~ De/sooz

L3

e

genbolg o [vke | T HL

6'ged uo
15894.004

soueuep | . |emjoy (ua A uonpg) -

o ew [em | wm
o . |les. |7 oe.

R e e L e

9007 - §00Z .E.m“\r_.co____mv._.
. 1 T Jualussinquiay
wng=1eiy

wouyy} yoedw|

1oep

(Us A uoljiig)

(1e9A UO JBBA) SBJES DZ NIDOdT




Ol  (900z Ae ul payoune)) vuvINI
(§00Z "unp u paysune|) VYIWILOV '9Xa
£002 @2uIs payoune| sjonpoud :sjonpoid manN,

vao3ax 139VNIY SASYO3d  VisIAg -

00
0’k
0T
0€
0y

gooc'unr'm . .. . , 0°S
e m.m—a .......... L O@
||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| _ O.N

gooc'unrm

(us A uoljiig)

~ (1B9A UO JEBL) SPNPOId MON JO SOES,




seseasi(] SN0|}oeju} JO 8inysu} [euoljeN s .ueder Aq paysignd

‘udy-plw pue 19q019Q 818| Ueamlaq poped ‘Uodeyd A|Neapn seseas|q snondeju| 8y) u) sejdwes po|(oijutd oy} jo tequnu sjueijed |jgjoL .,

}sedelidy .

.G'6E Z'S¢ 9'9 9Ll vl 8|S Jea AN
. {ejo]
- ©O ] £00Z/900F_
. 010 Y2018 | 2002/9002
) ) ._m L |eJUBWIUIBADS)| ucseag
_ ) sajes
- B .N g Kleuipio
: . . - N o |Bj6)
GlL6 €8¢ €9l |02l 9002/500Z _
. . . "0}9 %001S  [9002/5002
B L9 g9 ¢o |[EJUSWIUIBAOS)| uosSEas
: . s9|es
GlL6 8'le 6'6 6Ll A1euipio
. . . . $002/¥002
vivi 9ve geec vl uoseag
. . . ¥002/€002
0LL 881 L (9L uoseag
. . . - £002/200¢
811 vcl L N m_ uoseos
Am_uc_w..m_.._or_._.v soeg e T-Tq ‘unp o8] ‘unp ‘aeq ..c_:. 00q-1dy ..E._.z ..oon_ ) o
sjuaned T -’inp -'uer =ir | -tuer | -np | -ruep -uer [ -0 {us A uojng)
|euoseeq - -
900CAd ZH'E00ZAS €' €00CAA

40 isqwnn,,

PO0ZAS

S00ZAd

ey | mguy i@

‘souBWIIOHa SB[eS ‘NTHINY.L




¢l

4 010 N14IAVL
1o} 9|qBAIR93) SJUNOJJR JO 9sEBI03Q
e'gL-
S9|qeAI80a) SJUNCOJke pue S3JoU apel] <

swooul 18N Ul 8sealtou|
L X4% sjisodap pue ysed<
(us A uolliig) . |

goog'unr

_so0zoea

(%8'1-) 0'¢e-

- seuojueAu;  SSNUNO3S

m.mm_._uOQm.._‘_uEEm Voo jusunsaal|

sjesse paxy E8THM .
9|qibue

u}i

M sysodsp pue
senunoas % wm :mmo
a|qelien ke-g1 e

sajgeAIsoal muc:ooom
pue sejou apes] Em> co____mv

+

) Am#mmm,q

) Sway| Jesys souejeg



€l

900¢ ‘unf

alnypuadxg |ejiden jo juswied
£0L- sa|qefed Jayi0<

Xe} 8Wo9u| J0 JusWAed

9'QlL- S9XE] SWOOU] PanJidy<

-(us A uolg)

SIUNOYoE pue

SO . sesuedxe
mm.m..@@ﬁnﬁ.euuumm_o_o,q so|qeled

g

5002 %@

$9JoU epel).

- XE] 9WOooU) panidoy

(Us A uolg) -

) swl

o} 199YS SvUEleg



i

¢'Cl- pled spuspIAIp Yses »
Z2'2L- sanAnoe Buoueuy woly Smoy ysed<

LA S]OSSE pax)y JO 8seydind .
6'94-

$8131JN2SS JUBLLISIAUL PUE Bjqejadieul JO 8SeydINd s
G a8+ ) £

‘S9NILNOSS JUsWSaAUI pue 8|qejaxJew Jo uojdwapsy
€'¢-  sonIAoe BunSaAUl WOY SMOY USBD<

L'6L- pied saxe) swooy| -
o+ uoneziyowe pue uojjernaldsq .
$'8L+  2|geAie2al SJUNOJJE pUE $8J0U Ui 9SED129(] »
G0e+

s}S84a]Ul AJLOUIW pue Saxe} awodaul 2J010q SWOIU| «
0°'gZ+ SanApoe Hunesado woy smoy ysed<

(us A uoyg)

900 "unr

s Lk .

S8IAROY
Bunelado

SORINIY
Buioueur4

S8IIAROY -
Bunsaaul (Ua A uolg)

T juswelels Moj4 yse)




Gl

%LOL | %T6 %EZ}
*_.”.S 9'Gl 8’8l
%S Ll %L'Sl %S°61L
v9s |99z |86C
-%.L°91 %L°Sl %081
ovs |99z |vLz
%19l %S'SL %S L1
0¢s |€9z |92
%1V 9¢ %V LT %¢ 'S¢
0g8 |99v |v8e
%S 0Y %Y Ly % 6€
Gogl  |¥0L  |1°09
gzze |e69L | 92SL
}seoalo4{ | iseoalo4 |enjoy
Ad HZ HL

L€ "Inf UO pasiAsl 1Sedalo-

%2 0l %80l %46 sa[es Jo %
8'LE 6Ll 6'¢El 9wl JoN
%P LL %E"8lL %E 9L sales JO %
A% €0¢ L'¥2 Woid Buinosy
%ELL %V '8l %6°Gl Seleg j0 %
0vS G'0¢ §'€e | swoouj bunesadQ
%L L1 %691 %E Ll s8es 10 %
Ges |08z |§'Se sasuadx3 vy
%E L2 %E 92 %S'82 So[es Jo %
G'G8 Gt WA ‘dx3 wiwpy  Bules
%€'8E | %P8E %€ '8¢ $9[ES J0 %
002 |S€9 |S9S s9jes 40 1S0D
OElE |§'99) |SLv) SOES PN
}sedalo }seoaio }seoa104
Ad | He e (UsA uolg)
6 'q94 U0 JSBI3J0

... .. .1SE09I04Q00ZAd . . .




. n_momh Emuc:_o> 5
Eoc 6@. wig boEm>c_
-J3[esajoyMm UI'asealou] .

~ .

Y EmeE:nE_mm_
..;E:w.ﬁm_u_ wody joedw,

(ua A uonng)

LE ‘Inf uo

pasiAol o
}seoal04 [ENjoY
__._NBOON ‘ IN\moom
1 (%S PL-) 9°G- RS

lieosy
BJUN|OA
th

S0UBLIBA JO UMOpPYEaIg

ovo ONN 900ZAH
O.mm mwm e IN ..\.
e _:_._ o B B
uo pasirai- 6984 7 1 {usx uog)
...... jseoaioy - | 19699103 R

.
AlojusAuy
Is[eseioy
Ul asealou|

%8

jusuesINquiley
wng-e|d
wioyy oedu) v L
: Y 80Ud
(uaA uoijig)

~1SeD8104 s9les HZ . NID0d3 pasiney




LE 'Inf uo A o
PasIAGI 6 ‘o4 uo
}SB29.104 _ lseoslod

G 0O- | uononpal sasuadx3y Txu C _‘-v B¢
Al N
Hl 0} padueApe sasuadx3l

sosuadxa g9y

G0+
sasuadxs ucnowoid S3jES Ul ISEAIOU|
G T+ H| woy pafejaq SN L
sasuadxa aanesIuIW Buie . | Woid
’ lleJisiuipy @ buljjleg dxe gy u 88018 i
sasuadxe y9R9 S ul sebueyd< 9sealoaQ aseald8Q
"dxa "ulwpy ‘
s 8 Buljes u
68'G N1©0d3 sseelou| [5-3G ¢
8 L+ *032 Y201S "JA0D N1HINVL :
£'Z+ sajeg Aleulp:O NTdINVYL
Sales 19N<
(uaA uoyg)

(Us A uoig)

(1508104 6°394 'SA) swoou| buizesadQ pasiray




Xipuaddy




6l

UIALB 06=4dHOI 2k aBueyoxy

spiepuels bunioday [e1oueurd jeuonewWIU] (SHAI

O S T P

86 ﬁm_mmn mm"a }ss19U) btomp_s 0} o_nnu__n% o:.._oam_
%P 6P (poid Buunp éBg1aae) eBejliasiad 18a.181U] AU
861 , Biifiinooo Wopisifbae BUIBAISKS SHiSH ION
zZZ ewoou] uoc uo joedw| Bugunodde _._oz_m_mmua ¥98q PPy

Y F1e = TH

Uone|nes 1saseyl] b_._o:_z

(5 SERREE) E) CEEENTREN]
ELL- .r.moxﬂ I EVE
£l #1505 Bujsueuy piE wE,o.o:_,_m_ucu_._u,q }
(s1seq sy 41) swey Burigiodo-Uou (5Npep) f PPV
9iz - P e ?_uun mm n_a uco._a m:nﬁoao :3»2 EoEmou Bmznuw
- N Co ) - e S AT Ly e - oL
0 uuumu _amo_ ho_.nE -
swe)i fRUoHdesxa (5MPep) PPY
o - Vse ?_mma mxn_c SLY. _mm%%oxo 9i0jaq Eo._a m:uu._oao _um_.._._u
. [P ’ 7, T T Yo S
oc- o mcoauc_nEou mmo_._a:n Eo.c mc_m_.a sje8SE o_n_wrcﬂc_ j0 :o:awEoEa
2 vo EoEa_:_...o pue Em_a stonoa h_c mm_.um_uoaov :
_“ €l 987 , : - : R (5/5%q)
K ‘ o mm_n_a w«umaE_ m:nz:ouum :oEm__.__uuu o._o__on _u_._a mEou_ H@.@%oouo ,o._o__mm ﬁm._n mmw.mhwno _mu‘::o*
00 §9|QU9 UOKEP)IOSUOD pUR mou:oh,ot_u,._oﬁo .
zo $way| Euc_uhogxu 01 vopediji§se]s -
£l ou:&ot_v m_mmn :,mm,m_uo.aov :
WwiHS  ugadr
800 unr-uer

siseq Sy dl

,m_mna sydl)
Ixy _mm-:_o

SISeq dVvVOr

piepuels Buunoooy euogeussiul pue asaueder jo uosteduiod




SeINSEa|\ pue asnen
- 1299y NIDOYLNIN/NIDOC -




Le

(%66< '1S9) (|22l jo uols|dwo) (Ud) ¥L InrE

901)j0-pesy Jo uofoadsul MTHIN (enl) ¥ Inrm

sjueld efdiwounsyn 3 ewpin Jo uoioadsul MTHIA (H4-NUL) 0€-62 Un‘m

|B93. JO JUBSWIBIUBWWO) (nyl) g1 unrm

1.A09) uenjodosjapy 0AN0 L AQ [[eDal || SSe|D SE UONBOYISSED) - . (POM) ¥l UNPE
swdiys Jo uoisuadsng (UO)) 21 unrm

abesn ($04) wnias yed [e1e4 uibuo-gn jo uolesynuapl  (Jes-u4) OL~6 Unfm
SN 8yl wody Buneuiblo |elsyew mel
jo abesn ay) Buipsebal uonnysul |eoipaw e woy Auinbup (UO) g UnNrm
- 900¢ -
$00z ‘0f "dos Ag wnias }SU-MO| 0} Yaims 0}- _

:UoealylloN MTHIN JO 9dUENSS| 00 ‘8L do4m

s|elia}ew YSI1J-Mo} 0}

youms o) Aljiqissod ay) alojdxe pue g oy} wouy Buijeulbuo

sjeus)ew mel Jo abesn uo uonebisaaul Jno Aued oj- , .

'UOIEOUNION MTHIN O 8ouenss| €00¢ 'GZ o8 m
SN 8y} Ul souapioul 359 J0 Alanodsiq €002 ‘€¢ 99(m
uonsanb ur syonpoud ayj 1o} }ng wbodg jo Buunejnuely £00¢ Bnv=AeiNm
uonssnb ui sjonpoud ay) 4oy Yjhg uibonnap jo Buunjoeue - 200z des-unfm

. liedsy NAN/Od3T Jo punoibyoeg




zz

| o Sjeajew [ed1bojolq 0} pajejal
UONeW.ojul pue UojetlIojur Aioyenbal jo buleys ayj ur seousioyad
ﬁ
-uIBLIo JO A1UN092 8Y) 0} pale|dd uoijewlojul Aue aa1808l
Jou »o8yo jou pip ueld uonenuwlo; ayl ‘uoiippe uj -jueld bulnjoejnuew
¥1ng 8y} Ag paumo Ajuo sem uibLio Jo AJunod 8y} buipjebal uonewiou|

P31ONPUOD JoU S)NSal SNOIASId 9y JO UOEolIIoA-0Y
1 | A
5002 ‘QL 'q94 PIIEP ‘S|[ELISJEW YSL-MO| O} S|eliejewl
3SU-YB1y o aBesn Yo}Mms 0} UOIEDIIION PaNss M THIN USUM awi} Ui iV o

SUONEN)IS SUIN0I-UOU JOJ 81Npad0id UoNoadsul/MalAal Ul SaIouaIdlag
| R |
"SN 8Y} Ul paIdA0ISIp
SEM 82UspIouUl S aY] uaym palonpuod uolebnssAul ayj jo sl
‘ay} je “1dag (YO) 9oueinssy Aljenp ay} 0} uoisiai@g buunjoeinueip suy
Agq papodaisiw sem gD 8y} Jo uiblio Jo AIJunod uo s)nsad uolebilssau| m

i G




1 %4

papelbdn mn. M cho_ym_:me ay} yum Ajdwod 0})
suonenyis aulInNoJ-uou Joj $s890.d Uoijdadsuy/malnal Y| (¢

(syuiod jse| puEe )81y 8y Je syo8yd osie “Jdaq vD)
sjueld uonenuuo) pue Buunjoeynuew 3ing ay) Aq --paddiys s1 jonpoid paiedsid pue
‘Panlaoal ‘paddiys ‘paonpoid si M Ng usym-- sawl  paxosyd a4 jim uibilo Jo AlJunoy) «
1da@ v pue eld uohenuilc) syl yum Hodas syj aueys pue ‘papiodsl st SO 8y} Jo
uiBlIo Jo A1unod ayy yoiym ui Jodas uopoadsul ue aledald |im juejd Buunjeinuew ying <«
.. PaoNpoLul 8q [|IM WaISAS
h o 121Vie) m_a_u_:c._ B pue paleys aq {im C_m_.._O Jo \Cuc_‘_oo 9] UoO uoljewllojuj ‘AN |

sjue|d uoijenwsoy pue

BulnjoeinuBew YINQ 8y} Yim paleys pue “1daq v ayl AQ psjessd a( ||im uoijeulioul

Aiojejnbal 1S8]1.| 8y apn|oul [im Yyaiym  AIojusau] sjeualey |eaibojoig, ‘aseqelep vy
pajeys aq |im uonjewlojul Aioyenbal jsasje ()

18)y
"U0N93s D 8y} WO} uonanisul syl Buimoljo} Ino paiied
sem ssa00.d Buunjoejnuew enjoe syl ‘jueid Bulnjoeinuew yjng syj Jo Uoijoes
(OD) 1043u09 Aljenb ay) je pa}j0Jjuod pue pasayieb aiam uonjewlcjul Alojeinbal jsaje|
aU) pue pasn s|eualew ay) jo uiblo jo Aljunod Buipnioul uoljeudlojul Bulnemuey-
aioyeg

i SOINSEBIN




BIDO] 9)NSNA ‘NZIWIYS O)YOwWOo]| ‘epaeh omv_ ‘epiyon 2eN
dlroo wieyd-rebnyo@a :jlew-o
Bmo 182¢-€(0) 18+ :Xed $5G0-€/2€-€(0) L8+ ‘9L

q:o‘_w Suolje|oy JO}SaAU|

suofjeslunwwo) aje1odio) :sjoejuoD

e



nECEIVED

Hh KOV 28 P 2 by

OFFICE OF INTERMATY

9002 ‘I ¥snbny/Le Anp

DI 1USOJES

nun Bunaysep sibejens Joy

1daq Buluue|d o169jeAg Jo Jobeue |e1ouaD)
juapisald 99IA

‘Al "0 IVIILLNIDVINEVYHC IVONHO

HIM

CORPORATE FRMSpCE

‘SOIIAIIOY O'9Y JO MBIAIBAQ




‘sassauIsng s Auedwo) ay) 108ye Aew
12y} Saljulenadun pue SySll Uuo paseq suolnejoadxs
Wwouy Jayip Aew SjiNsal |enjoy "spusi) pue

uoneuojul Bunsixa 1o sisAjeue ualno s Auedwo)

9y} 109|j81 sjuawsle)s asay | (Auedwo),

ayl) "p11 09 |eonnadewleyd rebnyy Jo sjoadsold
pue ssauisng ay) 0} bululepad sjuswaiels

Bunjoo| pJemio) spnjoul Aew uolnejussald siy |

S A P T R Ve i e R GATh Tl I S m S eI e’ i S T S T e T D S LA § e L e L

......@ w”—COEGHN—w mc_v_00|_ U._®>>LOH_




900z AInr JO pus 0 sy

aseyd [eoiul|d ayy 1o} pasedaud
Buraq Apuanno syoafoid Buipnoul

SINN S1 _ sjpaloid /€

L __m..:..m.._

| Je|naseAolpJes | JejnoSeAOIpIED

G >mo_ou_.__o

oljojllod juswdo|aAasg _ 0l|0JL04 YoJeasay

Oll00d @8y Juaund




Amm_n:“m jeuogjeu-pinw ul uonedpiued 1 quawdojanap B3I SESSIIA0 ”vm:_.zmnca ‘spoafoid a0y Soyels)

Eo_mEmcg m_..omo_ova

1

uibod3 - s . .A_m.%_w ._.<> Ry S
Ae:__&:mos tmEm_m : o ._<>"..._,<_,. LT
oL CSAVEL T MEWS. T
C . M @ B ‘..._.\m.x.moﬁbbumwtmmmmmsbu, wmmcm_u S TEWepseD) :o:omh—:_ )

- -

L fon satedoo)pag

N \. o q . o6

(sisouuo 16Afl) SASE6A

Aommom_vm:_._o._ov N t.»__. BIWBPY.

o EEQ—O( Amn_m“ m._rcwunu(

<.

>mo_o:=EE_....

Em_amcm._ ._.

- r‘ r - " fn,..M. i .\U. ] \(5,. . n .m. .“w._x P .- m B u.r;..“..,.. Pu

_ W R yiueus feuel "BISIINY

. . - : R B R < /4 g

e e e R s T T W P i

(Virs) ejwajoy
(vy) eaweloy

OVEELSHD
(A Banvog) pEEy

ﬁ
%«ocoE\uo \b_\\ m.bo\mk

- A29) undeosay
. ...Khm ov) udaoseH

(jroeannuog) pErY

(12 E1000) pyL
(oqwos /040) EPOIBX.
{ewdAw sdiyinw) Bliliayny

=_ wwmr_m




(vIrs) snuype syzedopl
9|IuaAn[ }asuo JIWBISAS

Apogue (euojoouow ioydesa.

-y 2 (e _;
90dv g-T| UBWNY-RUE pazZiuewny BiWeRY
sljuyle piojewnayy
Apoquue _mco_oocoE ,
901dy Jaoueo [ejoalojo) (101924 YImoL9 [EijByIopuT (unseny) gevy
) Jg|noseA) 493A-1jue nmN_c.mE:I
Joyqiyul
90" 1dy 190uEd Bunj |12 |[EWS-UON aseupy aUisoI&} (LYIHAIAOT) (ensoiel) SLvLy
Joydeoal J0joe) yimolb [ewispid3
oo lep (jueanipe) Jsaued uojoD) ajjogelawnuy Bpojax
(uonensiLpe
90 Aey pue abesop |euonippe)
m_Em:m [eusy unsicdoiyiAla UelNy JUBUIQUIOISY ubodg
G009 m_Eucm paonpul-Adelayiowayn)

D suneday aoyg

juabe jesA-nuy

(sriBadog) y96Y

R T s it

“sme)g buijig syoelold Jofepy




Aue

9 o 920 wolj "0)8 uonedIpul
pasuall|-u| |euoInppy Ll _m_:ow_oE MBN l
(suewny ui Aaeoyd smoys 1daosuod Jusiudo|aasp m.£ Jey; salllaA))dasuo) Jo Joold = 00d
1 L0Z-6002 8002 002 900z 5002
09 [Teiwsuy jeusy | odd . SE8SJaAO/VY og'lpv
NLLJIDONTH| | VH3OHIN YaoT3Ix VYAW3LOV ENIREERE(R
00pY | sisoiodoslsQ o4 e
NILSVAY | [ VAIANOSE . NILSVAV T AR |
VIO _ sisolodosisQ OTOSN w. ASVYHIANI
VHIDNIN | EZACE NILSVYAY %@E
T SessiaAQ/oa : Z_O@n_

LLO-INO

SISOYLIID) JaAIT

| 3doo/oad

1eak yoes psuueld sbuiji4

gd._@me\x@
.ﬂ.w e Ipy -
©|_vaonax |-

O10sN |
VAIOMVL |,

D o) m.:;mn_mI UG

N hw<>< w..,.u.ﬁ SNHAJOD |

e L R R T

B |
0

"(,00d 1s0d) suoissiugns _umgom_o._n_




BIMOL 9NSNA ‘NZILIYs o¥owo] ‘epaely aey ‘epiyosn 2eiN
| dl-0o'wueyd-1ebnyo@. :jlew-o
L099-182¢-€(0) 18+ Xed $G50-€.2¢-€(0) 18+ 8L

dnolo) suoije|ay J0}SaAu|

.wco_ﬁmo_c:EEoo ajelodio) :S}oeu0N




S o T E e A e Ry g T TR TR R IR M T TV R A VAT W e TS T T T g ;

rransfatfon in rhe case of any discrepancy found between documentation.
_.:;} {» ; \ FASF
1 , 7’ F Dcua
n

CHUGAI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. Creating é/gl!ue for Life
s

e} Rectw G

OVERVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANY PERFORMANCE . ( on -audlted)

ICORILE

(for the third quarter of fiscal year 2006) “0rPORATE A TIOKAT

: IMAMNE £

Name of Company: Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. October 24, 2006
Stock Listingsiz Tokyo

Security Code No.: 4519

(URL http://www.chugai-pharm.co.jp/english)

Representative: Mr. Osamu Nagayama, President and CEQ, Chairman of the Board of Directors

Contact: g Mt. Yoshio Itaya, Vice President and General Manager of Finance and Accounting Department
Phone: ’ +81-(0) 3-3281-661 1

1. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Adoption of simplified method: None ,

(2) Change in accounting policies: None

(3) Change in scope of consolidation and equity method: None

2. Consolidated Operating Results for the Third Quarter of FY 2006 (January 1 — September 30)

{1) Results of éperations {Consolidated) Note: Amounts of less than one million yen are omitted

Net Sales % change | Operating Income % change| Recurring Profit % change
3" quarter of FY 2006 (Jan.-Sept.) ¥227,161 million - (1.6) ¥39,462 million  (30.8) ¥42 172 million  (29.7)
3™ quarter of FY 5005 {Jan.-Sept.} ¥230,965 million 8.0 ¥57,044 million 57.2 ¥59,987 million 58.5
FY 2005 (Jan.-Dec.) ¥327,155 million ¥79,168 million ¥82,091 million
NetIncome % change | YT per | N e per

3 quarter of FY 2006 {Jan.-Sept.) ¥27,190 million  (39.3) ¥49.09 ¥49.02
3" quarter of FY 2005 (Jan.-Sept.) ¥44,798 million 128.4 ¥81.44 ¥80.81
FY 2005 (Jan.-Dec.) ¥53,632 million ¥97.00 ¥96.33

Note :Percentages represent changes compared with the same period of the previous fiscal year.

Qualitative Information Regarding Operating Results

Consolidated net sales for the fiscal period under review totaled ¥227,161 million, down 1.6% compared with the same period last year.

Sales were lower than in the same period of the previous fiscal year due to NHI reimbursement price revisions and the decline in sales of
the mainslay‘: product Epogin, recombinant human erythropoietin, due to the introduction of the flat-sum reimbursement system for
dialysis treatment. In addition, despite purchases of Tamiflu for government stockpiles, sales of the anti-influenza agent were down
because this year’s moderate influenza season ended in February, sooner than the previous year when a large-scale outbreak continued
through Febrglary and March, Sales of the recombinant human granulocyte-colony stimulating factor G-CSF Neutrogin, however, rose on

the back of sirong performance in Europe. The anti-tumor agent Herceptin. an anti-HER2 monoclonal antibody, and the osteoporosis

treatment Evista also exhibited stellar performance, with sales outperforming those of the same period of the previous fiscal year.

Overseas sales, including exports, totaled ¥20.284 million, up 18.2% compared with the same period last year, representing 8.9% of the

Company’s net sales.

Al the profit level, operating income and recurring profit totaled ¥39,462 million, down 30.8% and ¥42,172 million, down 29.7%,

respectively, compared with the same period last year, due to the decrease in sales, increase in cost of sales and the aggresswe investment

in R&D» activities. Net income was ¥27,190 million, a 39.3% decrease compared with the same period last year.

R&D expenses for the period under review amounted to ¥39.444 million.

]



{Reference) Results of operations (Non-Consolidated)

, Net Sales % change | Operating Income % change] Recurring Profit % change
3" quarter ofFY;:ZO()ﬁ (Jan.-Sept.) | ¥216,580 million  (2.5) ¥33,779 million  (34.8) ¥37,564 million  (32.5)
3 quarter of FY.2005 (Jan.-Sept.) | ¥222,060 million 7.2 ¥51,824 million  57.6 | ¥55635million  59.5
FY 2005 (Jan.-Dec.) ¥314,524 million ¥72,024 million ¥76,057 million
Netncome_sechunge | TPy | N [comeper S
3" quarter of FY 2006 (Jan.-Sept.) ‘ ¥25,007 million (42.2) ¥45.15 ¥45.08
3" quarter of FY, 2005 (Jan.-Sept.) ¥43,279 million 135.6 ¥78.67 ¥78.07
FY 2005 (Jan.-Dec.) ¥51,367 million ¥92.89 ¥92.24
(2) Financial conditions (Consolidated) _
Total Assets Shareholders’ Equity Equity Ratio Net Assets per Share
3" quarter of FY 2006 (Jan.-Sept.) ¥447.447 million ¥379,468 million 84.4% ¥681.90
3" quarter of FY. 2005 (Jan.-Sept.) ¥424,088 million ¥356,499 million 34.1% ¥646.90
FY 2005 (Jan.-Déc.) ¥456,442 million ¥368,306 million - 80.7% ¥665.29
Results of cash flows {Consolidated)
Cash Flows from Cash Flows from Cash Flows from Balance of Cash and
Operating Activities | Investing Activities | Financing Activities Cash Equivalents
3" quarter of FY 2006 (Jan.-Sept.) ¥41,569 million ¥(15,795) million ¥(18,813) millicn ¥82.255 million
3" quarter of FY 2005 (Jan.-Sept.) ¥56,395 million ¥(7,841) million ¥(11,559) million ¥94, 517 million
¥64,663 million ¥(35,459) million ¥(12,556) million ¥74,380 million

FY 2005 (Jan.-Dec.)

Qualitative lﬁformation Regarding Financial Condition {Consolidated)

1) Changes in the Company’s Finan

cial Condition

Total assets at the end of the period under review were ¥447,447 million, down ¥8,994 million from the previous fiscal year-end, The

principal reasons for this decline were lower balances of notes and accounts receivable owing to the decline in net sales, Total liabilities

amounted to ¥67.979 million, down ¥18,464 million from the previous fiscal year-end. This decline was mainly due to the payment of

outstanding:i)ayables and corporate taxes. Working capital (current assets minus cutrent liabilities) came to ¥264,551 million, and the

current ratid was 524.67%, reflecting the Company’s sound financial condition.

Net asset totaled ¥379,468 million, and the equity ratio was 84.4%, compared with 80.7% at the end of the previous fiscal year.

2) Cash Flows

’

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥41.569 million, down ¥14,826 million compared with the same period last year.

This decreas_fc was mainly due to a decline in net profit before taxes and an increase in the payment of corporate taxes, which offset a

decline in accounts receivable.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥ 15,795 million, down ¥7,954 million compared with the same period last year, due to

acquisition of fixed assets, etc.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥18.813 million, down ¥7,254 million compared with the same period last year, as a

result of dividends paid.

Resulting from these activities, cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period totaled ¥82,255 million, up ¥7.874 million at the

beginning of the period under review.

3. Consolidated Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2006
The Company has made no revision to its outlooks for the full fiscal year 2006, announced on July 31, 2006.

3
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{Millions of Yen)
Figures are rounded off to the nearest 100 million.

; Consolidated

‘ Third Quarter of Third Quarter of Third Quarter of Third Quarter of

i FY2006 FY2005 Change (%) FY2006 FY2005 Change (%)

{Jan.-Sept.) (Jan.-Sept.) (Jul -Sept.) (Jul.-Sept.)
Epogin 45,000 51,000 (11.8) 14,100 17.800 {20.8)
Neutrogin 25,600 23,100 10.8 9,100 8,200 11.0
Tamiflu 21,700 23,300 (6.9) 5400 100 5,300.0
Sigmart 12,700 13,200 (8.0) 4,200 4,700 (10.6}
Rituxan 12,700 1'2,500 1.6 4,500 4,400 23
Alfarol 10,500 11,400 {7.9) 3,500 3,800 (7.9}
Herceptin 10,100 1,700 3.2 3,700 2,800 32.1
Evista 9,300 6,000 - 550 3,400 2,400 41.7
Kytril i 9,100 8,600 53 3,200 3,100 32
Suvenyl ' 6,400 5,700 12.3 2300 2,000 £5.0
Oxarol 5,400 5,200 38 1,900 1,800 5.6
Furtulon 4,900 6,800 (27.9) 1,500 2,100 __(286)
Rythmodan 4,800 5.200 (1.7 1,600 1,700 (5.9}
| Pegasys i 4,300 5,700 (24.6) 1,300 2,000 {35.0)

Rocephin . 3,900 3900 0.0 1.300 1,300 0.0
Renagel 3.600 3,200 125 1,300 1,100 18.2
Euglucon 3.100 3.600 (13.9) 1,000 1,200 (16.7)
Xeloda 1,800 1,900 (5.3) 600 700 {14.3)




Figures are rounded off to the nearest 100 million.

o~

' Non-Consolidated

Third Quarter of Third Quarter of Third Quarter of Third Quarter of
FY2006 FY2005 Change (%) FY2006 FY2005 Change (%)
(Jan_-Sept.): (Jan.-Sept.) ' (Jul.-Sept.) {Jul.-Sept.)
Domestic Sales -

Epogin : 45,000 51,000 (11.8) 14,100 17,800 (20.8)
Neutrogin 8,400 9.200 (8.7) 2,700 3.300 (18.2)
Tamiflu 21,700 23,300 (6.9) 5.400 100 5.300.0
Sigmart 1_ 11.000 11,500 {4.3) 3,600 3,800 (5.3)
Rituxan 12,700 12,500 1.6 4,500 4,400 2.3
Alfarol 10,500 11,300 .1 3,500 3,800 (19
Herceptin 10,100 7,700 312 3,700 2.800 32.1
Evista ” 9,300 6,000 550 3.400 2,400 41.7
Kytril $.100 8,600 5.8 3,200 3,100 32
Suvenyl’ 6,400 5,700 12.3 2,300 2,000 150
Oxarol : 5.400 5.200 38 1,900 1,800 5.6
Furtulon: 4,900 6,800 {27.9) 1,500 2,100 (28.6)
Rythmocian 4,800 5,200 (7.7) 1,600 1,700 (59
Pegasys :'; 4.300 5,700 (24.6) 1,300 2.000 (35.0)
Rocephin 3.500 3,900 0.0 1,300 1.300 0.0
chagel:l_ 3,500 3.200 9.4 1,200 1,000 5.1

| Euglucon 3,100 3,600 (13.9) 1,000 1,200 (6.7}
Xeloda ' 1,800 1,900 (5.3) 600 700 {14.3)

Export Sales *

Neutrogin 7,100 5,300 34.0 2,000 2,200 ©.1)
Sigmart 1,500 2,100 (28.6) 400 900 (55.6)
Uicerlmi_“ 1,100 500 222 400 300 33.3




Consolid%&ted Balance Sheets

' As of September 3b, 2005 As of September 30, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Accaunts Millions of Yen % Millions of Yen % .| = Millions of Yen %
Assets :
I Current uséets:
Cash and deposits 94,517 82,255 " 74,380
T;:gzs‘r?t:é:eir;?vable 93.960 88,308 I 8’815
Marketable securities 46,573 75,917 68,645
[nventories 49412 58,866 ’ 47,440
Deferred tax assets 12,409 13,152 12,793
Other .. ' 6.215 8,602 6,652
Reserve for doubtful accounts {312) (254) (347
Total current assets 302,776 71.4 326,847 73.0 328439 72.0
1! Fixed assets:
I Tangible:ﬁxed assets:
Buildings and structures 97,643 97,904 97,257
Accufnﬁlnted depreciation 54,774 42,868 59,196 38,708 57,110 40,147
Mach{m:ry and vehicles 53,770 59,805 59.597
Accumulated depreciation 42933 10,836 45,762 14,043 43,925 15,672
Fumituurc and fixtures 32,226 33,025 32,643
Accur_ﬁulatcd depreciation ' 26,484 5,741 26,934 6,090 26,459 6,183
Land | 9,941 9,941 9,941
Const‘ﬁjction in progress 5,137 12,704 7,514
Total tangible fixed assets 74,525 81,489 79,459
2. [Intangible fixed assets:
Software 2258 3,747 4,008
Other ; » 2,277 1,778 2127
Total fmangible fixed assets 6.535 5,525 6.136
3. [nvestmcgl;ts and other assets:

" nvestment securities 16,229 14,459 18,482
Long-term loans 107 094 I 100
Deferred tax assets 9,931 : 9,789 ’ 11,499
Other 14,280 9,523 12,629

| :ce::;vﬁ:sfor doubtful (299) 281) (304)
'::;:tlsifwcstmcnts and other 40,250 33.585 42,407
Total fixed assets 121,312 28.6 120,600 27.0 128,003 28.0
Total asslets 424,088 100.0 447,447 100.0 ' 456,442 | 100.0
h
; 5
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As of September 30, 2005

As of September 30, 2006

As of December 31, 2005

Accounts Mitlions of Yen % Millions of Yen % Millions of Yen %
Liabilities
[ Current liabilities:
Trade notes and accounis 16,093 30,405 20,989
payable
Short-term borrowings 1,000 - -
Other payables 4.871 7,988 13,467
Accrued income taxes 11,250 1,450 18,320
Deferred tax liabilities 4 3 4
Accrued consumption taxes 1,395 509 1.888
Accrued expenses 8.209 8,763 13,496
Reservé for bonuses 7.616 7.805 4,524
to employees
Reserve for bonuses _ 92 _
to direclors -
Reserve for sales returns 63 30 43
Reserve for sales rebates 1.454 2,471 1,884
Other 3,783 2,774 3,347
Total cu_.jrrent liabilities 55,742 13.1 62,296 13.9 78,468 17.2
Il Fixed liabilities:
Bonds with warrant 2,404 300 901
Convertible bonds 1.251 152 447
Deferreg tax liabilities 3 2 2
Reserve for employees' '
retirement benefits 6.381 4.618 6.103
Reserve for officers’ '
retirement benefits 455 33 480
Other 33 77 38
Total fixed liabilities 10,528 |, 2.5 5,683 1.3 7,975 1.7
Total liabilities 66,271 15.6 67.979 15.2 86,443 189
Minority interests )
Minority interests 1318 03 - - 1,692 0.4
Shareholders’ e:qnity
I Common stock 71288 | 168 -1 - 72443 | 159
I Additional paid-in capital 91,143 215 - - 92.296 20.2
I Retained earnings ' 198,000 | 467 — - 206,834 | 453
IV Net unrealized gain 3461 08 - - 3781 08
on securities _
V  Foreign cufrency _ _
translation adjustments 219 0.1 561 0.1
VI Treasury stock, at cost {7.614) (1.8} - - (7.611) {1.6)
Total shareholders' equity 356.499 g4.1 - - 368,306 80.7
Total liabilities, minority
interests and 424,088 | 1000 - - 456,442 | 100.0
shareholders' equity
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Accounts Millions of Yen % Millions of Yen % Millions of Yen %
Net assets :
I  Sharcholders’ equity:
1. Common stock 72,892 -
2. Additional paid-in capital 92,745 -
3. Retained earnings 214,982 -
4. Treasury stock, at cost (7,604) -
Total shareholders’ equity 373,016 834 —
O Valuation - and translation
adjustments:
1. Net u_n_reahzed gain on 3,384 _
securities:
2, Foreign currency translation
! 1,452 —
adjustments
Total valuation and translation _
adjustments 4.836 11
O Minority interests 1,615 0.4 —
Total net assets 379,468 84.8 -
Total liabilitics and 447.447 | 100.0 _
nel assets.

‘
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Third Quarter of FY 2005 Third Quarter of FY 2006 . FY 2005
f {Jan. 1, 2005 - Sept.30, 2005) (Jan. 1, 2006 - Sept.30, 2006) (Jan. 1, 2605 - Dec. 31, 2005)
Accounts Millions of Yen % Millions of Yen % Millions of Yen %
Net sales ' 230,965 | 100.0 227,161 | 100.0 327,155 | 100.0
Cost of sales: 83,952 36.3 90,619 39.9 119,447 36.5
Gross profit 147,013 63.7 136,541 60.1 207,707 63.5 |
Reserve for sales returns (3) (0.0) {13) (0.0} (23) (0.0)
Net gross profit 147,016 63.7 136,554 60.1 207.73t 63.5
Selling, generaland 89972 | 390 97002 | 427 128562 | 393
administrative expenses:
Operaling income 57.044 247 39,462 17.4 79,168 242
IV Non-operating income:
Interest income 360 502 547
Dividend income 62 1,129 94
Life insurance
dividends received 404 352 404
Patent royalties 908 995 1.298
Gain on foreign exchange 420 - 24
Gain on derivatives 634 491 946
Other ; 1,816 4,607 20 1.454 4,926 2.2 2,126 5,442 1.7
V  Non-operating expenses:
’ Interest expense 224 186 326
Loss on disposal
of fixed assets 217 227 327
Reserve for
. doubtfil accounts 30 8 35
Loss on inventories 477 349 779
Loss on foreign exchanges - 569 -
Other - 714 1,664 0.7 876 2,216 1.0 1.050 2,519 0.8
Recurring profit 59,987 26.0 42,172 18.6 " 82,091 25.1
Extraordinary gain:
Gain on return of substituted
portion of welfare pension 10,717 - 10,717
plan '
Fee of licensing agreement 1,667 500 1,667
Profit ;.f'rom sale of fixed 722 _ 73
assets
Gain on sates of marketable _ 2,074 »
securities
Gain on settlement due to —| waer|  sa7 §13| 3387 L5 —| 13108] 40
office realignments
VII  Extraordinary loss:
Office closing costs 760 - 6,826
Impairment loss 549 - 2,194
Loss on office realignment _ 920 -
costs
Loss on sales of fixed assets - 1.310 0.6 245 1,174 0.5 -~ 9,021 28
Incomeibefore income taxes i
and minority interests 71,783 A 44,386 19.5 86,178 26.3
[ncome taxes:
Current 22,017 14,317 29.778
Deferred 4,027 26,044 11.3 - 1,609 15,927 7.0 1,436 31,214 9.5
Minority interests 940 0.4 1,268 0.6 1,331 0.4
Net income 44,798 19.4 27,190 12.0 53,632 16.4




Consolidated Statements of Changes 1n Net Assets

The third quarter of fiscal year (Jan. 1, 2006 - Sept.30, 2006)

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock Addng;)ailwqmd-m Retained earnings Treasury stock.at Total shareholders equity
: cost
Balance as of December 31, 2005
{Millions of Yen) 72.443 92.296 206,834 (7611} 363,962
Changes:
New stocks issuance 448 447 296
Dividends paid (18,821) (18,821}
Bonuses to dlre;lors 222) (222)
Third quarter net income 27.150 27.190
Purchase of treasury stocks (20) 20)
Deposition of treasury stocks i 28 10
Net changes except for
shareholders’ equity
Net changes (Mllllpns of Yen) 448 449 R 147 7 9,053
Balance as of September 30, 2006
(Millions of Yen) ; 72,892 92,745 214,982 (7,604) 373,016

I Valuation and translation adjustments
T uati Minority interests Total net assets
Net unrealized gain on Foreign currency Dmll,r;:slllaatlilgrl: and
securities translation adjustments adjustments
Balance as of December 31,2005
{Millions of Yen) - 3,781 561 4,343 1.692 369,998
Changes: ,:1
New stocks issuance 896
Bividends pald‘ (18.821)
Bonuses to dlrcglors (222)
Third quarter net income 27.190
-Purchast_: of‘trea‘;ury stocks 20)
Deposition of treasury stocks 10
Net changes except for
shareholders’ equity (397) 890 493 (76} 416
Net changes (Millions of Yen) (397) 890 493 (76) 9.469
Balance as of September 30, 2006
(Millions of Yen) - 3.384 1,452 4,836 1,615 379,468
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Third Quarter of FY 2005
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Sept.30, 2005}

FY 2005
(Jan. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31, 2005)

Accounts

Millions of Yen

Millions of Yen

{Additional paid-in capital)

I

o

m

Additional paid-in capital at
beginning of year:
Increase in Additional
paid-in capital:

Conversion of

convertible bonds

Net stock by

preemptive right

Gain on disposal

of treasury stock
Additional paid-in capital
at ending balance

(Retained earmnings)

I

Retained earnings
at beginning of year

Increase in retained earnings:

Net income

Decrease in
retained eamings:

Dividends paid
Bonuses to directors

Retained eamings at ending
balance

90.387

304
450

| 7155

90,387

705
1,200

1 1,908 -

91,143 |

164,854

44,798 44,798

11,558

94 11,652

92,296

164,854

53,632 53,632

11,558

94 11,652

198,000

206,834

10
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Third Quarter of FY 2006

Third Quarter of FY 2005 FY 2005
Jan. 1, 3008 Sept.30, 2005) &n- b 2205’0663 Sept-30: {(7an. 1, 2005 - Dec. 31,2005)
Accounts Millions of Yen - Millions of Yen Millions of Yen
I . Cash flows from operating activities
lnpome before income taxes and 71783 44.386 86.178
minority interests ’ i !
Depreciation and amortization 9,998 10,012 16,980
impairment loss 549 - 2,194
Decrease) in reserve for employees'
.(retiremem)bene s P (13.804) (1.485) (14,082)
[nterest and dividend income (423) (1,631} (642)
Interest expense 224 186 326
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 217 227 327
Loss (profit) from sales of fixed assets {803) 122 (802)
Loss (gain) on sales and revaluvation of
invesu%wnt securities (126) (2.074) 206
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts :
receivable 10,731 30,745 (14.135)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 8,502 (11,280) 10,526
Increase {decrease) in notes and accounts (3.076) 9.327 1.794
payable ’ ’ ?
{Decrease) in accrued consumption tax (1,053) {1.378) (560}
Others (7,188) (5,141) (4,181)
Subtotal 75,533 72,013 84,131
Interest and dividends received T 423 1,637 582
[nterest paid (236) (227) (297)
Income taxes paid ' : (19,323) (31,853) " {19,753)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities 56,395 41,569 64,663
Il Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase;s of marketable securities (72,026) (129,508) (123,096)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 64,506 125.499 93,906
Purchases of investment securities (1.109) T(3) (3,132)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 399 2,507 393
_ Purchases of fixed assets (5,450) (14,400} {9,102)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 5373 505 5472
Net decrease in short-term loans 0 0 0
Net decrease in long-term loans 65 4 70
Proceeds from sales of subsidiary’s stock
- accompanied with change in scope of - - 29
consolidation
Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities (7,841) (15,795) (35,459)
Il Cash flows from financing activities
Net {decrease) in Jong-term debt — - (1.000)
Redemption of bonds (D) (0) {0y
Net decrease in treasury stock 2 7 4
Cash dividends paid (11,558) (18,821} (11,558)
Cash dividends paid to minority shareholders (3) - {3)
Net cash used in financing activities {11.559) {18.813) {12,556)
IV Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash eguivalents i 140 913 353
V  Netincrease (decrease} in cash and
cash equivale(ms 37,136 7.874 16,999
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 57.380 74,380 57,380
| I 94,517 82,255 74,380

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Devel ¢ Indicats Sta Generic name Origin
ndication €
evelopmen . o & Product name Overseas name Mode of Action
code # Additional indication (date)
Dosage form {Collaborator)
Oncology;,
CGS20267 Breast cancer in Launched | letrozole Novartis Aromatase inhibitor
postmenopausal women May.06 Femara Femara
Tablet {Novartis Pharma)
EPOCH Chemotherapy-induced Filed epoetin beta In-house Recombinant human
anemia Dec.05 Epogin erythropoietin
# Injection
R435 Colorectal cancer Filed bevacizumab Roche /Genentech | Humanized anti- VEGF {Vascular
Apr.06 Avastin Avastin Endothelial Growth Factor)
[njection monoclonal antibody
R1415 Non-small cell lung cancer Filed erlotinib OSl/Genentech/ Epidermal growth factor receptor
Apr.06 Tarceva Roche (EGFR/HER1) tyrosine kinase inhibitor
Tablet Tarceva
R340 Colon cancer (adjuvant) Filed capecitabine Roche Antimetabolite, 5-FU derivative
# Mar.06 Xeloda Xeloda :
, Colorectal cancer Phase 2 Tablet
#
Gastric cancer Phase 2
H
R597 *Breast cancer {adjuvant) Preparing for | trastuzumab Roche /Genentech | Humanized anti-HER2
# filing Herceptin Herceptin monoclonal antibody
Injection '
* Gastric cancer Phase 3
# Multinational
study
MRA ‘Multiple myeloma Phase 2 tocilizumab In-house Humanized anti-human IL-6 receptor
: Overscas | Actemra monoclonal antibody
L Phase 1 Injection {Roche)
4 Overseas
R744 ' Chemotherapy-induced Phase 2 Injection Roche C.E.R.A. (Continuous erythropoiesis
anemia Mircera receptor activator)
R1273 ‘Non-small cell lung cancer Phase pertuzumab Roche /Genentech | HER dimerization inhibitorg:r
Injection Omnitarg humanized monoclonal antibody
TP300 'KCqurcc:lal cancer Phase | Injection In-house Topoisomerase I inhibitor
) Overseas




‘Developmenl lndical.inn Product name Overseas name Mode of Action
code # Additional indication {date) Dosage form (Collaborator)
Bone and Joint
MRA Rheumatoid arthritis Filed tocilizumab In-house Humanized anti-human IL-6 receptor
|# Actemra monoclonal antibody !
Apr.06 Injection
Phase 3 tocilizumab In-house
Overseas Actemra
Injection (Roche)
Systemic onset juvenile Filed tocilizumab In-house
idiopathic arthritis (sJiA}) Actemra
4 Apr06 | [njection
Phase 3~ | tocilizumab In-house
Qverseas | Actemra
Injection (Roche)
ED-71 Osteoporosis Phase 3 Onl In-house Activated Vitamin D derivative
R484 Osteoporosis Phase 2 ibandronic acid | Roche Bisphosphonate
Completed | Injection Bonivain US
Phase 2 ibandronic acid | / Bonviva in EU
Oral
CHS13340 Osteoporosis Development | Nasal spray Datichi Asubio Recombinant parathyroid hormone
suspended Pharma (thPTH1-34)
Renal disease
R744 Renal anemia Phase 2 Injection Roche C.E.R.A. (Continuous erythropoictin
Mircera receptor activator)
Cardio/Cerebro-vascular disease
5G-75 Acute heart failure Filed nicerandi! In-house Potassium channel opener
# Jun,03 Sigmart
Injection
AVS Subarachnoidal hemomrhage Filed nicaraven In-house Hydroxyl radical scavenger
' Apr95 | Antevas
Injection
Transplant, Immunology and Infectious disease
R964 Chronic hepatitis C Filed ribavirin Roche Anti-viral agent in combination with Pegasys
Jun. 05 Copegus Copegus
-Compensated liver cirrhosis Phase 2/3 Tablet
caused by hepatitis C virus
L(R442 #)
R442 peginterferon Roche Peginterferon alfa-2a agent
i alfa-2a Pegasys (recombinant)
f Pegasys
[njection
MRA ; Crohn’s disease Phase 2 tocilizumab In-house Humanized anti-human IL-6 receptor
# ' Actermra monoclonal antibody
‘ [njection
‘Castleman’s disease Phase | tocilizumab In-house
Overseas Actemra (Roche)
' Systemic lupus Phase | [njection
erythematosus (SLE)

[

Overseas

13
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d ¥ Additional indicati (dat Product name Overseas name Mode of Action
- itional indication ate
coce ) Dosage form {Collaborator)
Other field
EPOCH | Anemia in premature Approved | epoetin beta [n-house Recombinant human erythropoietin
| infants . Apr.06 Epogin
1# Injection
Predeposit of autologous Filed
blood transfusion Mar.02
#
VAL | Post-hepatectomy/ Liver Phase 2 valine [n-house Recovery of liver function
‘ transplantation Completed | Injection
Decompensated Phase 2 vatine
cirrhosis Oral
GM-611 Diabetic gastroparesis Phase | mitemcinal In-house Motilin agonist
Completed | Tablet Recovery of gastrointestinal motility
Phase 2
Overseas
[rritable bowel syndrome Phase 2
(IBS) Overseas
Changes from the last announcement on July 31, 2006
Oncology
" «.R597 Phase 3 Multinational study — Preparing for filing (# Breast cancer {(adjuvant))
-TP300 Preparing for phase 1 — Phase | {Colorectal cancer)

Bong and Joint

-CHS'I3340 Development suspended (Co-development agreement terminated)

L |
R&D Activities (Jul.1, 2006 — Oct. 24, 2006)

As for rcsearch activities, the Company saw progress as described below.
- The Company decided to license-out to Roche three compounds, 2 in oncology and | in diabetes, from its research portfolio.

As for clinical:_development activities in Japan, the Company saw progress as described below:

Oncology

- We plan to submit an application for an additional indication for humanized anti-HER2 monoclonal antibody R597 {(product name:
Herceptin, expected additional indication: adjuvant breast cancer) in 2006.

Bone and Joint Diseases

- The efficacy and safety of the recombinant parathyroid hormone (rhPTH1-34) [CHS13340C]. a compound originally developed by Daiichi
Asubio Pharma Co., Lid., were confirmed in completed early phase Il clinical trials. However, as a result of a comprehensive review of
our current development pipeline, Chugai decided to return the development and marketing nghts to Daiichi Asubio Pharma Co., Ltd.
Accordingly, the co-development agreement for the compound, signed between the Company and Daiichi Asubio Pharma Co., Ltd, was
terminated. -

Transplant, lmmlinologx and Infectious Disease
- In July, we filed an application for a new formulation and additional dosage and administration for HIV protease inhibitor Invirase. and
they were approved in September.

At present, W§ are awaiting the approvai of applications filed for 10 themes under developtnent (new molecular entities and additions of
indications), in!c':luding R964 {expected indication: chronic hepatitis C).

Also., as for ciinical development activities overseas, the Company saw progress as described below.

- In Seplembef, we started Phase | clinical trials for topoisomerase [ inhibitor TP300, targeting colorectal cancer and other solid tumors,
through Chugai Pharma Europe, in the U.K.

i4

"
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Cancer
Theme Type Title of Study Regimen Filing Date
Safety confirmation study of R435 {bevacizumab) in patients with
R435 Colorectal . FOLFOX4 Filed
metastatic colorectal cancer
{bevacizumab) + Avastin (Apr.06)
Phase 11 study of R435 {bevacizumab) in patients with metastatic
Colorectal SFU+LY Filed
colorectal cancer
+ Avastin (Apr.06)
Phase I/l Study of R340 (capecitabine), L-OHP (oxaliplatin) and
Colorectal R435 (bevacizumab) in advanced andfor metastatic celorectal XELOX 2008
cancer + Avastin
R340 ‘_
{capecitabine) l
Xeloda b
Phase 1l clinical study of Ri415 (erlotinib) for treatment of
RI415 Non-small advanced, metstatic, and/or recurrent non-small-cell lung cancer - Fn[ed
(erlotinib) cell fung (Apr.06)
HERA study:
R597 Breast A study of intravenous RS97 (trastuzumab) in women with - 2006
(trastuzumab) HER2-positive primary breast cancer
Herceptin ToGA study:
ic N . +
Gastric A study of R397 (trastuzumab) in combination with chemotherapy SFU+CDDP 2008
compared with chemotherapy alone in patients with | = Herceptin
HER2-positive advanced gastric cancer Xelods + CDDP
* + Herceptin

15
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Translation

July 18, 2006

Name of listed company; Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Code number: 4519 (Tekyo Stock Exchange)

i Head office: 1-1, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 2-chome,
3 Chuo-ku, Tokyo

a Representative: Osamu Nagayama, President & CEO
| ' Inquiries to: Yoshio Itaya, VP & General Manager,

i Finance & Accounting Dept,
i . " Tel: +81-(0)3-3281-6611

: _ Flash Report of the Interim Financial Results
for the Fiscal Term ended June 30, 2006

) g ‘

On July 20,'-1_2006 (Central European Time), the Roche Group, which incorporates Roche Pharmholding B.V,, the
parent compa;}y of Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Lid. (“Chugai™), will announce its half year results for fiscal year
2006 based on international accounting standards.  As some financial information on Chugai will be included in the
announcemen; Chugai hereby announces its flash report of the interim financial results for the fiscal term ending in
December 2006 (January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006) in pursuu of timely and fair disclosure to its sharcholders
and investors, ‘prior to the announcement of its parent company.

The announqpment of full financial statements is scheduled on July 31, 2006.

| . .
1. Interim Financial Results for the fiscal term ended June 2006 (fanuary to June 2066)
: Y (Millions of yen)
{Consolidated) ' Figures are. rounded to the nearest 100 million.

Net Sales * | Operating Income ,Recurring Profit [ Net Income

it
ol

Results for Jén.—Jun., 2006 (A) 152,600 27,700 30,100 19,000
Results for Jan.—Jun;, 2005 (B) \ 159,200 | 39,900- 42,700 | 28,000
Difference b;tween AandB . 6,600 | -12,200 . 12,600 [ -9,000

h ‘ .
Change . ‘ 41% | -30.6% | -29.5% | -32.1%




(Millions of yen)

Figures are rounded to the nearest 100 million.

{Non-consolidated)

Net Sales | Operating Income | Recurring Profit | Net Income
Results for Jan — Jun,, 2006 (A) 146,500 24,500 27,600 17,800
Results for Jlan:—J un., 2005 (B) 153,200 36,700 40,100 27,400
Difference bn;tween Aand B -6,700 412,200 -12,500 -96,000
Change -4.4% -33.2% -31.2% -35.0%

Consolidated sales fell below the same period last year. Sales were strong for our anti-tumor agent Herceptin, a

humanized anti-HER2 monoclonal antibody, and Evista, an osteoporosis treatment, as well as overseas sales of

Neutrogin, our recombinant human granulocyte-colony stimulating factor (rG-CSF). On the other hand, sales of our

anti-influenza agent Tamiflu decreased from the same period last year, as this year’s moderate influenza season ended

in February, earlier than the previous year when a large-scale outbreak occurred in February and March.  Also, sales

of the recombinant human erythropoietin Epogin, our mainstay product, decreased, resulting from the introduction of

the flat-sum reimbursement system for dialysis (reatment.

At the profit level, operating income, recurring profit and net income all decreased due to a decline in sales, an

increase in the personnel cost and aggressive investments in R&D activilies.

Chugai has also announced today, a revision to the interim financial outlook. Please refer to “Revision of Interim

Financial Qutlook for Fiscal Year 2006 (January 1 — December 31, 2006)” for details.

2, Consolidated Sales of the Mainstay Products for J

anuary 1 - June 30, 2006
(Millions of Yen)

Fipures are rounded to the nearest 100 million.

Jan.—Jun., 2006 Jan.—Jun., 2005
Epogin 31,000 33,200
Neutrogin 16,500 14,900 -
Tamiflu 16,300 23,200
Sigmart 8,600 9,100
Rituxan 8,100 8,100
Alfarol 7,000 7,600
Herceptin 6,400 4,900
Kytril 6,000 5,500
Evista . 5,800 3,600
Suvenyl 4,100. 3,700
Oxarol 3,500 3,400
Furtulon : 3,400 4,700
Rythmodan 3,200 3,500
Pegasys 3,000 3,700
Rocephin 2,600 2,600
Renagel 2,300 2,100
Euglucon 2,100 2,400
Xeloda 1,200 1,200




4
NOTICE: For the convenience of capital market participants, Chugai makes efforts to provide English translations of the information disclosed
in Japanese, provided that the Japanese original prevails over its English translation in the case of any discrepancy found between
documentation. -

Roche Group

Translation
July 18, 2006

Name of listed company: Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Code number: 4519 (Tokyo Stock Exchange)
' * Head office: 1-1, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 2-chome,
‘ Chuo-ku, Tokyo

Representative: . Osamu Nagayama, President & CEQ
: Inquiries to: Yoshio Itaya, VP & General Manager,

Finance & Accounting Dept.
Tel: +81-(0)3-3281-6611

¢ Revision of Interim Financial Outlook for Fiscal Year 2006
: (January 1 — December 31, 2006)

Chugai Ph;rmaccutical Co., Ltd. announced today that the company revises the interim financial outlook for
fiscal year 2006 (January - December, 2006), originally released on February 9, 2006.

1. The revjifsilon of the interim financial outlook for fiscal year 2006 (January - June, 2006)

(Consolidatéd) {(Millions of yen, %)

; Nﬁt Sales Opt’.fﬂt]ﬂg RCClllTlIlg Net Income

1 Income Profit
Original outlook (A) :

i 147,500 23,500 24,100 - 13,900
(Released February 9, 2006) .
Revised outlook - (B) 152,600 27,700 f - 30,100 19,000
Variance (B-A) 5,100 4,200 |. 6,000 |. 5,100
(% Change) . 35 17.9 24.9 36.7
Half Year ended June 30, 2005 159,243 ) 39,925 42,734 28,047

(Non-consolidated) ) {Millions of yen, %)

’ Net Sales Operating Rccurr.mg - Net Income

i Income Profit -
Original outlook (A) ' : o

v ' 142,500 | . 20,500 21,800 13,300
(Released February 9, 2006) - .
Revised 6u§:look (B) 146,500 24,500 27,600 17,800 |
Variance | (B-A) 4,000 | 4,000 | 5,800 | 4,500
(% Change) | 2.8 | 195 | 26.6 338 |
Half Year ended June 30, 2005 153,156 36,686 40,106 27,360




2. The reason for the revisions

Despite a decline in sales of the recombinant human erythropoietin Epogin, due to the introduction of the flat-sum
reimbursement system for dialysis treatment, there was an increase in sales of the anti-influenza agent Tamiflu to the
government, and an increase in overseas sales of the recombinant human G-CSF Neutrogin. Therefore, we have
decided to revise the interim sales outlook. _ _

Revisions are also made to operating income, recurring profit and net income. In addition to the increase in gross
profit resulting from the increased sales, a portion of the selling, general and administrative expenses is expected to be
shifted to the latter half of the year, and gains were realized from sales of investment securities and from settlements
related to office closure, etc.

Full year financial outlock for fiscal year 2006 will be released at the announcement of the interim result, scheduled
on July 31, 2006.

* The Company bases its forecasts on assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under information available at
the time of the forecasts. Actual results may materially differ from these forecasts due to potential risks and
uncertainties. .




Translation
July 20, 2006

Name of listed company: Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Code number: 4519 (1* Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange) -

Head office: 1-1, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 2-Chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
President & CEQ: Osamu Nagayama
Inquiries to: Mamoru Togashi, General Manager,

Corporate Communications Dept,
Tel: +81-(0)3-3273-0881

F. Hoffmann-La Roche Announces 2006 Half Year Results

F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. (hereafter "Roche") [Head Office: Basel, Switzerlanci. Chairman and CEO:
Franz B.EHumer] announiced today, its 2006 Haif Year Results (January 1 - June 30, 2006) Roche owns
50.1% of Chugai's outstanding shares (50.6% of voting rights) since October 1, 2002 (as of December 31,
2005). ':fls press release, presentation malerials and half year report can be found on its Website
(http:/Mw.roche.com). |

; Media Release Presentation (PDF) Half Year Report 2006 (PDF)
Chugai’s sales for the period of January 1 to June 30, 2006 are included in the announced Roche Group'’s
results. These results are based on Roche’s accounting policies which conform to International Financial

Reporting: Standards, which differ from generally accepted accouﬁling standards in Japan.

Chugai’s inlerim results for fiscal 2006 (January — June, 2006) are scheduled to be announced on July 31,
2006.




'I‘ranslqltion
; September 12, 2006

Name of listed company: Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Code number: 4519 (1 Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange)

Head office: 1-1, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 2-Chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
President & CEQ: Osamu Nagayama
Inquiries to: Mamoru Togashi, General Manager,

Corporate Communications Dept.
Tel: +81-(0)3-3273-0881

Co-Development and Co-Marketing Agreement
Secured for the Antiresorptive Bisphosphonate R484

September 12, 2006 (Tokyo} - Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Chugai”) [Head Office: Chuo-ku,
Tokyo; Piesident: Osamu Nagayama] announced today that it has entered into an agreement with Taisho
Phannacéutical Co., Ltd. (“Taisho”) [Head Office: Toshima-ku, Tokyo; President: Akira Uehara] to
co-develt;p and co-market R484 [generic name: ibandronic acid], a bisphosphonate which Chugai is
currently developing in Japan for the (reatment of osteoporosis. Under the agreement, Chugai will
co-dcvclo.p the compound with Taisho and co-market it with Taisho Toyama Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.[Head Office: Toshima-ku, Tokyo; President: Akira Ohira], a subsidiary of Taisho. Chugai will
receive aﬁ_ upfront fee and milestone payments from Taisho.

R484, a I;isphosphonale compound owned by Roche, demonstrates a.strong inhibitory effect on bone
resorption. A less frequent dosing and administration has been developed (for oral and injection) to
improve convenience and compliance by reducing complicated restrictions when administering the
medicine and to reduce the adverse reactions often seen in oral bisphosphonale preparations, mainly
reactions related to the gastrointestinal track. In Japan, a phase II clinical trial is ongoing for the oral
formulatic";n and a phase II clinical trail has been completed for the injectable formulation.

1
N

Since there are an estimated 12 million osteoporosis patients in Japan, it is becoming increasingly
importanl:;lo develop a drug which increases bone mass and reduces the risk of bone fractures, while
being easy to administer.” R484 is expected to become a next generalion osteoporosis freatment thal
improves compliance by decreasing the problems associated with the conventional bisphosphonates, and
offers patilénts more choice of administration routes.

Chugai and Taisho are determined to provide patients with access to this new osteoporosis treatment as
early as bqssible, and believe the joint effort to develop R484 will accelerate the process.

Notes to editor _ .
Overseas, ;Rochc and their co-development pariner, GSK, markets the product under the brand name
Bonviva (Boniva in US) as a once-monthly oral formulation and a once-every-three-months injection

formulation for the treatment of osteoporosis in post menopausal women.
.




Translation
. . October 17, 2006

Name of listed company: Chugai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Code number: 4519 (1" Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange)

Head office: 1-1, Nihonbashi-Muromachi 2-Chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo
President & CEO: Osamu Nagayama
Inquiries to: Mamoru Togashi, General Manager,

'Corporate Communications Dept.
Tel: +81-(0)3-3273-0881

' F. Hoffmann-La Roche Announces Third Quarter Sales 2006

F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. (hereafter "Roche") [Head Office: Basel, Switzerland. Chairman and CEOQ: Franz
B. Humer] announced today, its third quarter sales 2006 (January 1 — September 30, 2006). Roche owns
50.1% of Chugai's outstanding shares (50.6% of voting rights) since October 1, 2002 (as of Junc 30, 2006).
Its press release and presentation materials can be found on its Website (http://www.roche.com).

Media Release Presentation[PDF]

Chugai’s sales for the period of January 1 to September 30, 2006 are included in the announced Roche
Group's sales. These results are based on Roche’s accounting policies which conform to International
Financial Reporting Standards, which differ from generally accepted accounting standards in Japan.

~ Chugai’s third quarter results for fiscal 2006 (January — September, 2006) are scheduled to be announced on
- QOctober 24, 2006.
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
CHUGAI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

(Amended as of March 23, 2006)




! CHAPTER1 GENERAL RULES

Article 1 (Trade Name)
The Company shall be called Chugai Seiyaku Kabushiki Kaisha and the English name of
the Company shall be CHUGAI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD.

Article 2 :i | (Purposes) ‘
The p;hrposes of the Company shall be to engage in the following businesses:
(1) Manufacturmg, sale and purchase and 1mportat10n and.: exportation of the following
items:

(a) Pharmaceuticals, non-pharmaceuticals, reagents, industrial chemicals,
¢ agricultural chemicals, fertilizers, cosmetics, perfumes and other chemical
¢« products;

(b) Medical appliances, sanitary supplies, measures, scales and gauges, analytical
¢ appliances, horticulture supplies;

{¢) Foodstuffs and food additives, beverages, aleoholic beverages, seasonmgs feeds
. and feeds additives;

(d_) Glass, paper, plastic and metal containers and packaging matertals;

(2) Undertaking of basic and applied researches of medical substances, research activities
and undertaking thereof, and consultation business;

(3) Productlon sale and purchase and importation and exportation of laboratory animals
and pet animals such as dogs, cats, etc.;

(4) Sale and purchase; lease and management of real estate properties and mtermedlary
thereof, and operation of parking garages; '

(5) Warehousing industry, trucking business and forwarding business;

(6) Business in connection with non-life insurance agent and offering of life insurance;

(7) Publishing and printing business;

(8 Undertaking of data processing business and information provision services; and

9 Any business incidental or relating to any of the foregoing items.

Article 3 ' (Location of Head Office)
The Company shall have its head office in Kita-ku, Tokyo.

Article 4 '! {Method of Giving Public Notice)
Publio notices of the Company shall be given electronically. Provided, however, that if
public notice cannot be made electronically by reason of an accident or any other
unavoidable event, public- notices shall be given by publication of the Nihon Keizai
Shimbun.

CHAPTER 2 SHARES

Article 5 . (Total Number of Shares Authorized to be Issued)
The total number of shares authorized to be issued by the Company shall be 799,805,050
shares; provided, however, that in case of retirement of treasury shares, the number of
such retired'shares shall be decreased in proportion.

; ,
Article 6 | (Purchase of Shares)
The Company may purchase its shares upon resolution of the Board of Directors.
l

Article 7./ (Number of Shares to Constitute One.Unit (tangen) )
The number of shares to constitute one unit {tangen). of shares of the Company shall be ,
100 shales.

Article 8 4 (No Issue of Share Certificates constituting less than One Unit (tangen))
The Company shall not issue any share certificate constituting less than one unit

1y
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(hereinafter referred to as the“thngen-miman-kabushiki”), unless otherwise provided in
the Share Handling Regulatlons

Article 9 | (Addltlonal Purchase of Shares Constituting less than One Umt)
Any shareholder holding shares less than one unit (tangen) of the Company (including
beneficial owners, hereinafter the same) may, pursuant to the Share Handling
Regulatmns request the sale of the number of shares that will constitute one unit in total
whenicombined with the shares constituting less than one unit.

Article 100 (Transfer Agent)

1. The Company shall have a transfer agent with respect to shares, and such transfer agent
shall handle the registration of a transfer of shares, registration of a pledge, notation of
trust property or obliteration thereof, delivery of share certificates, purchase and
additional purchase of shares constituting less than one unit (tangen), registration of lost
share certificates and acceptance of a notification and any other business relating to
shares, not by the Company

> 2. The register -of shareholders, the register of beneficial owners (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "Register of Sharehold’ers") and a register for lost share certificates shall

. be kept at the business office of the transfer agent.

~ 3. The transfer agent and location for the handling of its business shall be selected by a

' resolution of the Board of Directors and shall be publicly noticed.

Article 111 (Share Handling Regulations)
Matters with respect to the registration of transfer of shares, purchase and additional
purchase of shares constituting less than one unit (tangen), and other matters relating to
shares of the Company shall be governed by Share Handling Regulations to be established
by the Board of Directors.

Article 12 (Record Date)

1. Any shareholders entitled to exercise shareholder s rights at the ordinary general meeting
of Shareholders shall be the Shareholders duly entered or recorded in the final Register of
Shareholders-as of December 31 of each year.

2. In addition to the foregoing paragraph, the Company may, when necessary, determine a
record date by giving advance public notice pursuant to a resolution of the Board of
Directors.

. CHAPTER 3 GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Article 13 (Convacation of a Shareholders Meeting)

1. The ordinary general meeting of Shareholders of the Company shall be convened in March
in each year, and an extraordinary general meeting of Shareholders shall be convened
whenever necessary.

2. Unless otherwise provided in laws or ordinances, the President shall convene a general
meeting of Shareholders in accordance with a. resolution of the Board of Directors;
provided, however, that in case the President is unable to convene, another
Representative Director shall, in- the order previously fixed by the Board of Directors,
convene such meeting.

3.A General meetmg of Shareholders of the. Company shall be convened in Tokyo.

Article 14 (Chairman of Meeting)
The President shall act as a Chairman of a general meeting of Shareholders; provided,
however, that in case the President is unable to.act, another Dlrector shall, in the order
prevmusly fixed: by the Board of Directors, act in his place.

Article 15 (Method of Ordinary Resclution)
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Unless otherwise provided in laws, ordinances or in these Articles of Incorporation,
resolutmns of a Shareholders meeting shall be adopted by a majority of the votes of

Share_}mlders present,

Article 1651 (Exercise of Voting Rights by Proxy)
A Shareholder may exercise his voting rights through another Shareholder having voting
rights, as his proxy.
;

' . CHAPTER4. DIRECTORSAND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“Article 17 (Election of Directors)

1. Directors shall be elected at a general meeting of Shareholders by its resolution.

" 2. Resolution for the election of Directors shall be adopted by a majority of the votes of
Shareholders present at a Shareholders meetmg who hold shares representing not less
than one-third (1/3) of the total number of the voting rights of all Shareholders.

3. No cumulative voting shall be used for the election of Directors.

Article 18] (Term of Office of Directors)
The term of office of Directors shall expire at the close of the ordinary general meeting of
Shareholders relating to the closing of the accounts lastly held within two (2) years after
their assumptlon of office.

Article 19 : (Convening a Meeting of the Board of Directors and Chairman)

1. The President shall, unless otherwise provided in laws and ordinances, convene a meeting
of the Board of Directors, and shall act as a Chairman of such meeting; provided, however,
that in case the President is unable to act, another Director shall, in the order previously
fixed by the Board of Directors, act in his place.

2. Convocation of a meeting under the preceding paragraph shall be notified to each Director
and each Corporate Auditor one (1) week prior to the date of the meeting; provided,
however, that the meeting may be held without such convening procedure, if consented to
by all of the Directors and Corporate Auditors.

Article 20 ‘i (Regulations of the Board of Directors)
Unless otherwise provided by laws, ordinances or in these Articles of Incorporation, any
matters relating to the Board of Directors shall be governed by the regulations of the
Board "lof Directors:
Article 21 l (Representative Directors and Dwectors with Specific Titles)
1. D1rect0rs representing the Company shall be elected by ai resolution of the Board of
Dlrectors
2. The Board of Directors may appoint a Chairman of the Board, a Vice Chairman and a
Presidént.

" Article 22 4 (Remuneratlon and Retuement Gratuities of Directors)

Remuneration and retirement gratuities of Directors shall be determined by a resolutlon
of a general meeting of Shareholders.
i
Article 23 ¢ (Agreement with External Director to Limit Liability)

The Company may conclude an agreement with an external Director to limit his or her
hablhty to the fullest extent of the amount that is provided by law or ordinances, if any
act of the external Director mentioned in Article 266, Section 1, item (v) of the Commercial
Code causes damages to the Company and so:long as such external Director acts in good
faith ajld- there'is no-material negligence to conduct his or her duty.

CHAPTER 5 CORPORATE AUDITORS AND



BOARD OF CORPORATE AUDITORS

Article 24“! (Election of Corporate Auditors)
1. Corporate Auditors shall be elected at a general meeting of Shareholders by its resolution.
2. Resolution for the election of Corporate Auditors shall be adopted by a majority of the
votes ‘of Shareholders present at a Shareholders meeting who hold shares representing
-not leas than one-third (1/3) of the total number of the voting rights of all Shareholders.

" Article 25' (Term of Office of Corporate Auditors)

1. The term of office of Corporate Auditors shall expire at the close of the ordinary general
meetmg of Shareholders relating to the closing of the accounts lastly held within four (4)
years after their assumption of office.

2. The term of office of Corporate Auditors elected to fill vacancies shall expire at the same
time a'"s the term of office of their predecessor would have expired.

Article 26 (Convening a Meetmg of the Board of Corporate Auditors)
Convocatlon of a meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors shall be notified to each
Corporate Auditor three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting; provided, however, that
the meetmg may be held without such convening procedure, if consented to by all of
Corporate Auditors.

Article 27 (Regulations of the Board of Corporate Auditors)
Unless otherwise provided in laws, ordinances or in these Articles of Incorporation, any
matters relating to the Board of Corporate Auditors shall be governed by the regulations
of the Board of Corporate Auditors.

Article 28 . (Full-time Corporate Auditors)
1. The Company shall assign one (1) or more full-time Corporate Auditors.
2. Full-time Corporate Auditors under the preceding paragraph shall be appomted by mutual
voting of Corporate Auditors.

Article 29 : (Remuneration of Corporate Auditors)
Remuneration of Corporate Auditors shall be determined by a resolution of a general
meeting of Shareholders.

1
i

CHAPTER 6 ACCOUNTING

Article 30 ' (Closmg of Accounts)
The Company s closing of accounts shall be December 31 in each year

Article 31 ! (Dividend of Profit)
Dividends of profit shall be paid to the Shareholders or registered or recorded pledgees
appearing on the Register of Shareholders as of the closing of accounts in each year.

:

Article 32 ~ (Interim Dividends)
The Company may, by a resolution by the Board of Directors, make interim dividends to
the Shareholders or registered or recorded pledgees appearing on the final Register of
Shareholders as of June 30 in each year.

Article 33 ' (Conversion of Convertible Bonds and Dividends)

For the purpose of payment of the first dividend of profit (including interim dividends) on
sharesilssued upon conversion of convertible bonds, such conversion shall be deemed to
have taken place on January 1, if the conversion request is made from January 1 to June
30, or on July 1, if the conversion request is made from July 1 to December 31, and the
payment shall be made accordingly.

h

i 4

i




Article 34; (Period of Limitations for Dividends, Etc.)
The Company shall be relieved of the obligation to pay any dividend of profit or any
interim dividends if the same shall have not been claimed by the Shareholder or
registered. pledgees until after three (3) full years from the day the same becomes due and
payable

“ Automatm Amendments based on “Adjustment Law for Enforcement of Corporation Law”
\ (“Adjustment Law”)

By effect of Adjustment Law, the followmgs are regarded as provisions in Chugai’s Artmles

although they are not in the current wordings of Chugai’s Articles.

1. The Cémpany issues share certificates for shares of the Company. (Adjustment Law Article

76 Section 4) |
' 2. The Company sets an administrator of the shareholder register. (Adjustment Law Article

80 Section 1)

3. The Company sets a board of directors. (Adjustment Law Article 76 Section 2)

4. The Company sets statutory auditors. (Adjustment Law Article 76 Section 2)

5. The Company sets a board of statutory auditors. (Adjustment Law Article 52)

6. The Company sets accounting auditors. (Adjustment Law Article 52)

I )




